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Payment and Security: The University of Rochester Revenue Bonds, Series 2004A (the “ Series 2004A Bonds’) are special
obligationsof the Dormitory Authority of the State of New York (the“ Authority "), payable solely from, and secur ed by a pledge of,
(i) certain payments to be made under the Loan Agreement dated as of August 11, 1999 between the University of Rochester (the
“University”) and the Authority (the “Loan Agreement”), and (ii) all funds and accounts (except the Arbitrage Rebate Fund)
established under theAuthority’ sUniver sity of Rochester RevenueBond Resolution, adopted August 11,1999 (the* Resolution™ ), and
the Series2004A Resolution authorizingthe Series2004A Bondsadopted July 21, 2004 (the* Series2004A Resolution”).

The Loan Agreement is a general obligation of the University and requires the University to pay, in addition to the fees and expenses of
the Authority and the Trustee, amounts sufficient to pay the principal and Redemption Price of and interest on all Bonds issued under the
Resolution, including the principal of and interest on the Series 2004A Bonds, as such payments become due.

TheSeries2004A Bondswill not beadebt of theStateof New Y ork (the” State” ) nor will theStatebeliablethereon. TheAuthority
hasno taxing power.

Description: The Series2004A Bondswill beissued asfully registered bondsin denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.
Interest on the Series 2004A Bondswill be payable on January 1, 2005 and each July 1 and January 1 thereafter. The principal and Redemption
Price of the Series 2004A Bonds will be payable at the principal corporate trust office of The Bank of New Y ork, New Y ork, New Y ork, the
Trustee and Paying Agent.

The Series 2004A Bondswill beissued initialy under a Book-Entry Only System, registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for
The Depository Trust Company (“DTC"). Individual purchases of beneficial interestsin the Series 2004A Bondswill be madein Book-Entry
form (without certificates). Solong asDTC or itsnomineeisthe registered owner of the Series 2004A Bonds, payments of the principal of and
interest on such Series 2004A Bondswill be made directly to DTC or its nominee. Disbursement of such paymentsto DTC participantsisthe
responsibility of DTC and disbursement of such paymentsto the beneficial ownersisthe responsibility of DTC participants. See“PART 3 -
THE SERIES 2004A BONDS - Book-Entry Only System” herein.

Redemption: The Series 2004A Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity as more fully described herein.

Tax Exemption: In the opinion of Bond Counsel, under existing statutes and court decisions, and assuming compliance with the tax
covenants referred to herein, interest on the Series 2004A Bonds is excluded from grossincome for federal income tax purposes pursuant to
Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. Bond Counsel is aso of the opinion that interest on the Series 2004A Bonds
isexempt from personal incometaxesimposed by the State of New Y ork and any political subdivision thereof (including The City of New Y ork).
See, however, “PART 11 - TAX EXEMPTION” herein.
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2006 560,000 3.00 2.05 2017 890,000 4.25 433
2007 575,000 3.50 2.45 2018 930,000 5.00 4.42*
2008 600,000 3.50 2.82 2019 975,000 5.00 4.49*
2009 620,000 4,00 3.16 2020 1,025,000 5.25 4.46*
2010 645,000 4.00 3.37 2021 1,075,000 5.25 4.56*
2011 670,000 5.00 3.62 2022 1,135,000 5.25 4.64*
2012 705,000 5.00 3.78 2023 1,195,000 5.25 4.70*
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2014 775,000 5.00 4.03 2025 1,320,000 4,75 491
2015 815,000 5.00 4.14*
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Delafield & Wood LLP, New York, New York, Bond Counsel, and to certain other conditions. Certain legal matterswill be passed upon for the
University by its counsel, Nixon Peabody LLP, Rochester, New York. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Underwriters by their
counsel, Robinson, Bradshaw & Hinson, P.A., Charlotte, North Carolina. The Authority expectsto deliver the Series 2004A Bondsin definitive
formin New York, New York on or about August 26, 2004.
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August 6, 2004




No dealer, broker, salesperson or other person has been authorized by the Authority, the University or the Underwriters to give any
information or to make any representations with respect to the Series 2004A Bonds, other than the information and representations contained
in this Official Statement. If given or made, such information or representations must not be relied upon as having been authorized by the
Authority, the University or the Underwriters.

This Official Satement does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy nor shall there be a sale of the Series 2004A
Bonds by any person in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such person to make such offer, solicitation or sale.

Certain information in this Official Statement has been supplied by the University and other sourcesthat the Authority believesarereliable.
The Authority does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information, and such information is not to be construed as a
representation of the Authority.

The University has reviewed the parts of this Official Satement describing the University, the Hospital/Medical Center, the 2004A Project,
the Estimated Sources and Uses of Funds and Appendix B. The University shall certify as of the dates of sale and delivery of the Series 2004A
Bondsthat such partsdo not contain any untrue statements of a material fact and do not omit any material facts necessary to makethe statements
made therein, in the light of the circumstances under which the statements are made, not misleading. The University makes no representation
as to the accuracy or completeness of any other information included in this Official Satement.

References in this Official Satement to the Act, the Resolution, the Series 2004A Resolution and the Loan Agreement do not purport to be
complete. Refer to the Act, the Resolution, the Series 2004A Resol ution and the Loan Agreement for full and complete details of their provisions.
Copies of the Resolution, the Series 2004A Resolution and the Loan Agreement are on file with the Authority and the Trustee.

Theorder and placement of material in this Official Statement, including its appendices, are not to be deemed a determination of relevance,
materiality or importance and all material in this Official Satement, including its appendices, must be considered in its entirety.

Under no circumstances shall the delivery of this Official Statement, or any sale made after its delivery, create any implication that the
affairs of the Authority or the University have remained unchanged after the date of this Official Satement.

IN CONNECTION WITH THE OFFERING OF THE SERIES 2004A BONDS THE UNDERWRITERSMAY OVERALLOT OR EFFECT
TRANSACTIONS THAT STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICES OF THE SERIES 2004A BONDS AT LEVELS ABOVE THOSE
WHICH MIGHT OTHERWI SE PREVAIL IN THE OPEN MARKET. SUCH STABILIZING, IF COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT
ANY TIME.
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PART 1 - INTRODUCTION

Purpose of the Official Statement

The purpose of thisOfficial Statement, including the cover page and appendices, isto provideinformation about the
Authority and the University in connection with the offering by the Authority of $45,000,000 principal amount of its
University of Rochester Revenue Bonds, Series 2004A (the “ Series 2004A Bonds”).

Thefollowing is abrief description of certain information concerning the Series 2004A Bonds, the Authority and
the University. A more compl ete description of such information and additional information that may affect decisions
toinvest inthe Series 2004A Bondsis contained throughout this Official Statement, which should beread initsentirety.
Certain terms used in this Official Statement are defined in Appendix A hereto.

Purpose of the Issue

The Series2004A Bondsarebeingissued (i) to pay the Costs of the 2004A Project, (i) to pay aportion of theinterest
on the Series 2004A Bonds, and (iii) to pay certain Costs of Issuance of the Series 2004A Bonds. See “PART 6 - THE
2004A PROJECT” and “PART 7 - ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS'”

Authorization of Issuance

The Series 2004A Bonds will be issued pursuant to the Resolution, the Series 2004A Resolution and the Act. In
addition to the Series 2004A Bonds, the Resol ution authorizestheissuance of other Series of Bondsto pay costsof one
or moreproj ects, to pay the Costsof | ssuanceof such Seriesof Bondsandto refundall or aportion of Outstanding Bonds
or other notesor bonds of the Authority issued for the benefit of the University. The Bonds permitted to beissued under
the Resolution include Capital Appreciation Bonds, Deferred Income Bonds, Option Bonds and Variable Interest Rate
Bonds. All Bondsissued under the Resolutionwill rank onaparity with each other and will be secured equally andratably
with each other. The Series 2004A Bonds constitute the eighth Series of Bonds to be issued under the Resolution.

The Authority

The Authority is apublic benefit corporation of the State, created for the purpose of financing and constructing a
variety of public-purpose facilities for certain educational and not-for-profit institutions. See “PART 8 - THE
AUTHORITY.”



The Universty

TheUniversity of Rochester (the* University”) isanindependent, coeducational, nonsectarian, nonprofitinstitution
of higher education, research and health care chartered by the Board of Regents of the State. The University islocated
in Rochester, New York. See “PART 4 - THE UNIVERSITY” and “Appendix B - Consolidated Financial Statements
of the University of Rochester and Related Entities (With Independent Auditors' Report Thereon).”

The Hospital/Medical Center

The University Medical Center, an integrated division of the University, consists of Strong Memorial Hospital (the
“Hospital”) and four other divisions. TheHospital isthelargest acute care general hospital in Rochester and servesboth
as ageneral regional/national tertiary care hospital and a specialized referral center for a 14-county area. The Hospital
is currently licensed for atotal of 739 beds. See “PART 5 - THE HOSPITAL/MEDICAL CENTER” and “Appendix B
- Consolidated Financial Statements of the University of Rochester and Related Entities (With Independent Auditors’
Report Thereon).”

The Series 2004A Bonds

The Series 2004A Bonds will be dated their date of delivery and will bear interest from such date, payable each
January 1 and July 1, commencing January 1, 2005, at the rates set forth on the cover page of this Official Statement.
See “PART 3 - THE SERIES 2004A BONDS - Description of the Series 2004A Bonds.”

Payment of the Series 2004A Bonds

The Series 2004A Bonds and all other Bonds which have been or may be issued under the Resolution are special
obligations of the Authority payable solely from the Revenues which consist of certain payments to be made by the
University under the Loan Agreement, which payments are pledged and assigned to the Trustee. The Loan Agreement
isagenera obligation of the University. See “PART 2 - SOURCE OF PAYMENT AND SECURITY FOR THE SERIES
2004A BONDS - Payment of the Series 2004A Bonds.”

Security for the Series 2004A Bonds

The Series 2004A Bonds are secured equally with all other Bonds which have been or may be issued under the
Resol ution by thepl edgeof the Revenues, theproceedsof theBondsand, except asotherwiseprovidedintheResol ution,
all funds and accounts established by the Resol ution and any Series Resol ution other than the Arbitrage Rebate Fund.

TheLoan Agreement isageneral obligation of the University. No security interestinany revenuesor assets of the
University hasbeen granted by the University tothe Authority under the Loan Agreement. However, the University has
granted security interestsin certainrevenuesand assetsof theUniversity to securecertain of theUniversity’ soutstanding
indebtednessother thanthe Bonds. Inaddition, pursuant totheL oan Agreement, theUniversity may incur Debt secured
by alienand pledge of revenuesof the University without grantingto the Authority any security interestinany revenues
to secure the University’s obligations under the Loan Agreement. See “PART 2 - SOURCE OF PAYMENT AND
SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2004A BONDS - Security for the Series 2004A Bonds’ and “- Issuance of Additional
Bonds’ and “PART 4 - THE UNIVERSITY - ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT INFORMATION - University
Indebtedness.”

The Series2004A Bondswill not beadebt of the Statenor will the Statebeliablethereon. The Authority hasnotaxing
power. Neither the State nor the Authority has any responsibility to make payments with respect to the Series 2004A
Bonds except for the Authority’ sresponsibility to make payments from moneys received from the University pursuant
to the Loan Agreement and from amounts held in the funds and accounts under the Resol ution and pledged therefor.

Covenants

The University covenants in the Loan Agreement that it will maintain at all times (i) Available Assets of the
University which will be not less than 200% of the General Liabilities of the University, and (ii) as an asset of the
University, unencumbered, unrestricted securities, the market value of which isat least equal to 120% of the aggregate
principal amount of its outstanding Short Term Debt. The University isrequired to demonstrate compliance with such
covenants by filing quarterly certificates with the Authority. Failure by the University to comply with any of the
foregoing covenantswill not constitute an event of default under the L oan Agreement or the Resolutionif the University



complies with the provisions relating to a Management Consultant as provided in the Loan Agreement. See“PART 2
- SOURCE OF PAYMENT AND SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2004A BONDS - Covenants - Ratio of Available
Assetsto General Liabilities” and “ - Maintenance of Assets.”

TheUniversity also covenantsinthe L oan Agreement that, except to the extent permitted under theLoan Agreement,
itwill not encumber its assetsto secureindebtedness. For asummary of the circumstancesin which the University may
encumber its assets, see “PART 2 - SOURCE OF PAYMENT AND SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2004A BONDS
- Covenants- Limitationon Liens.” Failure by the University to comply with such covenant will constitute an event of
default under the Loan Agreement.

PART 2 - SOURCE OF PAYMENT AND SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2004A BONDS

Setforth belowisanarrativedescription of certain contractual provisionsrelatingto the sour ce of payment of and
security for the Series 2004A Bonds. These provisions have been summarized, and thisdescription doesnot purport to
becompl ete. Referenceshould bemadetotheAct, theLoan Agreement, the Resol utionandthe Series2004A Resol ution.
Copies of the Loan Agreement, the Resol ution and the Series 2004A Resol ution are on file with the Authority and the
Trustee. Seealso“ Appendix C - Summary of Certain Provisions of the Loan Agreement” and“ Appendix D - Summary
of Certain ProvisionsoftheResolution” for amorecompl etestatement of therights, dutiesand obligationsof theparties
thereto.

Payment of the Series 2004A Bonds

The Series 2004A Bonds and all other Bonds which have been or may be issued under the Resolution are special
obligations of the Authority. The principal, Sinking Fund Installments, if any, and Redemption Price of and interest on
the Series 2004A Bonds and all other Bondswhich have been or may beissued under the Resol ution are payable solely
fromthe Revenues, which consist of paymentsto be madeby the University pursuant to the L oan Agreement on account
of the principal, Sinking Fund Installments, if any, and Redemption Price of and interest on the Bonds. The Revenues
and theright to receive them have been pledged to the Trustee for the benefit of the Bondholders.

The Loan Agreement is a general obligation of the University and, except as may otherwise be provided in a
Supplemental Loan Agreement entered into by the Authority and the University in connection with a loan to the
University of proceeds of oneor more Seriesof Bonds, the Loan Agreement requiresthe University to make semi-annual
payments (on May 15 preceding each July 1 and on November 15 preceding each January 1) in amounts sufficient to
pay the interest on and annual payments (on May 15 preceding each July 1) in amounts sufficient to pay the principal
and Sinking Fund Installments, if any, of all Bonds (other than Variable Rate Bonds and Option Bonds) Outstanding
under the Resol ution assuch paymentsbecomedue. Monthly paymentsof amountssufficient to pay interest and annual
payments of amounts sufficient to pay the principal and Sinking Fund Installments, if any, are required with respect to
Variable Rate Bonds and Option Bonds. The L oan Agreement also obligatesthe University to pay, at least 45 dayswith
respect to Bonds other than Variable Rate Bonds and Option Bonds and 15 days with respect to Variable Rate Bonds
and Option Bonds prior to any date on which Bonds are to be called for redemption, the amount, if any, required to pay
the Redemption Price of such Bonds. See “PART 3 - THE SERIES 2004A BONDS - Redemption Provisions.”

The Authority has directed, and the University has agreed, to make such payments directly to the Trustee. Such
payments are to be applied by the Trustee to the payment of the principal, Sinking Fund Installments, if any, and
Redemption Price of and interest on the Bonds.

Security for the Series 2004A Bonds

The Series 2004A Bonds are secured equally with all other Bonds which have been or may be issued under the
Resol ution by thepl edgeof the Revenues, theproceedsof theBondsand, except asotherwiseprovidedintheResol ution,
all funds and accounts established by the Resol ution and any Series Resol ution other than the Arbitrage Rebate Fund.

The Series 2004A Bonds will not be a debt of the State nor will the State be liable thereon. The Authority has no
taxing power. Neither the State nor the Authority has any responsibility to make payments with respect to the Series
2004A Bonds except for the Authority’s responsibility to make payments from moneys received from the University
pursuant to the Loan Agreement and from amounts held in the funds and accounts under the Resolution and pledged
therefor.



The Loan Agreement and the obligation of the University to make payments under the Loan Agreement are general
obligations of the University. The obligations of the University to make payments or cause the same to be made under
the Loan Agreement are complete and unconditional and the amount, manner and time of making such paymentsare not
tobedecreased, abated, postponed or delayedfor any causeor by reason of thehappening or non-happening of any event,
irrespective of any defense or any right of set-off, recoupment or counterclaim which the University may otherwise have
against the Authority, the Trustee or any Bondholder for any cause whatsoever.

No security interestinany revenuesor assets of the University hasbeen granted by the University tothe Authority
under theL oan Agreement. However, the University hasgranted security interestsin certain revenuesand assets of the
University to secure certain of the University’ s outstanding indebtedness other than the Bonds. See“PART 4 - THE
UNIVERSITY - ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT INFORMATION - University Indebtedness,” for a descrip-
tion of such indebtedness of the University secured by certain pledged revenues. In addition, pursuant to the Loan
Agreement, the University may incur certain Debt secured by alien and pledge of revenues of the University without
granting to the Authority any security interest in any revenues to secure the University’s obligations under the Loan
Agreement. See“Covenants-Limitationson Liens’ below. Intheevent of adefault under any debt instrument secured
by such pledged revenues, the holder or trustee under such debt instrument (including the Authority) will havetheright
tocollect aportion or all of such pledged revenues, and apply the revenues so collected to the payment of amountsdue
under such debt instrument. Any revenues so collected and applied will not be available for satisfying any of the
University’s obligations under the Loan Agreement.

Covenants

TheUniversity hasmadeinthelL oan Agreement certain covenantsregarding maintenanceof theratio of itsAvailable
Assetsto its General Liabilities and maintenance of its assets, as more fully described below. Failure by the University
tocomply withany of these covenantswill not constitutean event of default under the Loan Agreement or the Resol ution
if the University complieswiththe provisionsrelating to aManagement Consultant as provided inthe L oan Agreement.
The University has also covenanted in the Loan Agreement that, except to the extent permitted under the Loan
Agreement, it will not encumber its assets to secure indebtedness, as more fully described below. Failure by the
University tocomply withthiscovenant will constitutean event of default under theL oan Agreement and the Resol ution.

Ratio of Available Assetsto General Liabilities

The University has covenanted that it will maintain at all times the ratio of its Available Assets to its General
Liabilities of at least 2.00 to 1.00. As of March 31, 2004, the ratio of the University’s Available Assets to its General
Liabilities was approximately 2.85 to 1.00. The University is required to demonstrate compliance with this covenant
by filing quarterly certificates with the Authority. Failure by the University to comply with this covenant will not
constitutean event of default under the L oan Agreement or the Resolutionif the University complieswiththe provisions
relating to a Management Consultant as provided in the Loan Agreement. See “Appendix B - Consolidated Financial
Statements of the University of Rochester and Related Entities (With Independent Auditors' Report Thereon)” and
“Appendix C - Summary of Certain Provisions of the Loan Agreement - Financial Covenants and Management
Consultant.”

Maintenance of Assets

The University has covenanted that it will at all timesmaintain, asan asset of the University, securitiesderived from
gifts and bequests which are free and clear of any pledge, lien, charge, security interest or other encumbrance, which
are not subject to any statutory, contractual or other restriction, and which have amarket value of at least 120% of the
aggregate principal amount of outstanding Short Term Debt. The University isreguired to demonstrate compliancewith
thiscovenant by filing quarterly certificateswith the Authority. Failureby the University to comply with thiscovenant
will not constitute an event of default under the Loan Agreement or the Resolution if the University complies with the
provisionsrelating to aManagement Consultant as provided in the Loan Agreement. See“Appendix B - Consolidated
Financial Statementsof the University of Rochester and Related Entities (With Independent Auditors’ Report Thereon)”
and “Appendix C - Summary of Certain Provisions of the Loan Agreement - Financial Covenants and Management
Consultant.”

LimitationonLiens

The University has covenanted that it will not issue, assume or guarantee any Debt secured by Liens upon any
Restricted Property or create, incur or assume any Liens on Restricted Property to secure Debt, unless the obligations
of theUniversity under the Loan Agreement are secured equally and ratably with or prior to all other obligations secured



by such Lien, with certain exceptions (the“ Excepted Debt”), including: (i) Liensto secureall or any part of the purchase
priceor cost of construction of Restricted Property acquired or constructed by theUniversity, providedthat, among other
things, the Debt secured by any such Lienisnon-recoursetotheUniversity and theamount of Debt doesnot exceed 95%
of the purchase price or cost of construction; (ii) Lienson Restricted Property existing at the time of acquisition of such
Restricted Property by the University, provided that, among other things the Debt secured by any such Lien is non-
recourse to the University and that the amount of Debt does not exceed 95% of the fair market val ue of such Restricted
Property; (iii) Liens to secure Debt incurred to the Authority or to secure bonds, notes or other obligations of the
Authority; (iv) with the consent of the Authority, Liens upon Restricted Property to secure obligationsincurred by the
University to the issuer of a Liquidity Facility or Credit Facility pursuant to an agreement relating thereto; and (v)
extensions, renewal sor replacementsof any Liensof thetypesreferredtointhe precedingfour clauses. See* Appendix C
- Summary of Certain Provisions of the Loan Agreement - Limitation on Liens.”

Notwithstanding thelimitations set forth in the preceding paragraph, the University may issue, assumeor guarantee
Debt secured by Liensor create, incur or assume Liensto secure Debt if (i) the value of all Restricted Property securing
Debt (other than Restricted Property securing Excepted Debt ) does not exceed 20% of the University’ s total assets or
such higher percentage asthe Authority may consent to, and (ii) the aggregate principal amount of all Debt secured by
Liens (other than Excepted Debt) does not exceed 20% of the University’ stotal assets or such higher percentage asthe
Authority may consent to. 1nno event may the University issue, assume or guarantee any Debt secured by Liensupon
the University’s portfolio of stocks, bonds, notes or other investments or create, incur or assume Liens upon the
University’s portfolio of stocks, bonds, notes or other investments to secure Debt (other than Debt incurred to the
Authority), if at thetime such Debt isissued, assumed or guaranteed or such Lien iscreated, incurred or assumed : (a)
the market value of the University’ s portfolio subject to Liens plusthe proposed Liensto secure such Debt ismorethan
10% (or such higher percentageasthe Authority may consent to) of thetotal valueof theUniversity’ sportfolioless110%
of theprincipal amount of Bondsthen Outstanding, or (b) themarket valueof theUniversity’ sunpledged and unrestricted
portfolio is less than 110% of the principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding. See “Appendix C - Summary of
Certain Provisions of the Loan Agreement - Exempted Transactions.”

In addition to the af orementioned secured indebtedness permitted under the L oan Agreement, the Loan Agreement
permits the University to secure Debt issued by the Authority under any resolution of the Authority other than the
Resolution. Such Debt may be secured with the University’s stocks, bonds, real estate or other assets. Any assets
securing Debt issued under aresolution of the Authority other than the Resolution would not be for the benefit of the
Bondholders under the Resol ution.

Events of Default and Acceleration

Thefollowing are events of default under the Resolution: (i) adefault in the payment of the principal, Sinking Fund
Installment, if any, or Redemption Priceof or interest onany Bond; (ii) adefault by the Authority in the due and punctual
performance of the tax covenants contained in the Resolution, as aresult of which the interest on Bonds of a Seriesis
no longer excludable from gross income under the Code; (iii) a default by the Authority in the due and punctual
performance of any other of the covenants, conditions, agreements and provisions contained in the Bonds or in the
Resolution or any Series Resolution on the part of the Authority to be performed and the continuance of such default
for 30 days after written notice specifying such default and requiring the same to be remedied shall have been given to
the Authority by the Trustee, which may give such noticeinitsdiscretionand shall givesuch noticeat thewritten request
of the Holders of not lessthan 25% in principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds; or (iv) an event of default under the
Loan Agreement shall have been declared and is continuing and all sums payable by the University under the Loan
Agreement have been declared immediately due and payable (unless such declaration has been annulled). Unless
otherwise specified above, an event of default under the Loan Agreement isnot an event of default under the Resol ution.

TheResolution providesthat if an event of default (other than asdescribedin clause (ii) of the preceding paragraph)
occursand continues, the Trustee may, and upon thewritten request of Holders of not lessthan 25% in principal amount
of the Bonds Outstanding, by notice in writing to the Authority, isto declare the principal of and interest on all of the
Bonds Outstanding to be due and payabl e at the expiration of 30 days after such noticeisgiven. At the expiration of 30
daysfrom the giving of such notice, such principal and interest will becomeimmediately due and payable. The Trustee,
with thewritten consent of the Holders of not lessthan 25% in principal amount of Bonds not yet due by their termsand
then Outstanding, will annul such declaration and its consequences under the terms and conditions specified in the
Resolution with respect to such annulment.



Notwithstanding any other provision of the Resol ution to the contrary, upon the Authority’ sfailureto comply with
the covenant described in subclause (ii) of thefirst paragraph under this heading, upon the direction of the Holders of
not lessthan 25% in principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds of the Seriesaffected thereby, the Trusteeisto exercise
therightsand remedies provided to the Bondholders under the Resol ution. However, the Resol ution providesthat in no
event may the Trustee, whether or not it is acting at the direction of the Holders of 25% or more in principal amount of
the Outstanding Bonds of the Series affected thereby, declare the principal of such Series of Bonds, and the interest
accrued thereon, to be due and payableimmediately asaresult of the Authority’ sfailureto comply with such covenant.

TheResol ution providesthat the Trusteeisto give noticein accordance with the Resol ution of each event of default
known to the Trusteeto the Holders of the Bondswithin 30 days after knowledge of the occurrence thereof unless such
default hasbeen remedied or cured beforethegiving of such notice. However, except inthecase of defaultinthe payment
of the principal, Sinking Fund Installment, if any, or Redemption Price of, or interest on, any of the Bonds, the Trustee
is protected in withholding such notice thereof from the Holders if the Trustee in good faith determines that the
withholding of such noticeisin the best interests of the Holders of the Bonds.

Issuance of Additional Bonds

In addition to the Series 2004A Bonds, the Resol ution authorizes the issuance of other Series of Bonds to finance
one or more projects and for other specified purposesincluding to refund Outstanding Bonds or other notes or bonds
of the Authority issued on behalf of theUniversity. TheBondswhich may beissuedinclude Capital Appreciation Bonds,
Deferred Income Bonds, Option Bonds and Variable Interest Rate Bonds.

General

TheSeries2004A Bondswill not beadebt of the Statenor will the State beliablethereon. The Authority hasnotaxing
power. The Authority has never defaulted in the timely payment of principal or sinking fund installments of or interest
on its bonds or notes. See “PART 8 - THE AUTHORITY.”

PART 3 - THE SERIES 2004A BONDS

Setforthbelowisanarrativedescriptionof certainprovisionsrelatingtothe Series2004A Bonds. Theseprovisions
havebeen summarized andthisdescriptiondoesnot pur porttobecompl ete. Refer enceshoul d bemadetotheResol ution,
the Series 2004A Resolution and the Loan Agreement, copies of which are on file with the Authority and the Trustee.
Seealso“ Appendix C - Summary of Certain Provisionsof theLoan Agreement” and“ Appendix D - Summary of Certain
Provisions of the Resolution” for a more complete description of certain provisions of the Series 2004A Bonds.

Description of the Series 2004A Bonds

The Series2004A Bondswill bedated their date of delivery, and will bear interest from such date (payabl e on January
1, 2005 and on each July 1 and January 1 thereafter) at the rates set forth on the cover page of this Official Statement.

The Series 2004A Bonds will be issued as fully registered bonds. The Series 2004A Bonds will be issued in
denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. The Series 2004A Bonds will be registered in the name of
Cede & Co., asnominee of DTC, pursuant to DTC’s Book-Entry Only System. Purchases of beneficial interestsin the
Series 2004A Bonds will be made in book-entry form, without certificates. If at any time the Book-Entry Only System
is discontinued for the Series 2004A Bonds, the Series 2004A Bonds will be exchangeable for other fully registered
Series 2004A Bondsin any other authorized denominations of the same series and maturity without charge except the
payment of any tax, fee or other governmental chargeto be paid with respect to such exchange, subject to the conditions
and restrictions set forth in the Resolution. See “Book-Entry Only System” herein and “Appendix D - Summary of
Certain Provisions of the Resolution.”

Interest on the Series 2004A Bonds will be payable by check mailed to the registered owners thereof. The principal
of the Series 2004A Bonds will be payable in lawful money of the United States of America at the principal corporate
trust office of The Bank of New Y ork, New Y ork, New Y ork, the Trustee and Paying Agent. Aslong asthe Series 2004A
Bonds are registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, such payments will be made directly to DTC. See
“Book-Entry Only System” herein.



Redemption Provisions
The Series 2004A Bonds are subject to redemption as described below.

Optional Redemption

The Series 2004A Bonds maturing on or before July 1, 2014 are not subject to optional redemption prior to maturity.
The Series 2004A Bonds maturing after July 1, 2014 are subject to redemption prior to maturity in any order at the option
of the Authority, asawhole or in part at any time, on or after July 1, 2014, at a price of par plus accrued interest to the
redemption date.

Special Redemption

The Series 2004A Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity at the option of the Authority, in whole or in
part on any interest payment date, at 100% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to the redemption date
(i) from proceeds of a condemnation or insurance award, which proceeds are not used to repair, restore or replace the
2004A Project; and (ii) from unexpended proceeds of the Series 2004A Bonds upon the abandonment of all or aportion
of the 2004A Project due to alega or regulatory impediment. See “PART 5 - THE 2004A PROJECT.”

Mandatory Redemption

In addition, the Series 2004A Bonds are also subject to redemption, in part, on each July 1 of the years and
inthe respective principal amounts set forth below, at 100% of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest
to the date of redemption, from mandatory Sinking Fund Installments which are required to be made in amounts
sufficient to redeem on July 1 of each year the principal amount of Series 2004A Bonds specified for each of the
years shown below:

Series 2004A Term Bonds Series 2004A Term Bonds
Maturing on July 1, 2034 Maturing on July 1, 2039
Sinking Sinking
Fund Fund
Year Installments Year Installments
2026 $1,385,000 2035 $2,150,000
2027 1,455,000 2036 2,260,000
2028 1,525,000 2037 2,375,000
2029 1,605,000 2038 2,495,000
2030 1,685,000 20391 2,625,000
2031 1,765,000
2032 1,855,000
2033 1,950,000
2034t 2,045,000
tFinal maturity.

Selection of Bondsto be Redeemed. I nthe case of redemptionsof Series2004A Bondsat the option of the Authority
or the University, the Authority or the University will select the maturities of the Series 2004A Bonds to be redeemed.
If lessthan all of the Series 2004A Bonds of a maturity are to be redeemed, the Series 2004A Bonds of such maturity
toberedeemed will beselected by the Trustee, by lot, using such method of selectionasthe Trusteeshall consider proper
initsdiscretion. DTC hasinformed the Authority that solong asDTC acts as securitiesdepository for the Series 2004A
Bonds, if less than all of the Series 2004A Bonds of a maturity are called for redemption, the particular Series 2004A
Bonds of such maturity or portions thereof to be redeemed will be selected by lot by DTC and the DTC Participantsin
accordance with their procedures. See “Book-Entry Only System” below.



Notice of Redemption. The Trusteeisto mail acopy of such notice postage prepaid, not lessthan 30 days nor more
than 45 days prior to the redemption date to theregistered owners of any Series 2004A Bondswhich areto beredeemed,
at their last known addresses, if any, appearing on the registration books but such mailing is not a condition precedent
to such redemption and failure to mail such notice to any such registered owners will not affect the validity of the
proceedings for the redemption of such Series 2004A Bond. If directed in writing by an Authorized Officer of the
Authority, the Trustee shall publish or cause to be published such noticein an Authorized Newspaper not lessthan 30
days nor more than 45 days prior to the redemption date, but such publication is not a condition precedent to such
redemption and failure to publish such notice or any defect in such notice or publication will not affect the validity of
the proceedings for the redemption of such Series 2004A Bonds.

If, on the redemption date, moneys for the redemption of the Series 2004A Bonds of like maturity to be redeemed,
together with interest thereon to the redemption date, are held by the Trustee so asto be available for payment of the
Redemption Price, and if notice of redemption hasbeen mailed, theninterest onthe Series 2004A Bonds of such maturity
will cease to accrue from and after the redemption date and such Series 2004A Bonds will no longer be considered to
be Outstanding under the Resolution.

For a more complete description of the redemption and other provisions relating to the Series 2004A Bonds, see
“Appendix D - Summary of Certain Provisions of the Resolution.” Also see “Book-Entry Only System” below for a
description of the notices of redemption to be given to Beneficial Owners of the Series 2004A Bonds when the Book-
Entry Only System isin effect.

Book-Entry Only System

The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, New York, will act as securities depository for the Series
2004A Bonds. The Series 2004A Bondswill beissued asfully-registered securitiesin the name of Cede & Co. (DTC's
partnership nominee), or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One fully-
registered Series 2004A Bond certificate will beissued for each maturity of each Series of the Series 2004A Bonds, each
in the aggregate principal amount of such maturity of such Series, and will be deposited with DTC.

DTC, the world’s largest depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New Y ork Banking
Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New Y ork Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve
System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a “clearing
agency” registered pursuant to the provisionsof Section 17A of the SecuritiesExchange Act of 1934, asamended. DTC
holdsand provides asset servicing for over 2 millionissuesof U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal
debt issues, and money market instruments from over 85 countries that DTC’s participants (“Direct Participants’)
deposit withDTC. DTC asofacilitatesthe post-trade settlement among Direct Partici pants of salesand other securities
transactionsin deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct
Participants accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants
includeboth U.S. and non-U.S. securitiesbrokersand deal ers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain
other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC").
DTCC, inturn, is owned by a number of Direct Participants of DTC and Members of the National Securities Clearing
Corporation, Government Securities Clearing Corporation, MBS Clearing Corporation, and Emerging Markets
Clearing Corporation (NSCC, GSCC, MBSCC and EMCC, also subsidiaries of DTCC), as well as by the New York
Stock Exchange, Inc., the American Stock Exchange LLC, and the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc.
AccesstotheDTC systemisalsoavailabletootherssuchasbothU.S. andnon-U.S. securitiesbrokersand deal ers, banks,
trust companies and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodia relationship with a Direct
Participant, either directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants’). DTC has Standard & Poor’ shighest rating: AAA. The
DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information
about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com.

Purchases of Series 2004A Bondsunder the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will
receiveacredit for the Series 2004A Bondson DTC' srecords. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each
Series 2004A Bond (“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants' records.
Beneficial Ownerswill not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase, but Beneficial Owners are expected
toreceivewritten confirmationsproviding detail sof thetransaction, aswell asperiodic statementsof their holdings, from
the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of
ownershipinterestsinthe Series2004A Bondsareto beaccomplished by entriesmadeonthebooksof Direct and Indirect



Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their
ownership interestsin any Series of the Series 2004A Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for
a Series of the Series 2004A Bonds is discontinued.

Tofacilitate subsequent transfers, all Series 2004A Bonds deposited by Direct Participantswith DTC areregistered
in the name of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized
representative of DTC. The deposit of Series 2004A Bondswith DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co.
or such other nominee do not effect any changein beneficial ownership. DTC hasno knowledge of the actual Beneficial
Ownersof the Series2004A Bonds; DTC' srecordsreflect only theidentity of the Direct Participantsto whose accounts
such Series 2004A Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct or Indirect
Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participantsto Indirect
Participants, and by Direct Participantsand Indirect Participantsto Beneficial Ownerswill be governed by arrangements
among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.

Redemption notices shall besentto DTC. If lessthan all of the Series 2004A Bonds within a maturity of the Series
2004A Bonds are being redeemed, DTC’s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct
Participant in such maturity to be redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor such other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to the Series 2004A
Bonds. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an omnibus proxy (the “Omnibus Proxy”) to the Authority as soon as
possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct
Participants to whose accounts the Series 2004A Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in alisting attached
to the Omnibus Proxy).

Principal, redemption premium, if any, and interest payments on the Series 2004A Bonds will be made to Cede &
Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC'’s practice isto credit
Direct Participants’ accounts upon receipt of funds and corresponding detailed information from the Authority or the
Trusteeonthepayabledateinaccordancewiththeir respectiveholdingsshownonDTC’ srecordsunlessDTC hasreason
to believe that it will not receive payment on the payable date. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be
governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of
customersin bearer form or registered in street name, and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC,
the Trustee or the Authority, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may bein effect from time to time.
Payment of principal, redemption premium, if any, andinterest to Cede & Co., or such other nomineeasmay berequested
by an authorized representative of DTC, is the responsibility of the Authority or the Trustee, disbursement of such
payments to Direct Participants is the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial
Ownersis the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants.

TheAuthority andthe Trusteemay treat DT C (or itsnominee) asthe soleand exclusiveregistered owner of the Series
2004A Bonds registered in its name for the purposes of payment of the principal and redemption premium, if any, of,
or interest on, the Series 2004A Bonds, giving any notice permitted or required to be given to registered owners under
the Resolution, registering the transfer of the Series 2004A Bonds, or other action to be taken by registered ownersand
for all other purposeswhatsoever. The Authority and the Trustee shall not have any responsibility or obligation to any
Direct or Indirect Participant, any person claiming a beneficial ownership interest in the Series 2004A Bonds under or
through DTC or any Direct or Indirect Participant, or any other person which is not shown on the registration books of
the Authority (kept by the Trustee) as being aregistered owner, with respect to the accuracy of any records maintained
by DTC or any Direct or Indirect Participant; the payment by DTC or any Direct or Indirect Participant of any amount
in respect of the principal, redemption premium, if any, or interest on the Series 2004A Bonds; any notice which is
permitted or required to be given to registered owners thereunder or under the conditions to transfers or exchanges
adopted by the Authority; or other action taken by DTC asregistered owner. |nterest, redemption premium, if any, and
principal will be paid by the Trusteeto DTC, or itsnominee. Disbursement of such paymentsto the Direct or Indirect
Participants is the responsibility of DTC and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners is the
responsibility of the Direct or Indirect Participants.

For every transfer and exchange of beneficial ownership of any of the Series 2004A Bonds, a Beneficial Owner may
be charged a sum sufficient to cover any tax, fee or other governmental charge that may be imposed in rel ation thereto.



DTC may discontinue providing its service with respect to a Series of the Series 2004A Bonds at any time by giving
notice to the Authority and discharging its responsibilities with respect thereto under applicable law, or the Authority
may terminate its participation in the system of book-entry transfer through DTC at any time by giving noticeto DTC.
In either event, the Authority may retain another securities depository for a Series of the Series 2004A Bonds or may
direct the Trusteeto deliver bond certificatesin accordancewithinstructionsfrom DTC or itssuccessor. If the Authority
directsthe Trustee to deliver such bond certificates, such Series 2004A Bonds of a Series may thereafter be exchanged
for an equal aggregate principal amount of Series 2004A Bonds of a Seriesin any other authorized denominations and
of the same maturity as set forth in the Resolution, upon surrender thereof at the principal corporate trust office of the
Trustee, who will then be responsible for maintaining the registration books of the Authority.

Unless otherwise noted, certain of the information contained in the preceding paragraphs of this subsection
“Book-Entry Only System” has been extracted from information given by DTC. Neither the Authority nor the Trustee
makes any representation as to the completeness or the accuracy of such information or asto the absence of material
adverse changesin such information subsequent to the date hereof.

NEITHER THE AUTHORITY NOR THE TRUSTEE WILL HAVE ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR OBLIGA-
TIONS TO SUCH DTC PARTICIPANTS, INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS, OR THE PERSONS FOR WHOM THEY
ACT AS NOMINEES WITH RESPECT TO THE PAYMENTS TO OR THE PROVIDING OF NOTICE FOR SUCH
DTC PARTICIPANTS, INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS, OR THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS. PAYMENTS MADE TO
DTC OR ITS NOMINEE SHALL SATISFY THE AUTHORITY’S OBLIGATION UNDER THE ACT AND THE
RESOLUTION TO THE EXTENT OF SUCH PAYMENTS

So long as Cede & Co. isthe registered owner of the Series 2004A Bonds, as nominee for DTC, references herein
to the Bondholders or registered owners of the Series 2004A Bonds (other than under the captions “PART 11 - TAX
EXEMPTION” and “PART 16 - CONTINUING DISCLOSURE” herein) shall mean Cede & Co., as aforesaid, and shall
not mean the Beneficial Owners of the Series 2004A Bonds.
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Principal and Interest Requirements

The following table sets forth the amounts required to be paid by the University during each twelve month period
ending June 30 of theyears shown below for the payment of (i) the principal of the Series 2004A Bonds payable onthe
succeeding July 1, theinterest on the Series 2004A Bonds payable on January 1 of such year and onthe succeeding July
1, and total debt serviceon the Series 2004A Bonds, (ii) debt service on other outstanding indebtedness for which the
University isobligated, and (iii) total debt service on all indebtedness for which the University is obligated, including
the Series 2004A Bonds.

Debt Service on University Indebtedness

Series2004A Bonds

Other Total
Year University University
Ending I nterest Debt Debt
June30 Principal Payments Total Service * Service
2005 $465,000 $1,873,635 $2,338,635 $45,010,495 $47,349,130
2006 560,000 2,197,554 2,757,554 45,189,059 47,946,613
2007 575,000 2,180,754 2,755,754 38,131,368 40,887,122
2008 600,000 2,160,629 2,760,629 36,698,002 39,458,631
2009 620,000 2,139,629 2,759,629 36,120,453 38,880,082
2010 645,000 2,114,829 2,759,829 26,240,578 29,000,407
2011 670,000 2,089,029 2,759,029 34,089,822 36,848,851
2012 705,000 2,055,529 2,760,529 33,778,508 36,539,037
2013 740,000 2,020,279 2,760,279 32,590,354 35,350,633
2014 775,000 1,983,279 2,758,279 33,068,441 35,826,720
2015 815,000 1,944,529 2,759,529 33,142,193 35,901,722
2016 855,000 1,903,779 2,758,779 46,009,580 48,768,359
2017 890,000 1,867,869 2,757,869 31,919,799 34,677,668
2018 930,000 1,830,044 2,760,044 32,042,056 34,802,100
2019 975,000 1,783,544 2,758,544 31,873,535 34,632,079
2020 1,025,000 1,734,794 2,759,794 29,748,341 32,508,135
2021 1,075,000 1,680,981 2,755,981 29,649,640 32,405,621
2022 1,135,000 1,624,544 2,759,544 22,764,932 25,524,476
2023 1,195,000 1,564,956 2,759,956 22,631,528 25,391,484
2024 1,255,000 1,502,219 2,757,219 21,401,470 24,158,689
2025 1,320,000 1,436,331 2,756,331 19,503,920 22,260,251
2026 1,385,000 1,373,631 2,758,631 11,884,917 14,643,548
2027 1,455,000 1,304,381 2,759,381 11,883,536 14,642,917
2028 1,525,000 1,231,631 2,756,631 3,834,218 6,590,849
2029 1,605,000 1,155,381 2,760,381 3,794,830 6,555,211
2030 1,685,000 1,075,131 2,760,131 3,742,553 6,502,684
2031 1,765,000 990,881 2,755,881 3,680,662 6,436,543
2032 1,855,000 902,631 2,757,631 2,273,200 5,030,831
2033 1,950,000 809,881 2,759,881 2,265,486 5,025,367
2034 2,045,000 712,381 2,757,381 - 2,757,381
2035 2,150,000 610,131 2,760,131 - 2,760,131
2036 2,260,000 499,944 2,759,944 - 2,759,944
2037 2,375,000 384,119 2,759,119 - 2,759,119
2038 2,495,000 262,400 2,757,400 - 2,757,400
2039 2,625,000 134,531 2,759,531 - 2,759,531

* Interest onthe Series2003 Bondsisassumedto accrueat the fixed payment rateof 3.97% per annumunder therel ated swaps.
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PART 4 - THE UNIVERSITY

GENERAL INFORMATION

General

TheUniversity of Rochester, founded in 1850, isan independent, nonprofit institution of higher education, research,
and health care located in Rochester, New York. It is a coeducational, nonsectarian university, accredited and
incorporated under the authority of the Board of Regents of the State. The University also includes, among other
operating divisions or entities, Strong Memorial Hospital, which is a part of the University Medical Center described
below. TheUniversity isgoverned by aBoard of Trusteesand derivesitsincomefromtuition, fees, patient carerevenues,
endowment, grants from private foundations and government, and from gifts from friends, alumni, corporations and
other private philanthropies.

The University iscomprised of seven schools and colleges offering programs which range from the undergraduate
throughthepostdoctoral level. Itisamember of the Association of American Universitiesandisaccredited by theMiddle
States Association of Collegesand Schools. Inaddition, itsvarious professional and graduate programs are separately
accredited by their respective professional associations, including the Accreditation Board of Engineering and
Technology, the National League for Nursing, the National Association of Schools of Music, the American Medical
Association, the American Psychol ogical Association, and the American Assembly of Collegiate Schools of Business.
The Margaret Warner Graduate School of Education and Human Development is accredited by the New York State
Education Department.

Academic programs include the humanities, social sciences, natural sciences and the professional fields of
engineering, education, management, music, medicine and nursing. These programs presently are staffed by afull-time
tenure-track faculty of approximately 1,000 men and women. Inaddition to itsregular academic sessions, whichinclude
two regular semesters and special summer sessions, each school offers courses for part-time students.

The University’ s seven academic units plusits Memorial Art Gallery are located on five campuses. The largest of
these is the River Campus, overlooking the Genesee River and housing four of the University’s schools and colleges:
the College of Artsand Sciences and its School of Engineering and Applied Science (collectively, the “ College”), the
Margaret Warner Graduate School of Education and Human Devel opment, and the William E. Simon Graduate School
of Business Administration. In addition to the sixteen academic buildings housing these units, the River Campus
includestwenty-two residential and dining halls, five athletic facilities, the Interfaith Chapel, and admini strative support
buildings.

The University Medical Center (also referred to asthe “Medical Center”), adjoining the River Campus, houses the
School of Medicine and Dentistry, the School of Nursing, the Eastman Dental Center, and Strong Memorial Hospital,
which is described in more detail in “PART 5 - THE HOSPITAL/MEDICAL CENTER.” The Medical Center Strategic
Plan, adopted by the University’ sBoard of Trusteesin 1996, resulted in the creation of the Aab Institutefor Biomedical
Research, recruitment through 2002-03 of 74 faculty members in the School of Medicine and Dentistry, and the
construction of two biomedical research facilities. During the 2002-03 fiscal year, research funding from the National
Institutes of Health totaled $129 million.

The Eastman School of Music, located in downtown Rochester, hasits own academic and auxiliary servicebuildings
which contain special facilitiesfor theinstruction, research, practice and performance of music. The 3,100-seat Eastman
Theater and the 460-seat KilbournHall, bothintegral partsof the Eastman School, are used for performancesby Eastman
School groups and by the community’s major orchestras and visiting artists. A 16-story residence hall provides
on-campus housing for approximately 370 students.

The Memorial Art Gallery, which is owned and operated by the University, houses a permanent collection of
paintings by American and European masters, aswell as sculpture and decorative arts, and offers arts and craft classes
for adults and children.

The University’s library system contains more than 3 million printed volumes and subscribes to approximately
12,000 current periodicals and other serial publications. The system includesthe Edward G. Miner Library, serving the
Medical Center, and the Sibley Music Library, one of the largest academic music libraries in the western hemisphere,
serving the Eastman School of Music. The University is a member of the Association of Research Libraries.
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Other special facilities and programs include the Center for Optoelectronics and Imaging, a 120,000 square foot
researchfacility; the C.E.K. MeesObservatory, |ocated south of Rochester; the specialized |aboratoriesand shopsof the
Instituteof Optics; andtheLaboratory for Laser Energetics. TheUniversity’ sLaboratory for Laser Energeticsisaunique
national resource. Establishedin 1970 asacenter for theinvestigation of theinteraction of intenseradiation with matter,
the laboratory has the five-fold mission of (1) conducting implosion and basic physics experiments in support of the
National Inertial Confinement Fusion Program; (2) developing new laser and materials technologies; (3) providing
graduate and undergraduate education in electro-optics, high-power lasers, high-energy-density physics, plasma
physics, and nuclear fusion technology; (4) operating the National Laser Users' Facility; and (5) conducting research
and devel opment in advanced technol ogy rel ated to high-energy-density phenomena. A planned upgrade of thefacility
called the Omega Enhanced Performance Project is intended to ensure the long-term viability of the laboratory, alow
for advances in fusion research, and permit exploration of new and exciting physics. The William E. Simon Graduate
School of Business Administration, which operates the Bradley Policy Research Center, also offers cooperative
programs with Nyenrode University in the Netherlands and The University of Bern in Switzerland.

Governance

The University’s Board of Trustees (the “Board”) consists of not more than 42 persons, as from time to time
determined by the Board. Each is selected to serve aterm of five years, renewable for an additional five years. Regular
meetings of the Board are held during the week preceding the annual Commencement and at other times during each

year in the fall and winter, as determined by the Board. The current members of the Board are as follows:

Richard T.Aab
Chairman, USLEC Corp and
Generd Partner, Melrich Associates

Ernest A.Bates,M .D
Chairman and CEO
American Shared Hospital Services

Joel S.Beckman *
Managing Partner
Greenbriar Equity Group LLC

LaurenceH.Bloch*
Chairman
TransWestern Publishing Co., L.P.

ShellaE. Blumstein

Mead Professor of Cognitive and
Linguistic Sciences

Brown University

UrsulaM.Burns
President, Business Group Operations
Xerox Corporation

William M. Car penter *
Managing Director
Unicorp Ventures

Steven Chu
Director
Lawrence Berkeley National Lab

Launcelot F. Drummond
Senior Vice President and
Transaction ServicesExecutive
Bank of America, N.A.

BarryW.Florescue
CEO and Chairman of the Board
Marietta Corporation, and

CFG, BMD, and BFMA

Roger B. Friedlander *
Retired, Staples, Inc.

Jerry Gardner *

President
C.A. Gardner & Associates

* Member of the Executive Committee.

MyraGelband *
Retired Senior Editor
Sportslllustrated

Robert B. Goergen
Chairman
Blyth,Inc.

Gwen Médtzer Greene
AssociateDirector
Bear, Stearns & Co., Inc.

Edmund A.Hajim
Chairman and CEO
MLH Capital, LLC

Alan F. Hilfiker
Partner
Harter, Secrest, and Emery

Robert H.Hurlbut
President
Hurlbut Trust

ThomasH. Jackson *
Presidentand CEO
University of Rochester

Michael E. Jones
Managing Director
Clover Capital Management

LouisG.Lange,M.D.*
Chairman and CEO
CV Therapeutics

Gail AnnLione
Vice President, Secretary

and General Counsel
Harley-Davidson Motor Company

Joseph P. Mack *
President
MT Devel opment Co.

BalaS.Manian
ReaMetrixInc.

Barry M. Meyer
Chairman & Chief Executive
Warner Brothers, Inc.

Tt Thefirm of Nixon Peabody LL P serves as counsel to the University.
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Cathy E.Minehan*
Presidentand CEO
Federal Reserve Bank of Boston

Robert M. Osiei *
VicePresident
J. P. Morgan Securities, Inc.

FrancisL.Price
CEO
Q3Industries

ThomasS. Richards
Retired Chairman, President and CEO
RGS Energy Group

Hugo F. Sonnenschein *
President Emeritus and Professor
University of Chicago

Peter D. Standish
Partner, Retired
Well, Gotshal & Manges

Raymond C. Stark
Retired VP Six Sigma& Productivity
Honeywell

Danny R. Wegman
President
Wegmans Food Markets, Inc.

Ralph R. Whitney, Jr.*
Chairman
Hammond, Kennedy, Whitney & Co.

Carl C.Williams*
Retired Principa Group

Nathaniel Wisch, M .D.
Physician, Private Practice and
Assoc. Clinical Professor of Medicine
Mount Sinai School of Medicine,
Adjunct Professor of Medicine
New Y ork University School of Medicine
Chief of Hematology, L enox Hill Hospital

G. Robert Witmer, Jr.*
Partner (Attorney)
Nixon Peabody LLPT



The Board has thirteen standing Committees: Academic Affairs, Audit and Risk Assessment, Compliance and
Compensation, Development, Executive, External Affairs, Facilities, Financial Planning, Health Affairs, Investment,
Nominations and Board Practices, Personnel and Student Affairs. Between meetings of the Board, the Executive
Committee exercises the powers of the Board in all matters except those specifically requiring action of the full Board
pursuant to the Bylaws, e.g., the granting of degrees, removals from office, election of trustees, and the amendment,
alteration or repeal of the Bylaws.

The Board has delegated certain authority and responsibility for managing two divisions of the University, Strong
Memorial Hospital and Eastman Dental Center, to the Medical Center Board, subject to powers expressly retained by
the Board. The Medical Center Board currently has 44 members. This includes the President, the Provost, the Senior
Vice President and Vice Provost for Health Affairs, the Medical Center Vice President and Chief Operating Officer, the
Medical Center Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Hospital,
the Dean of the School of Medicine and Dentistry, the Dean of the School of Nursing, the Director of the University of
Rochester Medical Faculty Group, the Director of the Eastman Dental Center, two Department Chairs of clinical
departmentsfrom the School of Medicine and Dentistry, one member of the community-based faculty from the Medical
Staff, several University Trustees, and individuals from the community, all of whom are appointed by the Board. A
representative of the Friends of Strong (the Hospital’s volunteer organization) serves as an ex-officio, non-voting
member. TheMedical Center Board operatesunder by-lawsapproved by the Board and reportsregularly tothe Trustees
concerning the operation of the Hospital and Eastman Dental Center. Express approval of the Board isrequired before
actionistaken by theMedical Center Board whichwould (1) resultinacall uponthefinancial resourcesof the University
not dedicated for the support of the Hospital or the Eastman Dental Center, (2) have a major impact on University
academic programs, or (3) contravene policies of the University established by the Board.

Administration

The University is administered on a day-to-day basis by the President and his administrative staff. The principal
officers of the University as of July 1, 2004 are:

Thomas H. Jackson, President and Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Jackson was appointed President of the University
of Rochester on July 1, 1994. Before he became the University’s ninth President, Mr. Jackson was Vice President and
Provost of the University of Virginia, which he first joined in 1988 as Arnold H. Leon Professor of Law and Dean of
Virginia's School of Law. He had been Professor of Law at Harvard from 1986 to 1988 and served on the Stanford
University faculty from 1977 to 1986. A graduate of Williams College, Mr. Jackson earned his law degree from Yae
University in 1975. He first clerked for the U.S. District Court Judge Marvin E. Frankel in New York in 1975-76, and
then for Supreme Court Justice (now Chief Justice) William H. Rehnquist in 1976-77. While on leave from Stanford,
he was an associate at the San Francisco law firm of Heller, Ehrman, White & McAuliffe from 1979 to 1981, and
remained as special counsel from 1981 to 1986. He isthe author of bankruptcy and commercial law texts used in law
schoolsacrossthe country. Mr. Jackson has announced hisretirement effective June 30, 2005 and asearchis currently
underway for his successor.

Charles E. Phelps, Provost. Mr. Phelps joined the University in 1984 as Director of the Public Policy Analysis
Program, a graduate program offered by the Department of Political Science, in conjunction with the Department of
Economics. From 1989 through 1994 he served as Chair of the Department of Community and Preventive Medicine
inthe School of Medicineand Dentistry. In 1994, Mr. Phel pswas appointed to his current positionin which he oversees
the entire academic activity of the University, including all teaching and research in each of the University’s seven
schools. Prior to joining the University, Mr. Phelps worked at the RAND Corporation from 1971 to 1984 as Staff
Economist, Senior Staff Economist and (in hislast 5 yearsthere) as Director of RAND’ s Program on Regulatory Policies
and Ingtitutions. He received a Bachelor of Arts degree in hospital administration (1968) and a Ph.D. in business
economics (1973) from the University of Chicago. Mr. Phelps has authored numerous books, articles, chapters, reviews
and reports on the economics of health care.
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Paul Burgett, Vice President and General Secretary. Mr. Burgett joined the University in 1981 as the Dean of
Students at Eastman School of Music, became Vice President and University Dean of Studentsin 1987 and assumed his
current position in 2001. Prior to this position, Mr. Burgett was the Executive Director of Hochstein Memorial Music
School from 1970 to 1972, music teacher in the Greece Central School District from 1973 to 1977, and Assistant
Professor of Music at Nazareth College from 1976 to 1981. He received a Bachelor of Music (1968), Master of Arts
(1972) and Ph.D. in music education (1976) from the Eastman School of Music. Mr. Burgett is a former Chairman of
the Board of Trustees of the Margaret Woodbury Strong Museum and serves on the Board of Directors of the Urban
League of Rochester. He is Chairman of the National Advisory Board of the Center for Black Music Research at
Columbia College, Chicago.

Ronald J. Paprocki, Senior Vice President for Administration and Finance and Chief Financial Officer. AsChief
Financial Officer, Mr. Paprocki isresponsible for the University’s financial operations as well as budgeting, planning,
and thetreasury function. He overseesthe University Budget Office, Finance Office (including the offices of Controller,
Accounts Payable, Financial Reporting and Analysis, Payroll and Employee Record Center, and Sponsored Program
Accounting), Internal Audit Office and Treasury Management. Heisin charge of the University’ s administrative and
support operations including Facilities and Services, Human Resources, Purchasing and Auxiliary Operations, and
Research and Project Administration. He also oversees Planning and Project Administration. In addition to in-depth
experience in the financial arena, histhirty plusyears at the University have provided him with an intimate knowledge
of the University’ s programs aswell as broad experience in administrative support and student service areas. Hejoined
the central administration in 1986 after serving as chief administrative officer for the College of Artsand Sciences. Mr.
Paprocki is aPhi Beta Kappa graduate of the University of Rochester in the class of 1969. He also holdsan MBA from
the University’ s William E. Simon Graduate School of Business Administration. He has served on various community
boards and committees and is currently a member of the Mayor’s Stewardship Council of the City of Rochester.

C. McCollister Evarts, M.D., Senior VicePresident and Vice Provost for Health Affairs; Medical Center and Strong
Health System Chief Executive Officer. Named to the position in September 2003, Dr. Evarts previously served as CEO
of theMilton S. Hershey Medical Center and Senior Vice President and Dean of PennsylvaniaState University’ sCollege
of Medicine. During histenure there beginning in 1987, Dr. Evarts presided over the expansion of clinical services, the
tripling of both the organization’ sfaculty anditsresearch funding, the construction of aseven-story biomedical research
facility, and theinitiation of a new medical school curriculum. A graduate of Colgate University and the University of
Rochester School of M edicineand Dentistry, hecompleted hisinternship andresidency in orthopaedic surgery at Strong
Memorial Hospital. In 1964, he joined the Cleveland Clinic Foundation and, over the next decade, headed that
institution’ s orthopaedic residency training program and ultimately served as chair of its Department of Orthopaedics.
Hereturnedto the University of Rochester in 1974 aschair of orthopaedics, DorrisH. Carlson Professor of Orthopaedics,
and Orthopaedist-in-Chief at Strong Memorial Hospital.

DouglasW. Phillips, Senior VicePresident for Institutional Resources. Mr. PhillipsjoinedtheUniversity in October
2000. He was previoudly Treasurer of Williams College, where he was employed from 1986 until leaving to join the
University. Prior to 1986, he spent five years as the manager of investment administration for Princeton University and
two years as afinancial analyst with Management Planning, Inc. in Princeton. Mr. Phillips oversees the management
of the University’s endowment and provides strategic oversight of the University’s development and advancement
programs, including the cultivation of major donors. Mr. Phillips was awarded a Bachelor of Arts degree from Rutgers
College, Rutgers University, in 1980 and an MBA from Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute in 1991.

Sue S Sewart, Esq., VicePresident and General Counsel. Ms. Stewart, appointedin 2003, isawell-known specialist
in legal affairs for educational institutions and other non-profit organizations. A graduate of Wellesley College and
Georgetown Law School, sheretired from Nixon Peabody in 2001 after 33 yearswith the firm, the last three as managing
partner of the Rochester office. For many years the primary outside counsel for the University aswell as several other
educational institutions, her practice concentrated on such legal issuesrelating to educational institutionsas corporate
structure and governance, tax-exempt status, fundraising, student affairs, academic affairs, employee relations, risk
management, intellectual property, finance, and medical-school affairs. She has served on a number of community
organization boards, and her many awardsinclude the 1999 Athena Award from the Greater Rochester Metro Chamber
of Commerce, the 2001 Distinguished Volunteer Service Award from the United Neighborhood Centers of Greater
Rochester, and the 2003 Alexis de Tocqueville Award from United Way of Greater Rochester.
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OPERATING INFORMATION

Student Enrollment
The following table shows enrollments at the University for the past five academic years.

ENROLLMENT SUMMARY

Fall Enrollment, Full-time and Part-time
Matriculated and Non-Matriculated Students

Full-Time Part-Time

Graduate Graduate
Academic Under- and Non- Under- and Non- Grand
Year Graduate Professional Degree Total Graduate Professional Degree Total Total
1999-00 4,300 2,554 46 6,900 145 578 604 1,327 8,227
2000-01 4,243 2,419 44 6,706 143 672 680 1,495 8,201
2001-02 4,436 2,525 38 6,999 131 676 684 1,491 8,490
2002-03 4,439 2,755 40 7,234 118 616 657 1,391 8,625
2003-04 4,353 2,820 42 7,215 108 572 622 1,302 8,517

Thefollowing table sets forth the full-time enrollment of matricul ated undergraduate and graduate students for the
2003-04 academic year by division.

2003-04 Full-Time Enrollment
By Academic Division

Academic Division Underaraduate Graduate Total
The College

Artsand Sciences 3,595 650 4,245

School of Engineering and Applied Sciences 225* 284 509
Margaret Warner Graduate School of Education

and Human Development - 107 107
William E. Simon Graduate School

of Business Administration - 528 528
School of Medicine and Dentistry - 846 846
School of Nursing 56 41 97
Eastman School of Music 477 364 841

Totals 4,353 2,820 7,173

*Junior and Seniors.
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Student Recruitment

Thefollowing table setsforth the number of undergraduate and graduate applicationsreceived for admissiontofull-
time and matricul ated part-time study in all schoolsat the University (including transfer students), the number of those
applicants accepted, and the number of accepted applicants who enrolled for each of the past five years.

ADMISSIONS STATISTICS

Undergraduate
% New
Academic % Admits/ New Enrollment/
Year Applications Admits Applicants Enrollment Admits
1999-00 10,214 6,250 61.2 1,378 22.0
2000-01 11,848 5,602 47.3 1,190 21.2
2001-02 11,138 5,500 49.4 1,223 22.2
2002-03 10,165 5,267 51.8 1,159 22.0
2003-04 11,910 5,529 46.4 1,205 21.8
Graduate
% New
Academic % Admits/ New Enrollment/
Year Applications Admits Applicants Enrollment Admits
1999-00 12,650 2,011 15.9 1,071 53.2
2000-01 12,909 2,107 16.3 958 45,5
2001-02 12,009 2,225 18.5 1,107 49.8
2002-03 13,074 2,085 16.0 1,011 48.5
2003-04 13,989 2,256 16.1 1,097 48.6

The University’s student body is composed of students from every state in the United States and from 90 foreign
countries. Approximately 1,350 international students were enrolled in the fall of 2003.

Themean SAT scoresfor entering freshmen at the University continueto besignificantly higher thanthemean scores
for freshmen nationwide. The mean score for University freshmen in the fall of 2003 was 1,309. The national mean
for the sameyear was 1,026. For purposes of comparison, qualitative University datarelating to mean SAT scores and
grade point averagesare based on undergraduate matriculantsin the College. Dataon applicantsto the Eastman School
areomitted becausethesignificant criteriafor admissionstothat divisionareunique. Over thepasttwoyears, thepercent
of the University’ s freshmen in the top quarter of their high school graduating class has been approximately 90%. For
the past two years, one out of every six freshman was either the valedictorian or salutatorian of his/her high school
graduating class. That comparesto one out of ten a decade ago.

Thetablebel ow presentsthe compositemean SAT scoresfor the University’ sincoming freshman classessince 1999
as compared to the national average SAT scores for college-bound high school seniors over the same period.

CompositeM ean ScholasticAptitudeTest Scores
Freshman Class Entering Fall

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
University freshmen 1,308 1,315 1,325 1,312 1,309
National 1,016 1,019 1,020 1,020 1,026
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Student Charges

Tuition, room and board charges and activity fees at the University for the past four years and the current year are
listed below:

STUDENT CHARGES

2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05

Tuition $ 23,130 $ 24,150 $ 25,430 $ 26,900 $ 28,250
Room 4,720 4,885 5,054 5,250 5,485
Board 3,040 3,300 3,450 3,520 3,580
Mandatory Fees 565 604 637 673 732
Total $ 31,455 $ 32,939 $ 34,571 $ 36,343 $ 38,047
Mandatory Fees
Health Fee $ 390 $ 429 $ 462 $ 498 $ 522
Activity Fee 175 175 175 185 210

Student Financial Aid

In the academic year 2002-03 the University administered student aid fundstotaling $87,850,000. Scholarship funds
provided by the University from its own resources assisted approximately 90% of the undergraduates.
University-administered programs for the last five academic years are outlined below:

SOURCES OF SCHOLARSHIP AND GRANT AID
(dollarsin thousands)

Academic University State Federal Other
Year Scholarships Grants Grants Awards Total
1998-99 $68,273 $2,620 $3,260 $4,938 $79,091
1999-00 70,444 2,586 3,386 5,402 81,818
2000-01 72,313 2,144 2,942 5,516 82,915
2001-02 73,827 2,163 3,250 5,836 85,076
2002-03 76,491 1,808 3,148 6,403 87,850

In addition to the programs outlined above, students are eligible for Federal Work Study funds, federal loans, and
private loan programs. The University also offers tuition pre-payment, monthly installment and financing programsto
help students and their parentsfinance the cost of the students’ education.

The University benefits from a State program through which State aid (“Bundy Aid”) is allocated to independent
colleges and universities in the State based on the number of academic degrees conferred during the previous year.
During the 2003-04 academic year, the University received $1,160,560 from the program.

Further Stateand federal aid dependsupon theannual appropriationsby the State L egislatureand Congress, andthe
ability of the Stateandthefederal governmentsto pay theamountsappropriated. Neither theUniversity nor the Authority
can give any assurance that the various federal and State programs will be continued. The reduction or elimination of
the programs could have a material adverse effect on the University.
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Labor Relations

The faculty and staff at the University are provided with an extensive range of employee benefits, including basic
hospital, surgical and medical insurance, major medical and dental plans, long-term disability coverage, group life
insurance, travel -accident insurance, tuition for faculty, staff and dependents, and University health services, aswell as
the retirement plan outlined below.

The University hasfive separate bargaining units with three unions covering about 1,517 of itsemployees. District
1199, Hospital and Health Care Employees, SEIU/AFL-CIO negotiates two contracts. One covers approximately 1,023
Hospital service employees and expires in October 2004. The other covers approximately 216 River Campus service
employees and expires in October 2004. The Security Officers Association negotiates one contract covering
approximately 67 security personnel. The current contract expires on November 16, 2004. Although negotiations to
extend theseagreementshavenot yet begun,nounusual or significantissueshavethusfar beenraised andtheUniversity
fully expectsthat the contracts will be extended. The International Union of Operating Engineers (“|UOE”) negotiates
one contract covering the Medical Center facilities maintenance trades employees, River Campus maintenance trades
employees and a separate bargaining unit covering employees in the University’s central heating plant operation.
IUOE's contract covers approximately 211 employees and expires in August 2006. The University has no notice of a
future strike by unions covering its employees.

Faculty

The University’s faculty includes 44 fellows of the American Physical Society, 15 fellows of the Optical Society
of America, 13 fellows of the American Academy of Arts and Sciences, seven fellows of the National Academy of
Science, and three members of the American Academy of Nursing. Many others are members of the leading academic
societies of their fields.

The University’s faculty have received atotal of 27 John S. Guggenheim Fellowshipsin the past 19 years. Inthe
past 15 years faculty have won six National Endowment for the Humanities Senior Fellowships, and 21 Alfred P. Sloan
Research Fellowships.

Thefaculty includes arecipient of aJohn D. and Catherine T. MacArthur Foundation Fellowship, better known as
the® geniusgrant,” onerecipient of themost prestigioushonor of the Optical Society of America, theFredericlvesmedal;
aDistinguished Fellow of the American Economic Association, an honor that goesonly to two or three economistseach
year; and two recipients of the American Physical Society’s Panofsky Prize in Experimental Particle Physics. The
American Political Science Association annually awards a prize named in honor of Rochester’s Richard F. Fenno, Jr.,
professor emeritus of political science.

FACULTY PROFILE

Percent of
Full-Time Tenure-Track

Academic Tenure-Track Part-Time Total Faculty

Year Faculty Faculty Faculty* Tenured
1999-00 1,013 512 1,525 40.0
2000-01 1,006 519 1,525 43.0
2001-02 1,018 548 1,566 43.0
2002-03 1,090 559 1,649 44.1
2003-04 1,140 578 1,718 42.0

* Service track and Option A (Clinical) in the School of Medicine and Dentistry are non-tenure track and are not
included.
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT INFORMATION

Financial Reporting

The consolidated financial statements of the University are prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. They include the accounts
of all of theintegrated divisionsof the University and itsrelated entities, including Strong Partners Health Systems, Inc.
(and its affiliates), Eastman Dental Center Foundation, Inc., Strong Home Care Group (and its subsidiaries) and the
Research Foundation of the University of Rochester. See “Related Entities” below. All significant interorganization
balances and transactions have been eliminated.

TheUniversity reportsitsnet assetsand changestherein according tothreeclassifications: unrestricted, temporarily
restricted and permanently restricted, based upon the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

Permanently restricted - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that they be maintained permanently by
the University. Generally, the University may use theincome and gainsderived from the donated assets, restricted only
by thedonors' stipulations.

Temporarily restricted - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may or will be met either by actions
of the University and/or the passage of time. When adonor restriction expires, that is, when astipul ated timerestriction
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets
and reported in the statement of activities as net assets rel eased from restrictions.

Unrestricted - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations, and that are generally available for
support of the University’s activities, with certain limitations, as follows:

. Usesof certain unrestricted net assets are committed through contractual agreements. Such amountsprimarily
consist of required trusteed bal ancesunder long-term debt agreements, and matching fundsunder student |oan programs
of the Federal Government. In addition, grants and contracts for the performances of certain services or functions are
reported in the unrestricted net asset category

«  Many of the funds which are unrestricted for accounting purposes carry internal designations to specific
divisions of the University, and therefore are not treated operationally as unrestricted funds.

e Certain accumulated net investment gains earned on permanently restricted net assets are included within
unrestricted net assets. 1n accordance with New Y ork State law, the appropriation and spending of such gains, absent
donor directives, are subject to a standard of prudence.

e TheBoardof Trustees, throughvoluntary resol utions, hasset asideportionsof theUniversity’ sunrestricted net
assetsto function asendowment, for property, plant and equi pment purposes, and for other specific operating purposes.

Revenues from sources other than contributions are generally reported as increases in unrestricted net assets.
Contributionsarereported asincreasesin the appropriate category of net assetswith the exception of contributionsfor
which imposed restrictions are met in the same fiscal year in which they are received. Such contributions are included
in unrestricted revenues.

Investment income and gains and |osses on investments are reported asincreases or decreases in unrestricted net
assets unless their useisrestricted by explicit donor stipulations or by law. When such restrictions exist, investment
income, gainsor losses are reported astemporarily or permanently restricted, except when therestrictionsare met inthe
same fiscal year in which the income or gains are earned, in which case, the income and gains are reported within the
unrestricted category.

Expenses are reported as decreases in unrestricted net assets. Expirations of temporary restrictions recognized on
net assets(i.e., thedonor-stipul ated purpose hasbeen fulfilled and/or the stipul ated time period has el apsed) that do not
occur within the same period as revenue recognition are reported as reclassifications from temporarily restricted net
assetsto unrestricted net assets. Temporary restrictions on giftsto acquire long-lived assets are considered metin the
period in which the assets are acquired or placed in service.

Balance Sheet - The consolidated bal ance sheets present the University’ sand itsrelated entities’ assets, liabilities
and net assets as of June 30, 2003 and 2002. During the 2003 fiscal year total assets, net of accumulated depreciation,
remained at $2.711 billion. Total liabilitiesincreased from $811 million to $822 million. The result was adight decrease
in net assets of $11 million.
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Statement of Activities- Theconsolidated statementsof activitiespresent thechangesin net assetsof theUniversity
and itsrelated entities from operating activities and from nonoperating activitiesfor the years ended June 30, 2003 and
2002. Operating revenues and expenses relate primarily to educational and training programs, research activities, and
hospital and patient care activities provided by the University and itsrelated entities. Utilization of investment income
and gains on long-term investments held for endowment and similar purposes under the University’s total return
spending policy is considered operating revenue.

Nonoperating activities consist primarily of investment income and appreciation from long-term investments in
excess of amounts utilized for operations.

Total operating revenuesfor the University and itsrelated entitiesincreased in 2002-03 from $1.570 billion to $1.653
billion. Tota operating expenses rose from $1.527 billion to $1.633 billion. The result was a $20.5 million increase in
net assets from operating activities.

The change in net assets from nonoperating activities - primarily the investment program, including long-term
investment income and gains allocated for operations, amounted to a decrease of $31.8 million.

Statement of Cash Flows - FASB Statement No. 117 amends FASB Statement No. 95, Statement of Cash Flows,
by extending its provisions to not-for-profit organizations. The statement of cash flows divides cash flows into three
categories - net cash provided by (or used in) operating activities, investing activities, and financing activities.

TheUniversity’ sand itsrelated entities’ operating activitiesin 2002-03 provided cash of $40.8 million. Thenet cash
used in investing was $25 million and the net cash used in financing activities was $5.8 million, leaving an overall net
increase in cash of $10 million (from $138.6 million to $148.6 million). Cash provided by operating activities was net
of $17 million transferred to operating investments to obtain higher yields through longer maturity.

Operating Budget

TheUniversity’ sannual operating budget for thefollowingfiscal year isapproved by theBoard at itsspring meeting.
The general financial plan for afull five-year period is reviewed by the Committee on Financial Planning of the Board.
Assumptions and financial projections are devel oped by the administration in conjunction with that committee. Thus,
the operating budget for any given year will have been devel oped by the Board within afive-year planning context with
continuing refinements in the economic estimates and in the programmatic concerns that affect the final budget. The
planning process includes projections of endowment growth, graduate and undergraduate enroliments in the various
schools and colleges of the University, competitive trends that may have disparate effects among the academic units,
wagesand sal ariesand benefits, government and private sponsorship of research, indirect cost recovery ratesand energy
costs. Actual performanceagainst theoperating budget ismonitored by theadministrationandisreportedtotheBoard’ s
Executive Committee on a regular basis.
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Capital Budget

At its spring meeting, the Board also approves a detailed capital budget for the next year along with a capital plan
of projectsproposed for the subsequent two years. Thispermitsthe administration and the Board to planinadvancefor
major projects, to eval uate possible operating budget implicationsand to assessthe University’ sdebt requirementsand
capacity.

Thetable below sets forth the 2005-2007 Capital Plan for the University, including the Hospital. This plan projects
total capital expenditures of approximately $449.8 million. Projects included in the plan may be delayed pending
completion of fundraising efforts, because they have not yet been approved by the Board, are contingent on external
funding, or arenot yet sufficiently well defined. The Capital PlanisaguidetotheUniversity’ scapital spendingintentions
but is subject to adjustment year by year as circumstances change.

CAPITAL PLAN

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS
(dallars in thousands)

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year

2004-2005 2005-2006* 2006-2007* 3-Year Total
SOURCES
Gifts and Grants $ 44,750 $ 38,274 $ 19,600 $102,624
Reserves and Operations 68,901 60,883 55,248 185,032
Debt
Medical Center 19,142 20,610 20,628 60,380
Other 34,417 42,620 24,680 101,717
Total Debt 53,559 63,230 45,308 162,097
Total $167,210 $ 162,387 $120,156 $ 449,753
USES
By Campus:
Eastman School of Music $ 3,429 $ 100 $ 100 $ 3,629
Medical Center 90,634 79,312 70,380 240,326
Memorial Art Galery 114 100 100 314
River Campus 15,147 23,578 36,138 74,863
South Campus 32,245 24,230 330 56,805
University-Wide Projects 25,641 35,067 13,108 73,816
Total $167,210 $162,387 $120,156 $ 449,753
USES
By Type of Project:
Construction $ 45,773 $ 41,403 $ 18,000 $105,176
Renewal & Replacement 22,056 32,152 31,767 85,975
Renovations 21,908 17,105 30,825 69,838
Equipment 47,072 41,845 11,030 99,947
Information Systems 21,704 18,462 18,664 58,830
Mixed Projects** 8,697 11,420 9,870 29,987
Total $167,210 $ 162,387 $120,156 $ 449,753

* Theseyearsincludeprojectscontingent uponfundraising.
**  Primarily acombinationof renovationandequipment.

22



Summary of Financial Information

The following Summary of Activities summarizes the University’ s consolidated revenues and expenses and other
changes for the last three fiscal years. Thissummary is derived from the audited consolidated financial statements of
theUniversity for such periods. It should bereadin conjunctionwiththe University’ sconsolidated financial statements
and the notes thereto, which statements were prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally acceptedin
the United States of America. See“Appendix B - Consolidated Financial Statements of the University of Rochester and
Related Entities (With Independent Auditors' Report Thereon).”

SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES
Fiscal YearsEnded June 30,
(dollarsinthousands)

2001 2002 2003
Operating Revenue:
Tuition and fees $ 166,175 $ 180,184 $ 190,037
Less scholarships and fellowships (72,314) (73,827) (76,491)
Net tuition and fees 93,861 106,357 113,546
State and local appropriations 2,154 1,830 1,937
Gifts and pledges 51,950 52,473 44,579
Grants and contracts 227,835 262,657 278,005
Hospital and faculty practice patient care 875,681 972,499 1,040,185
Auxiliary enterprises 35,760 37,648 40,777
Investment income on cash equivaents 5,351 5,342 5,525
Educational activities 26,244 24,015 24,581
Royalty income 39,565 37,691 31,364
Other sources 4,730 3,225 3,161
Long-term investment income and gains
allocated for operations 64,194 66,189 69,703
Total operating revenue 1,427,325 1,569,926 1,653,363
Operating expenses:
Sdlaries and wages 722,338 770,042 808,269
Fringe benefits 164,474 188,130 212,000
Total compensation 886,812 958,172 1,020,269
Supplies 171,463 197,210 204,993
Business and professional 101,141 108,145 108,840
Utilities 23,261 22,967 24,966
Maintenance and facilities costs 32,325 35,368 42,827
Depreciation expense 99,182 107,754 107,697
Interest Expense 25,955 26,183 24,455
Other 52,170 71,023 98,810
Total operating expenses 1,392,309 1,526,822 1,632,857
Change in net assets from operating activities 35,016 43,104 20,506
Nonoperating activities:
Long-term investment activities:
Investment income 29,390 24,773 24,109
Net depreciation (14,976) (79,359) 30,292
Total long-term investment activities 14,414 (54,586) 54,401
Long-term investment income and gains
allocated for operations (64,194) (66,189) (69,703)
Proceeds from sale of dialysis unit - 19,483 -
Other non-operating health care revenues/ (costs) (216) 5 -
Additional minimum pension liability - - (14,781)
Change in valuation of annuities 1,563 (2,034) (1,768)
Change in net assets from non-operating activities (48,433) (103,321) (31,851)
Change in net assets before cumulative
effect of change in accounting principle (13,147) (60,217) (11,345)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle - 21,183 -
Change in net assets (13,417) (39,034) (11,345)
Beginning net assets 1,952,912 1,939,495 1,900,461
Ending net assets $ 1,939,495 $ 1,900,461 $ 1,889,116
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Related Entities

The consolidated financial statements of the University include the accounts of certain related entities, including
Strong Partners Health System, Inc. (“SPHS") and its affiliates, Eastman Dental Center Foundation, Inc., Strong Home
Care Group and its subsidiaries and the Research Foundation of the University of Rochester. See Appendix B. None
of these related entities are legally obligated to pay debt service on University obligations, including the Series 2004A
Bonds.

The University isthe sole member of SPHS, which controls Highland Hospital of Rochester (“Highland Hospital”)
anditsaffiliates. Highland Hospital anditsaffiliates have debt outstanding which hasbeenincluded inthe University’s
consolidated financial statements; however, under the terms of the affiliation agreement among Highland Hospital,
SPHS and the University, the University hasno legal obligation for the debt of Highland Hospital and its affiliates. For
additional information about Highland Hospital and its affiliates, see “PART 5 — THE HOSPITAL/MEDICAL
CENTER - Affiliated Entities Part of Integrated Delivery System.”

SPHS also has affiliation agreements with The Highlands Living Center, Inc.; Highland Community Devel opment
Corp.; and The Meadows at Westfall, Inc. For additional information about these related entities, see“PART 5—-THE
HOSPITAL/MEDICAL CENTER — Affiliated Entities Part of Integrated Delivery System.”

TheEastman Dental Center Foundation wasformed to hold and managetheinvestment assets of theformer Eastman
Dental Center, which was merged into the University during 1998. Income and assets of this foundation are used to
support oral health, education, and research projects of the University.

The University isthe sole corporate member of Strong Home Care Group (and its subsidiariesthat include Visiting
Nurse Serviceof Rochester and Monroe County, Inc. and Community Careof Rochester). Theseentitiesprovidevisiting
nurse services. For more information about Strong Care Health Group, see “PART 5 - THE HOSPITAL/MEDICAL
CENTER —Affiliated Entities Part of Integrated Delivery System.” The University has guaranteed certain indebtedness
of Strong Home Care Group.

The University isalso the sole corporate member of the Research Foundation of the University of Rochester. The
Research Foundation was formed for the purpose of owning and managing certain intellectual property created by the
University, owning and managinginvestmentsbhased on suchintell ectual property, promoting thetransfer of technology
relating to University-developed intellectual property to business and governmental entitieswhich arein a position to
commercialize and disseminate thisintellectual property for the benefit of the public, and securing fair and reasonable
compensation for the University in consideration for such transfer and licensing.

TheUniversity isalsothesolemember of Rochester Technology Transfer Corporation, doing businessasUniversity
Technology Partners, which was created to foster the creation, retention, expansion and use of technology created or
enhanced by the University.
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University Retirement Plans

Most full-time University employees participatein theretirement plans administered by TIAA/CREF, or in adefined
contribution plan sponsored by the University. Under these plans, the University made contributions of $40.3 million
in 2003 ($37.6 million in 2002), which were vested for the benefit of the participants.

Effective January 1, 1996, the Board approved a postretirement benefit plan, which includes basic medical, major
medical, dental coverage and lifeinsurance. Benefit levelsdiffer for current retirees, current employeeseligibletoretire,
and current employees not eligibleto retire. The accumulated postretirement benefit obligation of $70,623,000, created
asof January 1, 1996 by the enactment of the new plan, is being amortized over 16 years, which isthe average estimated
service lives of plan participants.

Net periodic benefit costs for the years ended June 30, 2003 and 2002 were approximately $13.7 million and $12.7
million, respectively.

The following table presents the plan’s funded status reconciled with amounts recognized in the University’s
consolidated balance sheet at June 30, 2003:

Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003
(dollarsin thousands)

Retirees $ 68,687
Full eligible active plan participants 29,439
Other active plan participants 14,067
Total 112,193

Prior service costs not yet recognized in
net periodic post retirement benefit cost (60,311)
Accrued postretirement benefit liability $ 51,882

Net periodic postretirement benefit cost for the year ended June 30, 2003 includes the following components:

Net Periodic Postretirement Benefit Cost
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003
(dollarsin thousands)

Service cost — benefits earned $ 1,331
Interest cost 7,254
Net Amortization 5,105
Net periodic postretirement benefit cost $ 13,690

For measurement purposes, a 10% annual rate of increase in the cost of covered benefitsis assumed. Anincrease
of 1% in the rate of increase would increase the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation as of June 30, 2003 by
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approximately 3.7% (4.2% as of June 30, 2002) and the aggregate service and interest components of net periodic
postretirement benefit cost by 4.4% (4.2% for 2002). The weighted average discount rate used in determining the
accumulated postretirement benefit obligation was 6.25% at June 30, 2003 and 7.25% at June 30, 2002.

Federal Government Grants and Contracts

The University haslong been acenter for programs of research and training. Federal grants and contracts provide
most of thefundsfor sponsored programs, although additional amountscomefrom other government entities, industry,
foundations and interested individuals. For the year ended June 30, 2003, approximately $205 million was spent on
research funded by federal grants and contracts.

Thefollowingtableshowstheamountsreceived from government grantsand contractsfor each of the past fivefiscal
years:

Total Federal Grant and Contract Program Revenues
Fiscal Years Ended June 30,
(dollarsin thousands)

Federal Agency 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003

Public Health Service (includes NIH) $ 82,905 $ 90,193 $106,293 $124,454 $135,184
Department of Energy 31,563 35,430 33,749 41,158 42,343
National Science Foundation 11,382 9,681 8,196 8,021 8,409
Department of Defense 6,249 7,399 9,617 9,047 9,229
Department of Education 4,978 4,793 4,639 5,856 6,171
National Aeronauticsand 685 1,406 947 1,664 1,244

Space Administration

NEH/NEA 180 72 40 40 81
Other Sponsors 581 1,081 2,084 2,846 2,294
Total $138,523 $150,055 $165,565 $193,086 $204,955

Private Gifts and Endowments

Thefollowing table shows the amounts received by the University as gifts and pledgesin the following categories
for the past five years:

Private Gifts and Endowments
Fiscal Years Ended June 30,
(dollarsinthousands)

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
Unrestricted Net Assets $19,439 $28,791 $27,115 $22,690 $19,317
Temporarily Restricted Net Assets 17,470 23,826 19,579 18,600 17,962
Permanently Restricted Net Assets 14,701 13,023 3,945 9,423 5,401
Total $51,610 $65,640 $50,639 $50,713 $42,680
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The University historically has reported the value of its endowment and similar funds at market value rather than
at cost. Consequently, the value of the endowment reported may fluctuate considerably from year to year. Funds
functioning as endowment are fundswhich the Board, rather than the donors, has committed to invest for earnings. As
such, they may beliquidated and used for operating or capital purposes. Fundsshown as*restricted” must beused only
for the purposes specified by the donors and are not available for general operating or capital purposes.

Net Assts of Endowment Funds
and Funds Functioning as Endowment
Fiscal Years Ended June 30,
(dollarsin thousands)

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
Unrestricted Net Assets $ 861,710 $ 977,671 $ 944,234 $ 848,335 $ 835,100
Temporarily Restricted Net Assets 87,679 108,062 102,516 90,104 88,208
Permanently Restricted Net Assets 129,363 138,591 146,638 152,509 164,676
Total $1,078,752 $1,224,324 $1,193,388 $1,090,948 $1,087,984

The University’s investment program for endowment and similar funds operates under an investment policy
statement and guidelines established by the Board, which delegates direct oversight for the investment program to the
Investment Committee of the Board. The consolidated endowment pool, in which virtually all endowment funds are
placed, is diversified among equities, fixed income, real estate and other investments, both in the United States and
abroad, and is managed by external money managers appointed for the purpose by the Committee. The University
investment managers make limited use of derivatives, generally only for the purpose of hedging currency exposure.

As of March 31, 2004, the market value of the University’s investments was approximately $1.46 billion. The
consolidated financial statements and notes thereto contained in Appendix B to this Official Statement show further
details concerning the valuation of investments, the University’s consolidated financial resources and uses of both
operating and capital funds.

Total Return Plan

The University’s portfolio of endowment and similar funds is managed according to a total return plan. Both
investment performance and endowment spending are subject to continuous review by the Board of Trustees.
Endowment use is measured as a percentage of a five-year moving average. Each year, the Board approves the
endowment spending rate as a part of the budgetary approval process. An ultimate spending target of 5.5% has been
established. The pattern of spending over the past five yearsisasfollows:

Endowment Support of Oper ations
As a Percentage of Five Year

Fiscal Moving Average of
Year Endowment Spending Endowment Market Value
1999-00 $57,171,000 6.9%
2000-01 62,774,000 6.9
2001-02 66,188,000 6.5
2002-03 69,703,000 6.4
2003-04 72,424,000 6.5

University Indebtedness

Non-Authority Indebtedness. Exclusive of various Authority obligations and capital |eases described below, the
outstanding long term indebtedness of the University at June 30, 2003, amounted to $16,962,000 and consisted of the
following:
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1. TheUniversity entered into an agreement with the New Y ork State Urban Development Corporation (“UDC”)
to partialy fund the construction of the University’s Center for Optoelectronics and Imaging (COI) with a loan of
$5,000,000. The agreement requiresthe University to pay theloan principal plusthe cost of issuance for the $6,320,000
bond issue by which the UDC financed the loan. Through June 30, 2003 the University repaid $2,000,000 leaving a
balance outstanding of $3,000,000. The loan is secured by a mortgage on the property. Pursuant to an agreement
authorized by statute, the State of New Y ork leases the COI from the University for the 30-year life of the loan, paying
asrent anamount sufficient to cover theUniversity’ sobligationstotheUDC. TheserentshavebeenassignedtotheUDC
asfurther security for theloan. Rental paymentsby the State are subject to annual appropriation by the StateL egislature.
The University retains possession of the property under asub-lease back from the State at an annual rent equivalent to
one-thirtieth of the sum of the loan principal and the cost of issuance of the UDC bonds.

2.  Pursuanttoanagreement betweenthe University and JPM organ Chase Bank dated June 2000, JPM organ Chase
Bank issued aterm note of $7,000,000 to finance the renovation of the Goergen Athletic Center. The noteisbeing repaid
at an interest rate of LIBOR plus .40% on the unpaid principal balance of the loan through September 2005. Through
June 30, 2003, $850,000 was repaid leaving a balance outstanding of $6,150,000.

3. Pursuant to an agreement between the University and JPM organ Chase Bank dated June 2, 2003, the University
drew on its available revolving line of credit in the amount of $7,812,000 to refinance indebtedness related to Eastman
Place, afacility used partly to house activities of the Eastman School of Music. Proceedsfromthesaleof theUniversity’s
Direct Note Obligations, Series 2003, described bel ow under* Indebtedness Incurred Since June 30, 2003,” wereinturn
used to refinance the amount drawn on the line of credit.

Authority Indebtedness. TheUniversity’ sindebtednesstothe Authority at June 30, 2003 amounted to $370,757,000,
which consisted of the following:

1. Pursuant to aloan agreement and abond resol ution, the Authority issued and sold $150,000,000 of Series 1987
Bonds, of which $1,620,000 was outstanding as of June 30, 2003. Proceeds from the sale of the Series 2003A Bonds,
described below under “ Indebtedness I ncurred Since June 30, 2003,” were used to refund the outstanding Series 1987
Bonds.

2. Pursuant to aloan agreement and abond resolution, the Authority issued and sold $21,245,000 of Series1993A
Bonds, of which $8,895,000 was outstanding as of June 30, 2003. A total of $8,855,000isrecognized onthe University’s
consolidated balance sheet, as the Series 1993A Bonds are recorded net of an unamortized discount of $40,000 at June
30, 2003. Proceedsfrom the sale of the Series 2003B Bonds, described below under “ Indebtedness Incurred Since June
30, 2003,” were used to refund the outstanding Series 1993A Bonds.

3. Pursuant to aloan agreement and abond resol ution, the A uthority issued and sold $94,985,000 of Series 1994
Bonds, of which $77,920,000 was outstanding as of June 30, 2003. A total of $76,452,000 is recognized on the
University’s consolidated balance sheet, as such Series 1994 Bonds are recorded net of an unamortized discount of
$1,468,000 at June 30, 2003. Proceeds from the sale of the Series 2003B Bonds and the Series 2003C Bonds, both
described below under “ Indebtedness I ncurred Since June 30, 2003,” were used to refund Series 1994 Bonds maturing
after July 1, 2004 in the amount of $75,300,000.

4. Pursuant to aloan agreement and abond resol ution, the Authority i ssued and sold $30,575,000 of Series 1994A
Bonds, of which $3,410,000 was outstanding as of June 30, 2003. A total of $3,390,000isrecognized onthe University’s
consolidated balance sheet, as such Series 1994A Bondsare recorded net of an unamortized discount of $20,000 at June
30, 2003. The Series 1994A Bonds are secured by a security interest granted to the Authority pursuant to the loan
agreement in the tuition, room and board, and mandatory student fees received or receivable by the University. The
obligation of the University under the terms of the loan agreement is a general obligation of the University.

5. Pursuant to aloan agreement and a bond resolution, the Authority issued and sold $21,375,000 of Series 1996
Bonds, of which $7,505,000 were outstanding as of June 30, 2003. The obligation of the University under the terms of
the loan agreement is a general obligation of the University. A total of $7,489,000 is recognized on the University’s
consolidated balance sheet, as such Series 1996 are recorded net of an unamortized discount of $16,000 at June 30, 2003.
The Series1996 Bondsaresecured by asecurity interest i nthe pledged revenues consisting of any moneys, income, rents
or revenues received or receivable by the Hospital.

6. Pursuant toaloan agreement and abond resolution, the Authority issued and sold $78,280,000 of Series1997A
Bonds, of which $53,755,000 were outstanding as of June 30, 2003. A total of $54,600,000 is recognized on the
University’s consolidated balance sheet, as such Series 1997A Bonds are recorded net of an unamortized premium of
$845,000 at June 30, 2003. The Series 1997A Bonds are secured by a security interest granted to the Authority pursuant
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totheloan agreementinthetuition, roomand board, and mandatory student feesreceived or receivableby theUniversity.
The obligation of the University under the terms of the loan agreement is a general obligation of the University.

7. Pursuant to aloan agreement and abond resol ution, the Authority issued and sold $131,615,000 of Series 1998A
Bonds, of which $113,475,000 were outstanding as of June 30, 2003. A total of $113,171,000 is recognized on the
University’s consolidated balance sheet, as such Series 1998A Bonds are recorded net of unamortized discount of
$304,000 at June 30, 2003. The Series 1998A Bonds are secured by asecurity interest granted to the Authority pursuant
totheloanagreementinthetuition, roomandboard, and mandatory student feesreceived or receivableby theUniversity.
The obligation of the University under the terms of the loan agreement is a general obligation of the University.

8. Pursuant totheL oan Agreement and the Resol ution, the A uthority issued and sold $17,465,000 of Series1999A
Bonds, of which $17,465,000 were outstanding as of June 30, 2003. A total of $17,318,000 is recognized on the
University’s consolidated balance sheet, as such Series 1999A Bonds are recorded net of unamortized discount of
$147,000 at June 30, 2003. The obligation of the University under the terms of the Loan Agreement is a genera
obligation of the University.

9. Pursuant totheL oan Agreement and the Resol ution, the Authority issued and sold $25,860,000 of Series1999B
Bonds, of which $23,615,000 were outstanding as of June 30, 2003. A total of $23,356,000 is recognized on the
University’s consolidated balance sheet, as such Series 1999B Bonds are recorded net of unamortized discount of
$259,000 at June 30, 2003. The obligation of the University under the terms of the Loan Agreement is a general
obligation of the University.

10. Pursuanttothel oan Agreement and the Resol ution, the Authority issued and sold $45,764,000 of Series2000A
Bonds, of which $40,700,000 were outstanding as of June 30, 2003. A total of $40,699,000 is recognized on the
University’ sconsolidated bal ance sheet asof June 30, 2003, assuch Series 2000A Bondsare recorded net of unamortized
discount of $1,000 at June 30, 2003. The obligation of the University under thetermsof the Loan Agreement isageneral
obligation of the University.

11. Pursuant totheL oan Agreement and the Resol ution, the Authority issued and sold $22,920,000 of Series2001A
Bonds, of which $22,397,000 were outstanding as of June 30, 2003. A total of $22,261,000 is recognized on the
University’ sconsolidated bal ance sheet asof June 30, 2003, assuch Series2001A Bondsare recorded net of unamortized
discount of $136,000 at June 30, 2003. The obligation of the University under the terms of the Loan Agreement is a
general obligation of the University.

Obligations Under Capital Leases. The University’s capital |ease obligations amounted to $3,798,000 as of fiscal
year end 2003.

1. In 1986 the University entered into alease on Eastman Place, afacility used partly to house activities of the
Eastman School of Music. During 1992 the University exercised its option to acquire the interests of its lessor in the
facility. Aspart of the exercise of its option, the University assumed mortgages amounting to $796,000 bearing interst
at 4.75% and payable in monthly installments through December 2011. A total of $429,000 is recognized on the
University’ sconsolidated balance sheet asof June 30, 2003. In October 2003, the University refinanced these mortgages
by drawing on aline of credit with JP Morgan Chase Bank. Proceeds from the sale of the University’s Direct Note
Obligations, Series 2003, described below under “ Indebtedness Incurred Since June 30, 2003,” were in turn used to
refinance the amount drawn on the line of credit.

2. In 2000, the University entered into a capital lease with the Authority for certain equipment for the Hospital.
The initial cost of equipment subject to the Authority lease was approximately $4,700,000. A total of $2,968,000 is
recognized on the University’s consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2003.

3. 1n 2001, the University entered into a $1,000,000 capital lease with Fleet Capital Leasing for the purchase of
telecommunications equipment. A total of $401,000 isrecognized on the University’ s consolidated bal ance sheet as of
June 30, 2003.

Potential Indebtedness:

1. The University has a $16.8 million standby letter of credit with JPMorgan Chase Bank to cover potential
liabilities under the University’s self-insured workers compensation program.

2. TheUniversity hasa$5 million line of credit with JPMorgan Chase Bank that can be used for letters of credit.
Of this $5 million, $1,033,000 is currently committed ($500,000 for the University’s Commercial Genera Liability
Policy deductible and $533,000 for the repayment of obligations to the UDC).

3. The University has an additional $38.5 million line of credit with JPMorgan Chase Bank for short term
emergency purposes.
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Indebtedness Incurred Since June 30, 2003:

1. In November 2003, the University issued $8,600,000 of its Direct Note Obligations, Series 2003, as described
above under "Non-Authority Indebtedness," to refinance drawings under the University’ srevolving line of credit with
JPMorgan Chase Bank, the proceeds of which had been used to refinance indebtedenss and certain other mortgages
related to Eastman Place. Eastman Placeis afacility used partly to house activities of the Eastman School of Music.

2. In November 2003, pursuant to the Loan Agreement and the Resolution, the Authority issued and sold
$164,425,000 of Series 2003 Bonds, consisting of $32,550,000 Series 2003A Bonds, $49,650,000 Series 2003B Bonds,
and $82,225,000 Series 2003C Bonds. A portion of the proceeds of the Series 2003 Bonds refinanced indebtedness
related to Series 1987 Bonds, Series 1993A Bonds and a portion of the Series 1994 Bonds. On July 31, 2003, the
University executed $164,425,000 of interest rate swaps with third parties. The obligation of the University under the
terms of the Loan Agreement is a general obligation of the University.

3. InJanuary 2004, the University entered into an agreement for the 2004 Replacement Bond issued by theCounty
of Monroe Industrial Development Agency in the amount of $698,000. The 2004 COMIDA Replacement Bond is for
the purchase of property at 10 Gibbs Street, Rochester, New Y ork and will become part of the Eastman School of Music
Campus.

4. Throughout fiscal year 2004, the University has entered into a variety of capital leases totaling $1,495,000,
including a $1,000,000 capital lease with Pantheon Capital LLC for the purchase of equipment for the College.

Plant Values
The following table shows the University’ sinvestment in physical plant for the past five years:
Investment in Physical Plant

As of June 30,
(dollarsin thousands)

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
Land and improvements $ 22,034 $ 24,196 $ 27,370 $ 30,277 $ 32,496
Buildings and improvements 830,430 950,242 1,030,473 1,130,696 1,146,840
Completed projects under
leasehold agreements 92,498 92,660 48,696 46,333 46,600
Equipment owned 473,852 466,567 481,177 505,259 516,819
Museum collections 23,070 23,998 24,580 25,031 25,231
Construction in progress 112,087 47,042 70,105 26,837 23,725
Library Books 63,278 67,739 72,579 77,843 83,554
$1,617,249 $1,672,444 $1,754,980 $1,842,276 $1,875,265
Less accumulated depreciation 763,971 799,725 842,502 913,312 979,111
Net University plant $ 853,278 $ 872,719 $ 912,478 $ 928,964 $ 896,154

The University presently carries, under blanket insurance policies, $500,000,000 of replacement cost coverage for
University properties, including the Hospital but excluding land and building foundations.

LITIGATION AND LEGAL MATTERS

Variousclaimsand actionsare pending towhich the University isaparty. Insurance policiescover general liabilities
in all University divisions and professional liability (medical malpractice) in Medical Center operations. The Medical
Center’sliahility insuranceis described in Note (11) to the consolidated financial statements presented in Appendix B.
Except as noted below, no legal actions are pending or, to the best of the University’ s knowledge, threatened against it
which, if determined adversely to it, could produce a material adverse effect on its financial condition or operations.

In 2002, a group of medical students sued the American Association of Medical Colleges, the American Medical
Association, the American Hospital Association, and multiple academic medical centers, including the University,
alleging aconspiracy to restrain competition for resident physician servicesin violation of antitrust laws. The plaintiffs
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have not claimed any specific amount of damages but seek treble damages, injunctive relief and legal fees. Since the
case began, the University and co-defendants, represented by the firm of Covington & Burling of Washington, D.C.,
succeeded in obtaining alegislative exemption from antitrust laws for the residency match program that is at the heart
of the case. Plaintiffs have now challenged that legislation in court. The outcome of that challenge, and the case in
general, remains uncertain and counsel is unable to express an opinion on the University’ s ultimate chance of success
or range of potential loss, if any.

PART 5 - THE HOSPITAL/MEDICAL CENTER

General

The University Medical Center is a part of the University and consists of the following divisions: (1) Strong
Memorial Hospital (the “Hospital”), (2) the School of Medicine and Dentistry, (3) the School of Nursing, (4) the
Medical School Faculty Group and (5) the Eastman Dental Center. Since 1995, a major objective has been the
integration of all components of the Medical Center (including the Hospital) into a cohesive, cost-effective administra-
tive and financial entity. To that end, the following activities have been implemented: (1) Centralization of Medical
Center Administration, including Medical Administration, Finance, Human Resources, Strategic Planning, Public
Relations, Development, Legal and Facilities; (2) Development of a Medical Center Strategic Plan; (3) Creation of the
Health Affairs Committee of the University Board of Trustees with certain advisory responsibilities; (4) Establishment
of the University of Rochester Medical Faculty Group as a separate division within the Medical Center; and
(5) Acquisition and Establishment of the Eastman Dental Center as a separate division within the Medical Center.

The Hospital isan integral part of the University’s Medical Center and serves as the principal teaching hospital of
the School of Medicineand Dentistry and the School of Nursing. Construction of the general hospital and itsoutpatient
units was completed in 1975, replacing a 50-year-old facility. In June 1996, the Hospital opened a comprehensive
ambulatory carefacility. Inaddition, theHospital recently constructed anew emergency department, built new operating
roomsand is currently in the process of constructing expanded pediatric and adult intensive care units. The Hospital,
with 37,456 discharges and 240,377 patient daysinfiscal year 2004, isthelargest acute care general hospital in Rochester
and servesboth asageneral regional/national tertiary care hospital and aspecializedreferral center for a14-county area.

The Hospital currently serves as a regional center for the following services: Neonatal Intensive Care, Pediatric
Intensive Care, Burn, Perinatology, Cancer Center (Oncology services), Liver Transplantation, Heart Transplantation,
Bone Marrow Transplantation, Comprehensive Epilepsy Program, AIDS and Trauma.

Services and Programs

The Hospital offers a broad range of diagnostic and therapeutic services for adults and children on inpatient and
outpatient bases. Itslicensed bed complement is allocated among the following services:

Number

Services of Beds
Medical/Surgical 344
Intensive Care 62
Coronary Care 8
Burn Care 7
Pediatric 60
Maternity 45
Psychiatric 93
AIDS 14
Rehabilitation 20
Pediatric Intensive Care Unit 12
Special Use: Clinical Research Center 8
Neonatal/ICU _ 52
Subtotal 725
Medical/Surgical at Highland _ 14
Total 739
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The Hospital has been authorized by the New Y ork State Department of Health, through its Certificate of Need
process, to operate and provide programs and services in specialized areas such as adult and pediatric cardiac
catheterization, adult and pediatric open heart surgery, cardiac transplantation, linear acceleration and magnetic
resonance imaging, therapeutic and diagnostic nuclear medicine, therapeutic radiology, bone marrow transplantation,
poison control, AIDS, lithotripsy, speech and language pathology, burns, cystoscopy, and kidney, liver, cardiac and
pancreas transplantation, in addition to a host of outpatient services.

Excluding medical staff with part-time faculty appointments, the Hospital’s staff of more than 7,000 tends to the
broad spectrum of health careneedsof patientsinthegreater Rochester area, andtothespecialized needsof patientsfrom
the surrounding Finger Lakesarea, West-Central New Y ork, therest of the State and the other areas of the United States.

The Hospital has developed programs such as the Durand Bone Marrow Transplantation Center, the Liver
Transplantation Center, the Heart Transplantation Center, the Burn Center, aregional AIDS Center, a Comprehensive
Epilepsy Center, aRegional TraumaUnit, spinal cord injury, orthopedic reconstructivesurgery, high risk obstetric units,
and a renowned Cancer Center and Neonatal Intensive Care Unit.

TheHospital alsooffersneeded servicestoareahospitals, especial ly thoseinthecommunitiesof Livingston, Wayne,
Ontario, Steuben, Orleans, Wyoming, Chemung, Schuyler, Tompkins, Cayuga and Jefferson Counties. These include
specialized cardiac, pulmonary, oncology and high-risk obstetric assistance, as well as emergency and airlift care for
serious trauma and burn patients who come for treatment only the Hospital can offer in the region.

With respect to its residency programs, the Hospital trains approximately 660 residents and fellowsin 77 different
fully accredited graduate medical and dental education programs, in sub-specialties which include: Anesthesiology,
Dermatology, Emergency Medicine, Emergency Medicine — Pediatric, Family Medicine, General Dentistry, Internal
Medicine, Medicine, Medicine-Pediatrics, Medicine-Psychiatry, Neurological Surgery, Neurology, Neurology-Clini-
cal Neurophysiology, Nuclear Medicine, Obstetrics-Gynecology, Ophthalmology, Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery,
Orthopaedics, Pathology, Pathology-Neuropathology, Pediatrics, Pediatric Dentistry, Orthodontics, Periodontics,
Physical Medicine-Rehabilitation, Prosthodontics, Psychiatry, Psychiatry-Child and Adolescent, Psychiatry-Geriatric,
Radiation Oncology, Radiology, Surgery, Surgery-Cardiothoracic, Surgery-Critical Care, Surgery-Otolaryngology,
Surgery-Plastic Surgery, Surgery-Vascular, Urology, Allergy and Immunology, Anesthesiology Critical Care, Anesthe-
siology Pain Management, Medicine-Cardiovascul ar Disease, Medicine-Cardiovascul ar Electrophysiology, Medicine-
Critical Care, Medicine-Endocrinology/Diabetes, Metabolic, Medicine-Gastroenterology, Medicine-Geriatric Medi-
cine, Medicine-Hematol ogy/Oncol ogy, M edicine-Infectious Disease, M edicine— I nterventional Cardiology, Medicine-
Nephrology, Medicine-Pulmonary Critical Care, Medicine-Rheumatology, Orthopaedics-Hand Surgery, Ortho-
paedi cs-Spine Surgery, Orthopaedi cs-Sports Medicine, Pathol ogy-Cytopathol ogy, Pediatrics— Adolescent Medicine,
Pediatrics-Critical Care Medicine, Pediatrics-Cardiology, Pediatrics — Hematology Oncology, Pediatrics- Infectious
Disease, Pediatrics-Nephrology, Pediatrics-Neonatology, Pediatrics-Pulmonology, Psychiatry-Forensic Psychiatry,
Radiology-Muskuloskeletal, Radiology-Neuroradiology, Radiology-Pediatric, Radiology-Vascular/Interventional,
Pediatric, Anesthesiology, Child Neurology, Maternal Fetal Medicine, Pediatric Gastroenterology, and Advanced
Education in General Dentistry.

Service Area

The Hospital is the largest general hospital in the Finger Lakes Region, serving acutely ill patients at all levels
includingtertiary care. TheFinger L akesRegion served by theHospital consistsof the City of Rochester anditssuburbs,
surrounded by alargely rural region with acombined population of 1.3 million people. Inadditiontoitstertiary services,
theHospital providesafull range of primary and secondary medical, surgical, pediatric, obstetrical, and psychiatric care.

In fiscal year 2004, the Hospital discharged 37,456 inpatients and cared for 1,006,039 outpatients and 87,343
Emergency Department patients. Some 68% of inpatients come from Monroe County, the primary service area, 26%
from the secondary service area of surrounding countries including Livingston, Ontario, Wayne, Genesee, Orleans,
Steuben, Seneca and Y ates and the remaining 6% from other parts of the State and nation.
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Strategic Plan

In 1996, the Medical Center developed astrategic plan whichisregularly updated that integratesthe objectivesand
activitiesof the Medical Center’ sthen existing divisions - the School of Medicine and Dentistry, the School of Nursing,
the Hospital and the University of Rochester Medical Faculty Group. The strategic plan resulted in recommendations
grouped in three categories as follows:;

1. Research. Rather thaninvest broadly acrossall Medical Center research areas, the Medical Center shouldinvest
selectively in programs that have clear potential to achieve national leadership in their fields. Three areas of emphasis
identified are Aging and Developmental Biology; Immunology and Vaccine Biology; and BioMedical Genetics.
Subsequently, three additional areaswere added: Oral Biology; Human Genetics; and Cardiovascular Medicine. Since
the inception of the strategic plan in 1997, total NIH funding has increased 91.7% from $70.4 million to $135 million
in 2003. A total of 74 scientists, including several senior scientists who are nationally renowned in their fields, have
been recruited. Leadersin all six areas have been appointed.

2. Clinical Services. The Medical Center should build an integrated health care delivery system with the capacity
and infrastructure to manage the health care of 600,000 people, approximately one-half the population of Greater
Rochester. TheMedical Center should devel op the physician network, hospital capacity, subacuteservices, information
systems, and other components necessary to assure competitiveness under amanaged care payment system. The plan
has been successfully implemented and market share has grown from 40% to 55% in aggregate. Becausethe health care
environment has been changing so rapidly, the strategies employed to achieve market share growth and to sustain
financial performance are updated and adjusted frequently.

3. Research Facilities. TheMedical Center should implement amaster facilities plan that will guide the management
of theMedical Center’ sinfrastructurefor thenext 40to 50 years. The Medical Center built a240,000 squarefoot research
building adjacent to the School of Medicine and Dentistry entrance, which was completed in September 1999 and was
funded, in part, by the Series 1998A Bonds. Thetotal cost of the new research building was approximately $73,250,000.
The building is contiguous to a 50,000 square foot entry building with an education center, auditorium and conference
rooms. The research building is devoted to Aging, Developmental Biology; Vaccine Biology; Cancer, Cardiovascular
and Oral Biology and related disciplines. In addition, the Medical Center constructed a second research building of
144,000 square feet, which was completed in January 2002.

Governance

The University’s Board of Trustees has delegated authority for governing the Hospital and the Eastman Dental
Center tothe Medical Center Board but hasretained governing authority over the remaining components of the Medical
Center. In addition to governance responsibilities for the Hospital and the Eastman Dental Center, the Medical Center
Board advises the University Board of Trustees on all mattersrelating to the Medical Center’ s mission, plans, policies
and operations. The Medical Center Board is responsible for establishing policy, assuring quality patient care, and
providing for theinstitutional management and planning for the Hospital (SMH) and the Eastman Dental Center (EDC).
However, the Board of Trustees must approve any action of the Medical Center Board which would (1) result in acall
upon the financial resources of the University not dedicated for the support of the Hospital (SMH) or EDC, (2) have a
major impact on University academic programs, or (3) contravene policies of the University established by the Board
of Trustees.

TheMedical Center Board currently has 43 voting members. New members are appointed by the Board of Trustees
upon the recommendation of the existing Medical Center Board. At least five members must be or have been Trustees.
In addition to the elected members, the following persons serve on the Medical Center Board as ex officio voting
members: the University’s President, Provost, Senior Vice President and Vice Provost for Health Affairs, the Medical
Center Vice President and Chief Operating Officer, the Medical Center Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, the
President and Chief Executive Officer of the Hospital, the Deans of the School of Medicine and Dentistry and School
of Nursing, the Director of the Eastman Dental Center, the Director of the Medical Faculty Group, two Department
Chairs of the clinical departmentsfrom the School of Medicine and Dentistry and one member of the community-based
faculty from the Medical Staff. A representative of the Friends of Strong (the Hospital’ s volunteer organization) serves
as an ex-officio non-voting member.

The Medical Center Board meets at |east six timesayear and has seven standing committees: Executive, Audit and
Risk Assessment, Development, Finance, Facilities, Nominations and Board Practices, and Quality of Care. The
Executive Committee meets monthly.
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The current elected members of the Medical Center Board are:

Richard T. Aab
President
RTA Associates, LLC

Michael J. Amalfi

Executive Vice President of Hedlth Care

Ultra Scan Corporation

William Balderston, I11*
Retired
Community Leader

Kenneth D.Bell
Regional President
HSBC Bank USA

C. William Brown, Esg.*
Risk Management Consultant

Brighton Pittsford Agency, Inc.

Michael F. Buckley, Esq.
Harter, Secrest & Emery

Richard J. Collins, MD
Retired Physician
Community Leader

Joan L. Feinbloom
Community Leader

John T. Fitzgerald, Esq.
Nixon Peabody, LLP 1

David M. Flaum
President & CEO

Flaum Management Company, Inc.
Roger B. Friedlander* - Board Chairman

Retired
Community Leader

*Currentor former University Trustee

Deborah G. Goldman-L andsman
Vice President and Secretary
Landsman Development Corp.

Robert H. Gutkin

Vice President

Strategic Sourcing
Nalge Nunc International

George W. Hamlin, IV
President & CEO

The Canandaigua National Bank & Trust Co.

Susan R. Hollida
President and Publisher
Rochester Business Journal

Robert H. Hurlbut - Board Chair Elect
President

TheHurlbut Trust

Michael E. Jones

Managing Director
Clover Capita Management, Inc.

DennisK essler
Owner
The Kessler Group, Inc.

Ronald B. Knight*

Group President

Harris Interactive Service Bureau
Chief of Staff, Harris Interactive

DianaR. Kurty
Vice President, Finance
The Sutherland Group, Inc.

Robert N. Latella, Esg.
Jeeckle, Fleischmann & Mugdl, LLP

TThefirmof Nixon Peabody L L Pservesascounsel totheUniversity.

Potential Conflicts of Interest

Joseph M. Lobozzo |1
President & CEO
JML Optical Industries, Inc.

ThomasM cDer mott
Chairman
ForbesProducts

ThomasS. Richards
Retired
Community Leader

William W. Richardson
Retired
Community Leader

William D. Ryan
Retired
Community Leader

Wilfred A. Springer,DDS
Retired
Community Leader

JulioVasquez
President & CEO
Ibero American Action League, Inc.

Daniel R. Wegman*
President
Wegman's Food Market

Joseph R. Wilson
Senior Vice President
Morgan Stanley

Ronald L. Zarrella
Chairman & CEO
Bausch & Lomb

The Medical Center Board has adopted a policy designed to avoid any possible conflict between the personal
interests of members of the Board, executive officers, faculty or staff of the Medical Center and the interests of the
Medical Center anditsvariouscomponents. The purposeof thepolicy isto ensurethat decisionsabout M edical Center
businessand the use or disposition of Medical Center property are made solely intermsof benefitsto the Medical Center
and are not influenced by any private profit or other benefit to Medical Center personnel who take part in the decision.

Medical Staff

With respect to the Medical Staff, as of July 1, 2004, there were 1,404 physicians and dentists grouped into four
categories. Attending, Courtesy, Emeritus and Honorary. The Medical Staff is organized into nineteen (19) clinical
departments representing over 100 medical specialties and sub-specialties. As of this date, approximately 81% of the
Medical Staff were board certified and the average age was 48 years.
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Thefollowingisasummary by clinical department of the Medical and Dental Staff, including number of physicians
and dentists, average age, and the percentage who are board certified:

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF COMPOSITION
as of July 1, 2004

Number Average Board
Department of Staff Age Certified
Anesthesiology 65 44 81%
Dentistry 48 45 42
Dermatology 26 46 100
Emergency Medicine 50 40 85
Medicine 348 48 85
Neurology 55 48 93
Neurosurgery 10 52 90
Obstetrics/Gynecol ogy 102 48 85
Occupational Medicine 3 52 100
Ophthalmology 52 50 83
Orthopedics 36 46 89
Pathology 32 50 92
Pediatrics 309 50 93
Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation 7 47 63
Psychiatry 73 48 70
Radiation Oncology 14 47 93
Radiology 54 46 86
Surgery 91 48 89
Urology 29 49 89
Total 1,404 48 81

M anagement

C. McCollister Evarts, M.D., Senior VicePresident and Vice Provost for Health Affairs; Medical Center and Strong
Health System Chief Executive Officer. Named to the position in September 2003, Dr. Evarts previously served as CEO
of theMilton S. Hershey Medical Center and Senior Vice President and Dean of PennsylvaniaState University’ sCollege
of Medicine. During histenure there beginning in 1987, Dr. Evarts presided over the expansion of clinical services, the
tripling of both the organization’ sfaculty anditsresearch funding, the construction of aseven-story biomedical research
facility, and theinitiation of a new medical school curriculum. A graduate of Colgate University and the University of
Rochester School of M edicineand Dentistry, hecompleted hisinternship and residency in orthopaedic surgery at Strong
Memorial Hospital. In 1964, he joined the Cleveland Clinic Foundation and, over the next decade, headed that
institution’s orthopaedic residency training program and ultimately served as chair of its Department of Orthopaedics.
Hereturnedto the University of Rochester in 1974 aschair of orthopaedics, DorrisH. Carlson Professor of Orthopaedics,
and Orthopaedist-in-Chief at Strong Memorial Hospital.

Michael C. Goonan, CPA, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, University of Rochester Medical Center.
Mr. Goonan assumed his current positionin 1995. Hejoined the Hospital in 1984 and was appointed its Chief Financial
Officer in 1990. From 1975 to 1984, Mr. Goonan was with the international public accounting firm, KPMG Peat
Marwick, where he specialized in the healthcare field with particular emphasis on financial management, reimburse-
ment, prospective reporting, and third-party cost reporting. Mr. Goonan received a Bachelor of Science degree in
Accounting from St. John Fisher Collegein Rochester, New York andisaNew Y ork State Certified Public Accountant.
Heisamember of the Audit Committee and the Advisory Committee of the Board of Directors of the Rochester Chapter
of the American Red Cross and heison the Board of Directors of the Crittenden Boulevard Housing, Inc. Mr. Goonan
isamember of the Healthcare Financial Management Association. He also serves as Chairman of the Medical Centre
Insurance Company, Inc. Mr. Goonan is a Trustee of St. John Fisher College.
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Steven |. Goldstein, President and Chief Executive Officer of Strong Memorial Hospital and Highland Hospital;
Vice President, University of Rochester Medical Center. Mr. Goldstein joined the Hospital in September 1996 as
Executive Director and Chief Operating Officer and assumed his present position in June 1997. Mr. Goldstein was
Senior Vice President of The Greater Rochester Health System, Inc. from August 1995 to September 1996 and President
and CEO of Rochester General Hospital from March 1993 to September 1996. Mr. Goldstein received his Master of
Hospital and Health Care Administration from the St. Louis University Graduate School of Hospital and Health Care
Administration.

Raymond J. Mayewski, MD, FACP, Medical Director for Clinical Servicesat the Medical Center, Chief Medical
Officer for Strong Memorial Hospital and Highland Hospital and Physician-Director of the University of Rochester
Medical Faculty Group. Dr. Mayewski received his Bachelor of Science (Honors) degree from Pennsylvania State
University and Doctor of Medicine degree from Temple Medical School. After joining the Hospital in 1972 asan intern
and then as Chief Resident in Medicine, Dr. Mayewski became a licensed physician in 1975 and was certified by the
American Board Internal Medicine in 1975. He served as Associate Chairman for Clinical Affairsin the Department
of Medicinefrom 1991 to 1995 and became aDean’ s Professor of Medicinein 1994. He was appointed Medical Director
for Clinical Services at the University of Rochester Medical Center and Chief Medical Officer for the Hospital in 1995.
Heisalso aFellow of the American College of Physicians and serves on numerous committees of other local State and
national organizations. Dr. Mayewski serves on the Board of the University of Rochester Medical Center and Ronald
McDonald House aswell as continuing to serve on executive committeesat the University of Rochester Medical Center.

Leonard J. Shute, Senior Director for Finance and Chief Financial Officer, Strong Memorial Hospital. Mr. Shute
joined the Hospital in 1991 as Director of Financial Operations and assumed his present position in 1995. From 1982
to 1991, Mr. Shute was the Vice President for Institutional Affairs for Blue Cross/Blue Shield of the Rochester Area.
Prior to that, Mr. Shute wasthe Chief Financial Officer for Rochester AreaHospitals' Corporation. Mr. Shutereceived
aBachelor of Science degreein Accounting from St. John Fisher College. Heisa current member and former regional
board president of the Health Care Financial Management Association. Mr. Shute serves on the Finance Committee
of the Hospital Association of New York State, and chairs the Chief Financial Officer committee of the Rochester
Regional Healthcare Association.

Peter G. Robinson, Vice President and Chief Operating Officer, University of Rochester Medical Center. Mr.
Robinson joined the Hospital in 1988, as Director of Strategic Planning and Marketing. In 1991, Mr. Robinson was
appointed Associate Vice President for Health Affairs. Prior to this, Mr. Robinson was Associate Executive Director
at Bellevue Hospital Center and Director, Ambulatory Services, The Presbyterian Hospital, Columbia-Presbyterian
Medical Center. Hewas Vice President of HealthScope Management, a health planning consultant firm, and President
of Health Services Management Corporation. Mr. Robinson received a Bachelor of Arts degree from City College of
New Y ork, aMaster of Arts degree from the New School for Social Research, and Master of Public Health degree from
Columbia University. Mr. Robinson is on the Board of Directors of the Center for Governmental Research and the
Rochester Health Commission and is President of the board of High Technology of Rochester.

David S. Guzick, M.D., Ph.D., Dean of the School of Medicine and Dentistry. Dr. Guzick was appointed the ninth
dean of the University of Rochester School of Medicine and Dentistry in 2003. Dr. Guzick has served asthe Henry A.
Thiede professor and chair of the Department of Obstetrics and Gynecology at the School of Medicine and Dentistry
since 1995, in addition to chief of service of Obstetrics and Gynecology at Strong Memorial Hospital and Highland
Hospital. Dr. Guzick came to Rochester from the University of Pittsburgh School of Medicine and Magee-Women's
Hospital, wherehe served as professor of Obstetrics, Gynecology and Reproductive Scienceand director of theDivision
of Reproductive Endocrinology. He earned both his medical degree and Ph.D. from New Y ork University as part of a
National Institutes of Health scholarship. Following aresidency in obstetrics and gynecology at The Johns Hopkins
Hospital, he completed a fellowship in reproductive endocrinology at the University of Texas, Southwestern Medical
School.
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Utilization
The following is a summary of discharges by major clinical departments for fiscal years 2000 through 2004.

PERCENT OF HOSPITAL DISCHARGES*

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
Medicine 29.3% 30.9% 34.2% 34.6% 34.7%
Surgery 24.8 25.9 25.4 25.4 24.5
Obstetrics and Gynecology 17.1 14.2 131 12.7 11.8
Pediatrics 9.9 10.0 9.4 8.6 9.1
Orthopedics 6.0 6.2 5.7 6.2 6.7
Neurology 3.9 3.6 3.8 3.4 3.3
Clinical Research 0.9 0.9 0.5 0.4 0.3
Comprehensive Epilepsy Program 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0
Psychiatry 4.9 6.4 5.6 6.9 7.1
Rehabilitation 1.2 1.2 11 1.0 11
AIDS 0.8 0.5 04 0.3 0.2

100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

* Excludes nursery discharges.

A summary of historical utilization datafor theyears ended June 30, 2000 through 2004 is presented in thefollowing
table:

HOSPITAL UTILIZATION DATA

Year Ended June 30,

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004

Certified Beds 750 750 743 739 739
Discharges* 33,862 35,105 36,020 37,818 37,456
Patient Days* 214,033 221,852 231,507 237,445 240,377
Average Length of Stay (Days) 6.3 6.3 6.4 6.3 6.4
AIDS Patient Days 2,245 1,482 1,555 1,196 684
Emergency Room Visits 70,126 77,285 85,510 85,710 87,343
Outpatient Clinic Visits 277,928 289,784 315,193 330,244 331,552
Ambulatory Surgery Visits 10,656 11,520 12,234 13,511 12,916
Faculty Practice Visits 408,955 513,285 552,026 607,597 661,571
Average % Occupancy:

Medicine & Surgery 87.2 92.9 92.9 95.5 99.4

Obstetrics 71.9 73.7 74.9 76.0 71.6

Gynecol ogy 88.3 81.4 102.3 95.3 91.1

Pediatrics 79.1 82.9 82.8 82.9 80.7

Psychiatry 95.2 93.4 84.5 86.4 83.0

Rehabilitation 81.2 76.6 815 81.3 89.8

*|ncludes newborns.
tBased on bedsin use.
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Rochester Area Hospitals

The following table sets forth the number of acute beds, number of discharges, the occupancy rate and number of
newborns for the Hospital and certain other hospitalslocated in and around the primary service area of the Hospital in
calendar year 2003:

AREA HOSPITAL UTILIZATION DATA

Acute 2003 2003 2003

Beds Discharges % Occupancyt Newborns
Strong Memorial Hospital 739 35,338 85.8% 2,865
Rochester General Hospital 528 26,568 78.4% 2,317
Highland Hospital* 254 14,042 70.2% 3,313
Unity Health System 289 15,355 90.8% 1,233

* Affiliate of the Hospital
1 Based on licensed beds.

Source of information: Hospital Consortium of Greater Rochester and “Hospital Utilization Graphs’ for December, 2003.

Sources of Revenue

The Hospital’s major sources of patient services revenue are Medicare, Medicaid, Blue Cross and commercial
insurers. During 2002-03, the Hospital received approximately 69% of its patient service revenues from Medicare,
Medicaid, and Blue Cross. Comparative sources of patient service revenues for the last five years ended June 30, are
as follows:

SOURCES OF HOSPITAL'S PATIENT SERVICES REVENUE

Year Ended June 30,

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003

Blue Cross 30.5% 31.7% 31.5% 32.7% 32.0%
Medicare 28.9 29.0 28.8 27.8 26.4
Preferred Care 10.3 11.0 11.4 13.4 14.2
Medicaid 12.3 10.1 10.4 11.3 10.4
Commercia Insurance 5.5 5.7 5.6 6.0 8.8
Self-Pay and Other 12.5 12.5 12.3 8.8 8.2

Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

See “Management’s Discussion of Financial Performance” below.

TheHospital has agreementswith third-party payorsthat providefor paymentsto the Hospital at amountsdifferent
from its established rate. A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party payors follows:

Medicare

Under the M edicare program, the Hospital receives reimbursement under a prospective payment system (* PPS”) for
inpatient services. Under the hospital inpatient PPS, fixed payment amounts per inpatient discharge are established
based on the patient’ s assigned diagnosis related group (“DRG”). When the estimated cost of treatment for certain
patientsishigher than average, providerstypically will receive additional “outlier” payments. Effective August 1, 2000,
aprospective outpatient system wasadopted that providesfor payment for certain medical outpatient servicesbased on
service groups called ambulatory payment classifications (“APC’'s”). Other outpatient services are based upon afee
schedule and/or actual costs. TheHospital’ sMedicare cost reportsare subject to audit by thefiscal intermediary. Such
audits have been done through December 31, 1999.
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Medicaid and Other Third-Party Payors

TheNew Y ork Health Care Reform Act of 1996, asamended (“HCRA™), governs paymentsto hospitalsin New Y ork
Statethrough June 30, 2005. Under HCRA, Medicaid, workers compensation and no-fault payors pay rates promulgated
by the New Y ork State Department of Health. Fixed payment amounts per inpatient discharge are established based on
the patient’ sassigned case mix intensity similar toaMedicare DRG. All other third-party payors, principally Blue Cross,
other private insurance companies, Health Maintenance Organizations (HMQO’s), Preferred Provider Organizations
(PPO’s) and other managed care plans, negotiate payments rates directly with the hospitals. Such arrangements vary
from DRG-based payment systems, to per diems, case rates and percentage of billed charges. If such rates are not
negotiated, then the payorsare billed at the Hospital’ s established charges.

Hospital Finances

Inthe University’ sfiscal year ended June 30, 2003, the Hospital accounted for nearly 40% of both the University’s
operating revenuesand expenses. Thefollowingtable presentsthe operating resultsof theHospital for the last fivefiscal
years derived from the Hospital’ s audited financial statements:

Hospital Operating Results
(dollarsin thousands)
Year Ended June 30,

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
Operating Revenues:
Net Patient Services Revenue $ 428,624 $ 470,537 $519,310 $583,673 $ 625,754

Other Operating Revenue 23,345 24,519 26,596 17,446 20,782
Total Operating Revenue 451,969 495,056 545,906 601,119 646,536
Operating Expenses:
Salaries, Wages & Fringe Benefits 243,275 256,594 281,529 308,373 324,547
Supplies and Other Expenses 158,455 184,136 207,480 237,382 256,112
Interest 7,152 6,894 7,484 7,890 7,550
Depreciation 24,878 26,338 27,677 28,020 30,153
Total Operating Expenses 433,760 473,962 524,170 581,665 618,362
Gain from Operations 18,209 21,094 21,736 19,454 28,174
Non-Operating Revenue 4,979 1,690 4,184 7,601 1,704

Revenues in Excess of Expenses $ 23,188 $ 22,784 $ 25,920 $ 27,055 $ 29,878

Management’s Discussion of Financial Performance

Net patient revenue of the Hospital for fiscal year 2003 amounted to $625,754,000, an increase of 7.2% over fiscal
year 2002 net patient revenue of $583,673,000. This increase in revenue was associated with growth in volumes of
services provided to both outpatients and inpatients, and modest reimbursement rate increases. Expenses in 2003
increased by 6.3% over the prior year to $618,362,000. Increases in expenses are associated with higher variable cost
attributed to revenue growth andincreases associ ated with employee salary and benefit increases, medical supplies, and
professional liability insurance.
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Affiliations, Mergers, Acquisitions and Divestitures

As with many healthcare systems, the Medical Center evaluates and pursues potential merger and affiliation
candidatesonaconsistent basisaspart of itsoverall strategic planning and devel opment process. Likewise,theMedical
Center occasionally receives offers from, or conducts discussions with, third parties about the potential acquisition or
affiliation of operations or properties which may become apart of or affiliated with the Hospital and/or Medical Center,
or about the potential sale of some of the operations and properties of the Medical Center. Any evaluation of potential
merger and affiliation candidates will turn on whether such candidate will fulfill the requirementsfor the Medical Center
to be able to provide afull continuity of care as part of an integrated delivery system.

Discussions with respect to affiliation, merger, acquisition, disposition, or change of use, including those that may
affect the Medical Center are held on an intermittent, and usually confidential, basis. Asaresult, it ispossiblethat the
assets currently owned by the Medical Center may change from time to time, subject to the provisionsin the financing
documentsthat apply to merger, sale, disposition or purchase of assets.

The University and its affiliate, Highland Hospital of Rochester (“Highland”), sold their chronic and outpatient
dialysisfacilities and business to a for-profit business in 2002. The University, through the Hospital, operated three
chronic and outpatient dialysis programs and Highland operated five such programs. The total sale price was
$21,500,000, of which $14,288,000 was allocated to Highland, $6,212,000 to the University and $1,000,000 to the
University’ sfaculty research fund. The Hospital’ srevenuefromitschronic and outpatient dialysis programsaccounted
for approximately 1% of the total Hospital revenue in fiscal year 2002.

Currently, the Medical Center is affiliated with other nonprofit and for-profit corporations. Such affiliates conduct
operations that are of strategic importance to the Medical Center, including opportunities for medical students and
residentstoreceivetraininginavariety of clinical settings. Their operationsmay subject the M edical Center to potential
legal or financial liabilities, although in general, the Medical Center is not liable for the debts and legal obligations of
the affiliates. In some cases, the Medical Center may fund the affiliates on a start-up or ongoing basis, although this
funding, in relation to the overall operating budget of the Medical Center, historically has not materially affected the
Medical Center’'s financial condition or operation, nor isit anticipated to do so in the future.

Factors Affecting the Hospital’s Revenues
General

Therevenue and expenses of the Hospital are affected by the changing healthcare environment. Thesechangesare
aresult of effortsby the federal and state governments, managed care organizations, private insurance companies and
business coalitions to reduce and contain healthcare costs, including, but not limited to, the costs of inpatient and
outpatient care, physicianfeesand capital expenditures. Inadditionto mattersdiscussed el sewhereherein, thefollowing
factors may have amaterial effect on the operations of the Hospital to an extent that cannot be determined at thistime.

Thereceipt of future revenues by the Hospital is subject to, among other factors, federal and state regulations and
policies affecting the healthcareindustry and the policies and practices of managed care providers, privateinsurersand
other third party payors, and private purchasers of healthcare services. The effect on the Hospital of recently enacted
statutes and recent regulatory changesand of future changesin federal, state and private policies cannot be determined
at thistime.

Future economic conditions, which may include an inability to control expensesin periods of inflation, and other
conditions such as demand for healthcare services, including an anticipated continued declinein utilization of inpatient
facilities, the capability of the management of the Hospital, the receipt of grantsand contributions, referring physicians’
and self-referred patients’ confidencein the Hospital, increased use of health maintenance organizations (“HMOs”) and
preferred provider organizations (“ PPOs”) with discounted payment schedules, economic and demographic develop-
mentsin the United Statesand in the service areasin which facilities of the Hospital arelocated, competition from other
healthcareinstitutions, changesin interest rates which affect theinvestment results, and changesin rates, costs, third-
party paymentsand governmental regul ations concerning payment, are among other factorswhich may adversely affect
revenuesand expenses.

Legislative, Regulatory, and Contractual Matter s Affecting Revenue

Thehealthcareindustry isheavily regulated by thefederal and state governments. A substantial portion of revenue
of healthcare providersis derived from governmental sources. Governmental revenue sources are subject to statutory
and regulatory changes, administrative rulings, interpretations of policy, determinations by fiscal intermediaries, and
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government funding restrictions, all of which may materially increase or decrease the rates of payment and cash flow
to hospitals. In the past, there have been frequent and significant changes in the methods and standards used by
government agenciesto reimburse and regul ate the operation of hospitals. Thereisno reasonto believethat substantial
additional changes will not occur in the future or that payments made under such programs will remain at levels
comparable to the present levels or that they will be sufficient to cover al existing costs.

Legislation is periodically introduced in Congress and in the State legislature that could result in limitations on the
Hospital’s revenue, third-party payments, and costs or charges, or that could result in increased competition or an
increase in the level of indigent care required to be provided by the Hospital. From time to time, legislative proposals
are made at the federal and state level to engage in broader reform of the healthcare industry, including proposals to
promote competition in the healthcareindustry, to contain healthcare costs, to provide national healthinsurance and to
impose additional requirements and restrictions on healthcare insurers, providers and other healthcare entities. The
effects of future reform efforts on the Hospital cannot be predicted.

Managed Care and Other Private Initiatives

Managed care programs, which include various payment methodol ogies and utilization controlsthrough the use of
primary care physicians, are increasingly being offered by traditional insurance companies and managed care
organizations in the State. Payment methodologies include per diem rates, per discharge rates, discounts from
established charges, fee schedules and capitation payments. Enrollment in managed care programs hasincreased, and
managed care programs are expected to have agreater i nfluence on the manner inwhich healthcare servicesare delivered
and paid for in the future. Managed care programs are expected to reduce significantly the utilization of healthcare
servicesgenerally, andinpatient servicesin particular. Inaddition, some managed careorgani zationshavebeen delaying
reimbursements to hospitals, thereby affecting institutional cash flows. Thefinancial condition of the Hospital may be
adversely affected by thesetrends.

Medicare and Medicaid Managed Care

Medicare is encouraging and facilitating the development of managed care products for Medicare beneficiaries.
Enrollment in a Medicare managed care product is currently voluntary and enrollees may disenroll and reenroll in the
traditional Medicare fee-for-service system at any time. Commercial insurers and HMOs typically offer managed care
productsfor the Medicare population. The Balanced Budget Act of 1997 established M edicare+Choice, aprogram that
allows healthcare providers (hospital s and physicians) to contract directly with the United States Centersfor Medicare
and Medicaid Services (“CMS”), formerly known as the United States Health Care Financing Administration
("HCFA™), to form networks for the purpose of directly serving and insuring Medicare beneficiaries through the
assumption of financial risk. Definitions and requirements for these networks, which are referred to as Provider
Sponsored Organizations (“PSOs’), were published by HCFA as an interim rule in the April 14, 1998 edition of the
Federal Register and by CMS as a fina rule in the June 29, 2000 edition of the Federal Register.

Medicare enrolleesin managed care products have their healthcare managed and paid for by the applicableinsurer,
HMO or PSO (the “managed care plan”). The managed care plan isreimbursed by the Medicare program on amonthly
per-beneficiary amount for each Medicare enrolleg; the payment amount generally includes either a per diem or DRG
payment, plus arisk-sharing arrangement. The managed care planisat full financial risk for cost overrunsthat exceed
the per-beneficiary amountspaidtoit by Medicare. Consequently, the managed care plan and itsparti ci pating hospitals,
physiciansand other providers seek to reduce utilization and otherwise control the costs of providing careto Medicare
beneficiaries. Thesefinancial considerations may contributeto reduced per patient revenuesfor the Hospital Medicare
patients. Enrollment in Medicare managed care plans is expected to continue increasing and substantial numbers of
Medicare beneficiaries are expected to enroll in such plans.

Futureactionsby thefederal and state governmentsare expected to continuethetrend toward morerestrictivelimits
on reimbursement for hospital services. The management of the Hospital cannot assess or predict the ultimate effect of
any such legislation or regulation, if enacted or adopted, on its operations.

TheHospital also participatesinthefederal and State Medicaid program. Inorder to control Medicaid expenditures,
the State has sought to enroll large numbers of M edicaid pati entsin managed care programs because experiencein other
states has shown that inpatient utilization decreases for Medicaid recipients who are enrolled in such programs.
Enrollment of Medicaid patientsin managed care programs, paymentsto managed care organizationsfor care rendered
tothem, thefinancial risk assumed by the managed care organization and the resulting and potential financial and other
risks to the Hospital are similar to those for Medicare managed care programs.
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The State’ s program for mandatory Medicaid enrollment, The Partnership Plan (also known as the 1115 Waiver),
was approved by HCFA in July 1997, allowing the State to begin enrolling most Medicaid recipientsin managed care
plans. Giventherelatively short existence of the program and its phased-in expansion, there remainsthe possibility that
managed care providers will seek to reduce the compensation hospitals are currently receiving under the Medicaid
program and direct that such enrollees use the services of only managed care provider approved hospitals.

Department of Health Regulations

The Hospital is subject to regulations of the New York State Department of Health. Compliance with such
regulationsmay requiresubstantial expendituresfor administrative or other costs. TheHospital’ sability to add services
or beds and to modify existing services materialy is aso subject to Department of Health review and approval.
Approvals can be highly discretionary, may involve substantial delay, and may require substantial changes in the
proposed request. Accordingly, the Hospital’ s ability to make changesto its service offerings and respond to changes
in the healthcare environment may be limited.

Other Governmental Regulation

The Hospital is subject to regulatory actions and policy changes by those governmental and private agencies that
administer the Medicare and Medicaid programs and actions by, among others, the National L abor Relations Board and
professional and industrial relations of staff and employees, applicable professional review organizations, the Joint
Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare Organizations (“JCAHQ"), the various federal, state and local agencies
created by the National Health Planning and Resources Development Act, the Occupational Safety Health Act, the act
creating the Environmental Protection Agency, the Internal Revenue Service and other federal, state and local
governmental agencies.

The Hospital, as are many other medical centers throughout the nation, is frequently subject to audits and other
investigationsrelating to various segmentsof itsoperations. Themanagement of the Hospital doesnot believethat any
suchauditsorinvestigationswill resultinaliability that would haveamaterial adverseimpact onthebusiness, operations
or financial condition of the Hospital.

Competition

Thehealthcareindustry isinthe processof rapid and fundamental change, triggered by the deregul ation of theacute
care hospital reimbursement system and the growing national strength of managed care plans. The growth of the
managed care industry is being driven in part by increasing pressures from employers and other purchasers that are
seeking to reduce their healthcare premium costs. In New Y ork, integrated delivery systems are developing in order to
provide adequate geographical coverage for major purchasers of healthcare and to provide a system through which
potential cost savings may become available. These factors may further increase competitive pressures on acute care
hospitals, including the Hospital.

The Hospital faces and will continue to face competition from other hospitals and integrated delivery systems. In
addition, alternative modes of healthcare delivery offering lower priced services to the same population — such as
ambulatory surgery centers, private laboratories, private radiology services, skilled and specialized nursing facilities,
and home care — compete with the Hospital.

Management believes that sustained growth in patient volume, together with firm cost controls, and continued
superior outcomes will be increasingly important as the healthcare environment becomes more competitive. There are
many limitations on the ability of a hospital to increase volume and control costs, and there can be no assurance that
volume increases or expense reductions needed to maintain the financial stability of the Hospital will occur.

Private Third-Party Reimbursement

A significant portion of the patient servicerevenueof theHospital isreceived from privateentities, suchasinsurance
companiesthat providethird-party reimbursement for patient care onthebasi sof negotiated paymentsor make payments
based on the charges submitted by the Hospital. Renegotiations of such negotiated payments and changes in such
reimbursement systems and methods may reduce this category of revenue or prevent the Hospital from receiving
adequate reimbursement for its costs.

Accreditation

The Hospital is subject to periodic review by the JCAHO and the various federal, state and local agencies created
by the National Health Planning and Resources Development Act of 1974. The Hospital has accreditation from JCAHO
through 2004. No assurance can begiven astotheeffect onfuture operationsof existing laws, regul ationsand standards
for certification or accreditation or of any future changes in such laws, regulations and standards.
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Federal “ Fraud And Abuse” Laws And Regulations

TheFederal Medicare/Medicaid Anti-Fraud and Abuse Amendmentsto the Social Security Act (the* Anti-Kickback
Law”) make it a criminal felony offense to knowingly and willfully offer, pay, solicit or receive remuneration in order
toinducebusinessfor which reimbursement isprovided under afederal health care program, including without limitation
Medicare or Medicaid. In addition to criminal penalties, including fines of up to $25,000 and five years imprisonment,
violations of the Anti-Kickback Law canlead to civil monetary penalties and exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid
programs. The scope of prohibited paymentsin the Anti-Kickback Law isbroad and includes, subject to certain limited
exceptions, economic arrangements involving hospitals, physicians and other healthcare providers, including certain
joint ventures, space and equipment rentals, purchases of physician practices and management and personal services
contracts.

The Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (“HIPAA™) contains provisions for enhanced
enforcement, increasesto the scope of the Anti-Kickback L aw, additional sanctionsfor violationsof suchlawsand other
measures designed to protect the integrity of federal healthcare programs. HIPAA created a new program operated
jointly by Secretary of the United States Department of Health and Human Services (“HHS") and the Attorney General
of the United Statesto coordinate federal, state and local |aw enforcement with respect to fraud and abuse. HIPAA also
provides for minimum periods of exclusion from federal reimbursement or third-party payment programs as a penalty
for fraudulent billing or similar fraudulent activities; allows intermediate sanctions; and expands the scope of civil
monetary penalties applicableto any federal health care programs. Inaddition, HIPAA and theregulations promulgated
thereunder implemented new federal privacy regquirements.

HHS had published certain safe harbor regulations that describe certain arrangements that will not be deemed to
constitute violations of the Anti-Kickback Law. The safe harbors described in the regulations are narrow and do not
cover awide range of economic relationswhich many hospitals, physicians and other healthcare providers consider to
be legitimate business arrangements not prohibited by the statute.

Further, various federal laws, including the federal False Claims Act, make it a crimina and/or civil violation to
submit (or cause to be submitted) fraudulent (or recklessly incorrect) requests for reimbursement or payment from a
federal program, including federal health care programs such as Medicare and Medicaid. Violations of these laws and
regulations can lead to criminal actions, treble damages, disgorgement of proceeds fraudulently obtained and/or
additional financial penalties ranging up to $10,000 per false claim. In the health care context, with thousands of claims
submitted by hospitalseach year, liabilities can be potentially enormous, if fraudulent or recklessly inappropriate billing
activitiesoccur. Other federal and statelawsal so prohibit fal se, recklessor fraudul ent billing to non-governmental third-
party payors for medical services, and can impose civil and/or criminal penalties for such activities.

Management of the Hospital believesthat their current practicesare presently in compliancewith the Anti-Kickback
Law, applicable billing and reimbursement regulations and HIPAA. The Hospital, through its compliance program,
routinely monitors institutional billing practices to assure compliance with applicable law. However, in light of the
narrowness of the safe harbor regulations and the scarcity of the case law interpreting the Anti-Kickback Law and the
confusing body of lawsrel ating to M edi carebilling, there can be no assurancethat the Hospital will not befoundto have
violated the Anti-Kickback Law, HIPAA and/or other billing laws and regul ations, and if so, that any sanction imposed
would not have a material adverse effect on the operations or the financial condition of the Hospital.

Thereisan increasingly expanding and complex body of laws, regulations and policiesrelating to federal and state
health programs that is not directly related to payment. These include reporting and other technical rules, as well as
broadly stated prohibitions regarding inducements for referrals, all of which carry potentially significant penalties for
noncompliance. The prohibitions on inducements for referrals are so broadly drafted and so broadly interpreted by
several applicablefederal cases and in statements by officials of the Office of the Inspector General of HHS (the“ OIG")
that they may createliability in connectionwith awidevariety of businesstransactions. Inthecase of the Anti-Kickback
Law, limited “safe harbor” regulations provide defenses for a narrow scope of arrangements in case of prosecution or
administrative enforcement action. However, failure to satisfy the conditions of a safe harbor does not necessarily
indicate aviolation of such statute. Activitiesthat fall outside of the safe harbor rulesinclude awiderange of activities
frequently engaged in between hospital sand physiciansand other third parties. Incertaininstances, privateindividuals
may also bring suit under the qui tam provisions of the False Claims Act and may be eligiblefor incentive paymentsfor
providing information that |eadsto recoveriesor sanctions. Civil penaltiesrangefrom monetary finesthat may belevied
on aper-violation basis to temporary or permanent exclusion from the federal health care programs (which account for
asignificant portion of revenue and cash flow of most hospitals, including the Hospital). Criminal penalties may also
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beimposed. If determined adversely to the provider involved, an enforcement or qui tam action could have amaterially
adverseeffect on such provider. Thesepenaltiesmay be applied to many caseswhere hospital sand physiciansconduct
joint business activities, practice purchases, physician recruiting and retention programs, various forms of hospital
assistance to individual physicians and medical practices or the physician contracting entities, physician referral
services, hospital-physician service or management contracts, and space or equipment rental s between hospitals and
physicians. The Hospital conducts limited activities of these general types or similar activities, which pose varying
degreesof risk. Much of that risk cannot be assessed accurately due to the lack of caselaw or material guidance by the
OIG. Whilethe Hospital isnot aware of any challenge or investigation concerning it with respect to such matters, there
can be no assurance that one or more will not occur in the future.

Limitations on Certain Arrangements Imposed by Federal Ethicsin Patient Referrals Act

TheFedera Ethicsin Patient Referrals Act (known asthe* Stark Law™) prohibitsaphysician (or animmediate family
member of such physician) with afinancia relationship with an entity, from referring a Medicare or Medicaid patient
to such entity for the furnishing of designated health services, and prohibits such entity from presenting or causing to
be presented a claim for payment under a federal health care program including, without limitation, the Medicare or
Medicaid program, for designated health services furnished pursuant to a prohibited referral. The designated health
services subject to these prohibitions are clinical laboratory services, physical and occupational therapy services and
speech-language pathology services, radiology (including magnetic resonance imaging, computerized axial tomogra-
phy and ultrasound) services, radiation therapy services and supplies, durable medical equipment and supplies,
parenteral and enteral nutrients (i ncluding equi pment and supplies), orthoticsand prosthetic devicesand supplies, home
health services, outpatient prescription drugs and inpatient and outpatient hospital services. Under the Stark Law,
“physician” isdefined to include adoctor of medicine or osteopathy legally authorized to practice medicine and surgery
by the state in which he or she performsthat function or action. The definition also includes adoctor of dental surgery
or dental medicine, a doctor of podiatric medicine, a doctor of optometry, and a chiropractor.

The New Y ork Health Care Practitioner Referral Law (the “ State Provisions’) is similar to the Stark Law; however,
it coversall patients (irrespective of payor) and prohibits practitioners from referring a patient to a healthcare provider
for clinical laboratory services, x-ray or imaging services, radiation therapy services, physical therapy services, or
pharmacy services, if thereferring practitioner (or animmediate family member) hasafinancial interest in the healthcare
provider. Under the State Provisions, a“practitioner” isdefined asalicensed or registered physician, dentist, podiatrist,
chiropractor, nurse, midwife, physician assistant or special assistant, physical therapist or optometrist.

A “financial relationship,” for purposes of the Stark Law and State Provisions (the Stark Law and State Provisions
are hereinafter collectively referred to as“ Stark™) is defined as either an ownership or investment interest in the entity
or acompensation arrangement between the physician (or immediate family member) and the entity. An ownership or
investment interest may be through equity, debt, or other means and includes an interest in an entity that holds an
ownership or investment interest in an entity providing the designated health services.

The Stark provisions provide certain exceptions to these restrictions. If the physician has a financial relationship
with an entity that provides one of the designated health services, the Stark prohibitions will apply unless one of the
specified exceptions are available. Unlike the anti-kickback safe harbors discussed above (where the failure to meet a
safe harbor does not necessarily mean the referral is prohibited), failure to satisfy an exception to the Stark provisions
means (i) that thereferral itself isprohibited, and (ii) the entity receiving thereferral is prohibited from seeking payment
for such service. However, the mere existence of afinancial relationship does not violate the Stark provisions. Stark
isonly violated if (i) afinancial relationship exists, (ii) areferral for designated services is made, and (iii) no relevant
exception isavailable. To the extent arelationship isfound to exist, an applicable exception under Stark is necessary
inorder for theentity receiving thereferral to accept suchreferral (for adesignated service) and to bill for thedesignated
service generated by such referral.

The exceptions under the Stark provisions can be broken down into three categories, based upon the nature of the
financial relationship between the referring provider and the referral entity. Thethree categories of exceptionsinclude:
(i) exceptions to ownership arrangements, (ii) exceptions to compensation arrangements, and (iii) exceptions to both
compensation and ownership arrangements.

If the financial relationship between a physician/practitioner and the Hospital cannot be made to fit within the
exceptions, the Hospital will not be permitted to accept referralsfor designated services from the physician/practitioner
who has such financial relationship. Like the Anti-Kickback Law provisions discussed above, failure to comply with
the Stark provisions can result in liability in connection with awide variety of business transactions. Violations may
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result in civil and criminal penalties and exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs. On January 9, 1998,
HCFA issued proposed regul ationsand commentary interpreting the Stark Law. On January 4, 2001, HCFA (now CMYS),
issued “Phase|” of final Stark regulations. On March 26, 2004, CMSissued “Phase |1” of final Stark regulations as an
interim final rule with comment period, with an effective date of July 26, 2004. While CMS has provided a one-year
period for healthcare providersto bring activitiesinto compliance with the regulations, the law remainsin effect. There
can be no assurance that athird party reviewing the existing activities of the Hospital would find such activitiesto be
in full compliance with the Stark provisions and existing regulations or in full compliance with the Phase Il regulations
when and if published.

HIPAA Privacy Regulations

When Congressenacted HIPAA, it required HHStoimplement national standardsto protect theprivacy of individual
health information. HHS published aset of regulations, which became effective on April 14, 2001, governing therelease
of protected health information. The deadline for healthcare providersto be fully compliant with the regulations was
April 14, 2003. The regulations prohibit any covered entity, including hospitals and health systems, from using or
disclosing an individual’ s protected health information unless the use or disclosure is authorized by the individual (or
his or her personal representative) or is specifically required or permitted under the final regulations. The regulations
impose a complex system of requirements for meeting this basic rule. The regulations also provide for the imposition
of both civil and criminal penalties for violations of the statute. Civil penalties can range up to $25,000 per violation.
Criminal penalties include fines of up to $50,000 and imprisonment of up to 1 year. Crimina penalties increase
substantially if the offense occursunder fal se pretensesor with theintent to sell, transfer, or useindividually identifiable
health information for commercial advantage, personal gain or malicious harm.

The administrative and financial burden of complying with the privacy regulations is substantial. Even when a
healthcare provider establishes compliance, there are expected to be significant, continuing costs associated with
compliance. The Hospital believesits health information systems are now in compliance with the privacy regulations.
TheHospital has appointed aprivacy officer to overseetheimplementation of the privacy standardsand aprivacy team
works with the privacy officer to ensure compliance. The Hospital cannot predict the extent to which the costs of
compliance with the privacy regulations will affect the financial performance of the Hospital.

Regulation of Patient Transfer

Federal laws prohibit hospitalsfrom transferring a patient who ismedically unstable or isin labor, unless the patient
asksto betransferred or aphysician certifiesthat the benefits of the transfer outweigh therisks. Thereceiving hospital
must agree to accept the transfer. Hospitals that violate the ban on inappropriate transfers may be expelled from the
Medicareand/or Medicaid programs and are subject to fines of up to $50,000 per violation. Management of the Hospital
believes that the Hospital is currently in compliance with these requirements.

Internal Revenue Code Limitations

The Code contains restrictions on the issuance of tax-exempt bonds for the purpose of financing and refinancing
different types of healthcare facilities for not-for-profit organizations, including facilities generating taxable income.
Consequently, the Code could adversely affect the Hospital’ s ahility to financeits future capital needs and could have
other adverse effectson the Hospital, which cannot be predicted at thistime. The Code continuesto subject unrelated
business income of nonprofit organizations to taxation.

Asatax-exempt organization, the Hospital islimited with respect to the use of practice income guarantees, reduced
rent on medical office space, below market rate interest loans, joint venture programs, and other means of recruiting and
retaining physicians. The Internal Revenue Service (“IRS’) has recently intensified its scrutiny of abroad variety of
contractual rel ationshipscommonly enteredinto by hospital sand affiliated entitiesand hasissued detail ed hospital audit
guidelines suggesting that fiel d agents scrutinize numerous activities of hospitalsin an effort to determine whether any
action should betaken withrespect tolimitationson, or revocation of , their tax-exempt status or assessment of additional
tax. The RS has also commenced intensive audits of select healthcare providersto determine whether the activities of
these providers are consistent with their continued tax-exempt status. The IRS has indicated that, in certain
circumstances, violation of the fraud and abuse statutes could constitute grounds for revocation of a hospital’s tax-
exempt status. The Hospital may enter into arrangementswith physiciansthat are of thekind that the IRS hasindicated
that it will examine in connection with audits of tax-exempt hospitals.

Revocation of the tax-exempt status of the Hospital under Section 501(c)(3) of the Code could subject the interest
paid to Bondholdersto federal income tax retroactively to the date of the issuance of the Series 2004A Bonds. Section
501(c)(3) of the Code specifically conditions the continued exemption of al Section 501(c)(3) organizations upon the
requirement, among others, that no part of the net earnings of the organization inure to the benefit of any private

45



individual. While management believes the Hospital’ s arrangements with private persons and entities are generally
consistent with guidance by IRS and do not constitute private inurement, there can be no assurance concerning the
outcome of anaudit or other investigation given thelack of clear authority interpreting therange of activitiesundertaken
by the Hospital.

Intermediate sanctions legislation enacted in 1996 impose excise taxes in cases where an exempt organization is
found to have engaged in an “excess benefit transaction” with a “disqualified person,” defined generally to include
directors and senior management. Thetax isimposed both on the disqualified person receiving such excess benefit and
on any officer, director, trustee or other person having similar powers or responsibilities who participated in the
transaction willfully or without reasonable cause, knowing it will involve “ excess benefit,” but it is not imposed on the
exempt organization. “Excess benefit transactions’ include transactions in which a disqualified person receives
unreasonabl e compensation for servicesor receivesother economic benefit fromtheorganizationthat either exceedsfair
market value or, to the extent provided in regulations yet to be promulgated, is determined in whole or in part by the
revenues of one or more activities of such organization. The legislative history sets forth Congress' intent that
compensation of disqualified persons shall be presumed to be reasonable if certain procedures are followed.

The imposition of excise tax based upon a finding that an exempt organization engaged in an excess benefit
transaction could result in negative publicity and other consequences that could have amaterial adverse effect on the
operations, property, or assets of the organization or on the market for its debt obligations.

Antitrust

Enforcement of the antitrust laws against healthcare providers is becoming more common. Antitrust liability may
ariseinawidevariety of circumstancesincluding, but not limited to, medical staff privilege disputes, payor contracting,
physician relations, joint ventures, merger, affiliation and acquisition activities, and certain pricing and salary setting
activities. Actions can be brought by federal and state enforcement agencies seeking criminal and civil penalties and,
in some instances, by private litigants seeking damages for harm from allegedly anticompetitive behavior. Common
areas of potentia liability include joint action among providers with respect to payor contracting, medical staff
credentialing, and issues relating to market share. Liability in any of these or other trade regulation areas may be
substantial, depending onthefactsand circumstancesof each case. Withrespect to payor contracting, theHospital may,
from timeto time, beinvolved injoint contracting activity with hospitals or other providers. The degree to which these
or similar joint contracting activities may expose a participant to antitrust risk from governmental or private sources are
dependent on amyriad of factors, which may change from time to time. |f any provider with which the Hospital is or
becomesaffiliatedisdetermined to haveviolated theantitrust laws, the Hospital may be subject toliability asajoint actor.

Some judicial decisions have permitted physicians who are subject to disciplinary or other adverse actions by a
hospital at which they practice, including denial or revocation of medical staff privileges, to seek treble damages from
the hospital under the federal antitrust laws. The Federal Health Care Quality Improvement Act of 1986 provides
immunity from liability for discipline of physicians by hospitals under certain circumstances, but courts have differed
over the nature and scope of thisimmunity. In addition, hospitals occasionally indemnify medical staff members who
incur costs as defendants in lawsuits involving medical staff privilege decisions. Some court decisions have also
permitted recovery by competitorsclaiming harmfromahospital’ suseof itsbusinesses. Antitrust liability inany of these
contexts can be substantial, depending upon the facts and circumstancesinvol ved.

Environmental Matters

Healthcare providers are subject to awide variety of federal, state and local environmental and occupational health
and saf ety lawsand regulations. These requirements govern medical and toxic or hazardous waste management, air and
water quality control, noticesto empl oyeesand the public andtrai ning requirementsfor employees. Healthcareoperators
and employers such asthe Hospital are subject to potentially material liability for costs of investigating and remedying
the releases of any such substances either on their properties or that have migrated from their property or have been
improperly disposed of off-site and the harm to person or property that such releases may cause.

Provider-Specific Taxes

The Medicaid Voluntary Contribution and Provider-Specific Tax Amendments of 1991 established standards that
govern how states can impose and use provider-specific taxes. In general, states are allowed to impose broad-based,
provider-specific taxes that are redistributive and do not contain “hold harmless’ provisions. The law also limits

Medicaid payment adjustments for hospital s that service a disproportionate number of low-income patients to 12% of
each state’ sgross Medicaid expenditures.
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Possible Saffing Shortages

Inrecentyears, thehospital industry hassufferedfromanincreasing scarcity of nursesand skilled techniciansto staff
itsfacilities. Factorsunderlying thisindustry trend include anincreaseinthe proportion of the populationthat iselderly,
anincreaseinthetendency toinstitutionali ze senior citizensasopposedto providing nursing careinthehome, adecrease
in the number of persons entering the nursing profession and an increase in the number of nurses specializing in home
health care. Thesefactorsmay intensify inyearsto come, aggravating the shortage of skilled personnel. Nationally there
isashortage of registered nursesand licensed practical nurses. Ascompetition for such employeesintensifies, staffing
shortages could have the effect of significantly increasing personnel costs and could have amaterial adverse effect on
the financial results of the Hospital and on the ability of the Hospital to sustain minimum staffing levels necessary to
maintain licensure, certification and accreditation. Although the Hospital has achieved adequate nurse and skilled
technician staffing levelsto date, it isuncertain whether qualified candidateswill continueto be availableto the Hospital
in the future.

Malpractice Claimsand General Liability Insurance

In recent years, the number of malpractice and general liability suits and the dollar amounts of recoveries has
increased nationwide, resulting in substantial increases in malpractice insurance premiums. Insurance premiums may
continue to rise in future years, which could have a negative effect on the financial condition of the Hospital.
Furthermore, mal practice and other actions alleging wrongful conduct and seeking punitive damages are occasionally
filed against New Y ork hospitals. Insurance may not provide coverage for judgments for punitive damages.

Affiliated Entities Part of Integrated Delivery System

The University is affiliated with other organizations (the “ Affiliated Entities’) that are not legally obligated for the
payment of debt service on University obligations, including the Series 2004A Bonds. Likewise, the University isnot
responsible for the obligations of the Affiliated Entities unless it has agreed to do so. The Affiliated Entities are as
follows:

Highland Hospital and Affiliates

In June 1997, Highland Hospital and affiliates and the University became affiliated through the restructuring of a
corporation now known as Strong Partners Health System, Inc., of which the University is the sole member. This
affiliation will enable the hospitals to work together and will provide the link between the University/Strong Memorial
Hospital and Highland Hospital and affiliates; Strong Partners Health System, Inc. will also provide thelegal structure
to enable the Highland affiliates to act as an integrated system while protecting the rights of all of the affiliates.

A brief description of Highland Hospital and its affiliates follows:

Highland Hospital of Rochester

Highland Hospital of Rochester isa268-bed not-for-profit acute care hospital located in Rochester, New Y ork. The
hospital’ sservicesinclude medical/surgical care, intensive care, maternity and emergency care. Inaddition, the hospital
owns and operates sixteen (16) primary care clinics.

Highland Community Development Cor poration

Highland Community Devel opment Corporation (“HCDC”) isanot-for-profit corporation which owns and operates
The Highlands at Pittsford, a retirement community located in Pittsford, Monroe County, New York. The retirement
community includes 130 independent living units, 60 enriched housing units, acommunity common area, adining room,
sitting areas and recreational areas. During 2003, HCDC began construction of 36 cottages and acommunity center on
its campus.

The Highlands Living Center, Inc.

TheHighlandsLiving Center, Inc. isanot-for-profit corporation which owns and operates a 122-bed skilled nursing
facility and an adult day care health program for seniorsin Pittsford, Monroe County, New Y ork. The skilled nursing
facility is adjacent to The Highlands at Pittsford.

Highland FacilitiesDevel opment Corporation

Highland Facilities Development Corporation (“HFDC”) is a not-for-profit corporation whose primary purpose is
toprovide servicesthat are substantially related to the charitable purposes of Highland Hospital but do notinvolvethe
provisionof health careservices. HFDC ownsand operatesamedical officebuilding and aparking garage onthehospital
campus.
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Medical Administrative Associates

Highland Hospital isthe sole shareholder of Medical Administrative Associates, Inc., d/b/aHighland Apothecary
(“MAA"), which is afor-profit corporation which owns and operates a retail pharmacy, in Rochester, New Y ork.

Highland Hospital Foundation

Highland Hospital Foundation is a not-for-profit corporation controlled by Highland Hospital which solicits,
receives and maintains funds for the support of Highland Hospital.

The Highlands at Brighton

The University created a not-for-profit corporation, The Meadows at Westfall (“The Meadows"), of which the
University was the sole member. On June 1, 1996, The Meadows became the operator of a 145-bed nursing home in
Brighton, New Y ork. The Meadows acquired only the assets and liabilities associated with the routine operation of the
facility; liabilities associated with any pending or threatened litigation before June 1, 1996 were expressly excluded. In
November of 1998, the membership of the Meadows of Westfall was changed so that Strong Partners Health System
is the sole member and the nursing home was renamed as The Highlands at Brighton.

Upstate Health Partners

In January 1995, the Hospital signed an agreement with St. James Mercy in Hornell, New Y ork and Jones Memorial
Hospital in Wellsville, New York to form Upstate Health Partners. Through this contractual affiliation, each of the
member hospitals works to enhance the quality and accessibility of healthcare services for patientsin the rural areas
served by Upstate Health Partners. The guiding principle in forming the affiliation isto provide servicesto patientsin
their home communities whenever possible. Upstate Health Partners builds on a solid history of collaboration among
the three hospitals. Specialistsfrom the Hospital in cardiology, pulmonary medicine, pathology, oncology, rheumatol -
ogy, rehabilitation and orthopedics regularly travel to Hornell and Wellsville to provide clinical care to patients.

Eastman Dental Center
TheMedical Center, as of June 30, 1997 acquired and established the Eastman Dental Center (“EDC”) as aseparate
division within the Medical Center. The Eastman Dental Center operates a dental diagnostic and treatment center.

Graduate dental education programs and dental research are conducted through the School of Medicine and Dentistry
and Strong Memoria Hospital.

Visiting Nurse Service of Rochester and Monroe County and VNS Signature Care

The Medical Center affiliated with Visiting Nurse Foundation, Inc. in April 1999, which is now known as Strong
Home Care Group (“SHCG"). SHCG isthe largest provider of home care servicesin Monroe County with an excellent
reputation for quality services. The University isthe sole corporate member of SHCG which holds two care-providing
organizations, specifically the Visiting Nurse Service of Rochester and Monroe County, Inc., which isacertified, home
health agency, and Community Care of Rochester, currently doing business as VNS Signature Care, alicensed home
care services agency. The SHCG board is comprised of community members and sufficient University appointees to
give the University effective control of the organization.

Managed Care Organization

The University, through Strong Partners Health System, the Hospital, and University Medical Faculty Group,
formed aManaged Care Organization (“MCQ”) in October 1997 together with two community physician organizations:
the Highland Physician Organization and the Rochester Community Physician Organization. The MCO has ceased
operations related to member contracting activities and is in the process of winding down its activities.

Debt of Affiliated Entities
Thedebt of the Affiliated Entitiesas of December 31, 2003, whichisnot an obligation of the University, isasfollows:
Highland Hospital and HFDC

Total long-term indebtedness (excluding leases) amounted to $27,765,000. In addition, Highland Hospital has
current and long-term lease obligations amounting to $4,225,000.

Highland Community Development Cor poration

Total long-term indebtedness consists of a mortgage loan dated as of January 26, 1994 with the Authority with a
principal balance of $11,745,000.
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The Highlands Living Center

Total long-term indebtedness consists of a mortgage loan dated as of August 4, 1994 with the Authority with a
principal balance of $9,388,000.

Visiting Nurse Service

Total long-term indebtedness consists of notes payable with HSBC Bank, USA with a principal balance of
$1,729,000. In addition, Visiting Nurse Service has current and long-term |ease obligations amounting to $1,273,000.

Indebtedness Incurred Since December 31, 2003

Highland Hospital has entered into additional long-term | ease obligations amounting to $3,000,000 since December
31, 2003. Visiting Nurse Service has entered into additional long-term lease obligations amounting to $577,000 since
December 31, 2003.

PART 6 - THE 2004A PROJECT
The 2004A Project consists of the construction of an approximately 25-megawatt cogeneration facility to provide
supplementary heat and/or electricity to the University’s main campus, its south campus, the Hospital and the School

of Medicine and Dentistry, including an underground piping network and an approximately 6,500 square foot addition
to the University’s Central Utilities Plant to house a new boiler and two steam turbine generators.

PART 7 - ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

The estimated sources and uses of funds are as follows:

Sour ces of Funds

Principal Amount of Series 2004A BoNdS .......ccccovveverenerenreneneeennns $45,000,000
PlUS: NEt PrEMIUM ...ttt sttt s 602,797
TOLAl SOUICES ...ttt $45,602,797

Uses of Funds

Deposit to CoNSLruction FUNd ... $42,205,352
Capitalized INLErESE .....c.cvcvevecetecc et 2,489,910
COSESOf ISSUANCE ......veeetceeciciee e 607,585
UNAerwriters’ DiSCOUNL ......cvvvveeeeririeeetieseeeetseseeeesse s esssssesesssessesssnens 299,950

TOLA USES ...ttt sttt bbb $45,602,797

PART 8 - THE AUTHORITY

Background, Purposes and Powers

The Authority isabody corporate and politic constituting a public benefit corporation. The Authority was created
by the Act for the purpose of financing and constructing a variety of facilities for certain independent colleges and
universitiesand private hospitals, certain not-for-profit institutions, public educational institutionsincluding The State
University of New York, The City University of New York and Boards of Cooperative Educational Services
(“BOCES"), certain school districtsin the State, facilitiesfor the Departments of Health and Education of the State, the
Office of General Services, the Office of General Services of the State on behalf of the Department of Audit and Control,
facilitiesfor the aged and certain judicial facilitiesfor citiesand counties. The Authority isalso authorized to make and
purchase certain loansin connection with its student loan program. To carry out this purpose, the Authority was given
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the authority, among other things, to issue and sell negotiable bonds and notes to finance the construction of facilities
of suchinstitutions, toissuebondsor notesto refund outstanding bondsor notesand tolend fundsto suchinstitutions.

On September 1, 1995, the Authority through State legislation (the “ Consolidation Act”) succeeded to the powers,
duties and functions of the New Y ork State Medical Care Facilities Finance Agency (the “Agency”) and the Facilities
Development Corporation (the “ Corporation™), each of which will continue its corporate existence in and through the
Authority. Under the Consolidation Act, the Authority hasal so acquired by operation of law all assetsand property, and
has assumed all the liabilities and obligations, of the Agency and the Corporation, including, without limitation, the
obligation of the Agency to make payments on its outstanding bonds, and notes or other obligations. Under the
Consolidation Act, assuccessor to the powers, dutiesand functions of the Agency, the Authority isauthorized to issue
and sell negotiable bonds and notesto finance and refinance mental health servicesfacilitiesfor usedirectly by the New
Y ork State Department of Mental Hygiene and by certain voluntary agencies. As such successor to the Agency, the
Authority hasacquired additional authorizationtoissuebondsand notesto providecertaintypesof financing for certain
facilitiesfor the Department of Health, not-for-profit corporations providing hospital, medical and residential health care
facilitiesand services, county and municipal hospitalsand nursing homes, not-for-profit and limited profit nursing home
companies, qualified health maintenance organizations and health facilities for municipalities constituting social
servicesdistricts. Assuccessor totheCorporation, the Authority isauthorized, among other things, to assumeexclusive
possession, jurisdiction, control and supervision over all State mental hygiene facilities and to make them available to
the Department of Mental Hygiene, to provide for construction and modernization of municipal hospitals, to provide
health facilities for municipalities, to provide health facilitiesfor voluntary non-profit corporations, to makeits services
available to the State Department of Correctional Services, to make its services available to municipalities to provide
for the design and construction of local correctional facilities, to provide services for the design and construction of
municipal buildings, and to make loansto certain voluntary agencies with respect to mental hygienefacilities owned or
|eased by such agencies.

TheAuthority hasthe general power to acquirereal and personal property, give mortgages, make contracts, operate
dormitories and other facilities and fix and collect rentals or other charges for their use, contract with the holders of its
bonds and notes as to such rentals and charges, make reasonable rules and regul ations to assure the maximum use of
facilities, borrow money, issue negotiable bondsor notesand providefor therights of their holdersand adopt aprogram
of self-insurance.

In addition to providing financing, the Authority offers avariety of servicesto certain educational, governmental
and not-for-profit institutions, including advising in the areas of project planning, design and construction, monitoring
project construction, purchasing of furnishingsand equipment for proj ects, designinginteriorsof projectsand designing
and managing projectstorehabilitateol der facilities. Insucceedingtothepowers, dutiesand functionsof the Corporation
as described above, the scope of design and construction services afforded by the Authority has been expanded.

Outstanding Indebtedness of the Authority (Other than Indebtedness Assumed by the Authority)

At June 30, 2004, the Authority had approximately $29.6 billion aggregate principal amount of bonds and notes
outstanding, excluding indebtedness of the Agency assumed by the Authority on September 1, 1995 pursuant to the
Consolidation Act. Thedebt serviceon each suchissueof the Authority’ sbondsand notesispaidfrom moneysreceived
by the Authority or thetrusteefrom or on behalf of theentity having facilitiesfinanced with the proceedsfrom suchissue
or from borrowers in connection with its student loan program.

The Authority’ s bonds and notes include both special obligations and general obligations of the Authority. The
Authority’s special obligations are payable solely from payments required to be made by or for the account of the
institution for which the particular special obligationswereissued or from borrowersin connection with its student loan
program. Such payments are pledged or assigned to the trustees for the holders of respective special obligations. The
Authority has no obligation to pay its special obligations other than from such payments. The Authority’s general
obligations are payable from any moneys of the Authority legally available for the payment of such obligations.
However, the payments required to be made by or for the account of the institution for which general obligationswere
issued generally have been pledged or assigned by the Authority to trusteesfor the hol ders of such general obligations.
The Authority has always paid the principal of and interest on its special and general obligations ontime and in full.
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The total amounts of the Authority bonds and notes (excluding debt of the Agency assumed by the Authority on

September 1, 1995 pursuant to the Consolidation Act) outstanding at June 30, 2004 were as follows:

Bondsand
Bonds Notes Notes
PublicPrograms Bondsl ssued Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding
State University of New Y ork
Dormitory Facilities $ 1,648,516,000 $ 589,770,000 $ 0 $ 589,770,000

State University of New Y ork

Educational and Athletic Facilities 9,757,867,999 4,176,389,809 0 4,176,389,809
Upstate Community Colleges of the

State University of New Y ork 1,035,570,000 492,015,000 0 492,015,000
Senior Colleges of the City University

of New York 7,616,453,549 2,907,383,511 0 2,907,383,511
Community Colleges of the City University

of New York 2,094,411,563 618,557,257 0 618,557,257
BOCES and School Districts 1,402,831,208 1,180,740,000 0 1,180,740,000
Judicial Facilities 1,563,692,717 767,982,717 0 767,982,717
New Y ork State Departments of

Health and Education and Other 1,934,655,000 1,174,220,000 0 1,174,220,000
Mental Health Services Facilities 4,393,955,000 3,496,685,000 0 3,496,685,000
New Y ork State Taxable Pension Bonds 773,475,000 0 0 0
Municipal Health Facilities

Improvement Program 901,760,000 883,530,000 0 883,530,000

Total Public Programs $ 33,123,188,036 $ 16,287,273,294 $ 0 $ 16,287,273,294
Bondsand
Bonds Notes Notes

Non-Public Programs Bondsl ssued Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding

Independent Colleges, Universities and
Other Institutions

$ 11,405,561,953

$ 5,562,626,371

$ 122,935,000

$ 5,685,561,371

Voluntary Non-Profit Hospital s 9,132,314,309 6,474,636,209 0 6,474,636,209
Facilities for the Aged 1,708,695,000 1,187,755,000 0 1,187,755,000
Supplemental Higher Education Loan

Financing Program 95,000,000 0 0 0

Total Non-Public Programs

GRAND TOTAL

$ 22,341,571,262  $ 13,225,017,581

$ 122,935,000

$ 13,347,952,581

$ 55,464,759,298 $ 29,512,290,875

$ 122,935,000

$ 29,635,225,875

Outstanding Indebtedness of the Agency Assumed by the Authority

At June 30, 2004, the Agency had approximately $1.8 billion aggregate principal amount of bonds outstanding, the
obligationsastoall of which have been assumed by the Authority. Thedebt service on each suchissueof bondsispaid
from moneysreceived by the Authority (assuccessor to the Agency) or thetrusteefrom or on behalf of theentity having
facilities financed with the proceeds from such issue.

Thetotal amountsof the Agency’ shonds(whichindebtednesswasassumed by the Authority on September 1, 1995)
outstanding at June 30, 2004 were as follows:

Bondslssued

PublicPrograms BondsOutstanding

Mental Health Services Improvement Facilities.............cc....... $ 3,817,230,725 $ -

Non-Public Programs Bonds I ssued BondsOQutstanding

Hospital and Nursing Home Project Bond Program.................. $
Insured Mortgage Programs.....................
Revenue Bonds, Secured Loan and Other Programs................

Total Non-Public Programs..................

GRAND TOTAL oo

226,230,000
6,056,990,000

51

2,414,240,000
.................................. $ 8,697,460,000
.................................. $ 12,514,690,725

$ 31,640,000
1,462,819,927
297,345,000

$ 1,791,804,927
$ 1,791,804,927



Governance

The Authority carries out its programs through an eleven-member board, a full-time staff of approximately 660
persons, independent bond counsel and other outsi de advisors. Board membersinclude the Commissioner of Education
of the State, the Commissioner of Health of the State, the State Comptroller or one member appointed by him or her who
serves until his or her successor is appointed, the Director of the Budget of the State, one member appointed by the
Temporary President of the State Senate, one member appointed by the Speaker of the State Assembly and fivemembers
appointed by the Governor, with the advice and consent of the Senate, for terms of three years. The Commissioner of
Education of the State, the Commissioner of Health of the State and the Director of the Budget of the State each may
appoint a representative to attend and vote at Authority meetings. The members of the Authority serve without
compensation, but are entitled to reimbursement of expenses incurred in the performance of their duties.

The Governor of the State appoints a Chair from the members appointed by him or her and the members of the
Authority annually choose the following officers, of which thefirst two must be members of the Authority: Vice-Chair,
Secretary, Treasurer, Assistant Secretaries and Assistant Treasurers.

The current members of the Authority are as follows:
GAIL H. GORDON, Esq., Chair, Slingerlands.

Gail H. Gordon currently serves as Deputy Commissioner and General Counsel for the Office of Children and Family
Services. She previously was of counsel to the law firm of Helm, Shapiro, Anito & McCale, P.C., in Albany, New Y ork,
where she was engaged in the private practice of law. From 1987 to 1993, Ms. Gordon served as Counsel to the
Comptroller of the State of New Y ork where she directed a legal staff of approximately 40 attorneys, was responsible
for providing legal and policy advice to the State Comptroller and his deputiesin all areas of the State Comptroller’'s
responsihilities, including the supervision of accountsof public authoritiesand in the administration, as soletrustee, of
the New Y ork State Employees Retirement System and the Policeman’s and Firemen’ s Retirement System. She served
as Deputy Counsel to the Comptroller of the State of New York from 1983 to 1987. From 1974 to 1983, Ms. Gordon
was an attorney with the law firm of Hinman, Howard & Kattell, Binghamton, New Y ork, where she concentrated in
areas of real estate, administrative and municipal law. Ms. Gordon holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from Smith College
and a Juris Doctor degree from Cornell University School of Law. Ms. Gordon’s term expires on March 31, 2007.

JOHN B. JOHNSON, JR., Vice-Chair, Watertown.

John B. Johnson, Jr. was appointed as aMember of the Authority by the Governor on April 26, 2004. Mr. Johnson
is Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Johnson Newspaper Corporation, which publishes the
Watertown Daily Times, Batavia Daily News, Malone Evening Telegram, Catskill Daily Mail, Hudson Register Star,
Ogdensburg Journal, M assena-Potsdam Courier Observer, seven weekly newspapers and three shopping newspapers.
Heisdirector of the New Y ork Newspapers Foundation, amember of the Development Authority of the North Country
and the Fort Drum Regional Liaison Committee, president of the Bugbee Housing Development Corporation, President
of the North Country Community Foundation, and director of the YMCA of Jefferson County. Mr. Johnson has been
amember of the American Society of Newspaper Editors since 1978, and was a Pulitzer Prize juror in 1978, 1979 and
2001. He was atrustee of Clarkson University, Potsdam, New York. He holds a Bachelor’s degree from Vanderbilt
University, and Master’ s degrees in Journalism and Business Administration from the Columbia University Graduate
School of Journalism and Business. Mr. Johnson was awarded an Honorary Doctor of Science degree from Clarkson
University. His term expires on March 31, 2007.

JOSE ALBERTO CORVALAN, M.D., Secretary, Armonk.

Dr. Corvalan was appointed as aMember of the Authority by the Governor on June 18, 2002. Dr. Corvalan is Chief
of Surgery, Department of Surgery, St. Clare’ sHospital and Health Center, New Y ork, New Y ork. Heisalso an attending
surgeon at St. Vincent's Hospital and Medical Center and St. Clare's Hospital and Health Center. Dr. Corvalan is a
Diplomate, American Board of Surgery, and is a Fellow of the American College of Surgeons and the New Y ork
Academy of Medicine. Dr. Corvalan has held anumber of teaching positions and is Associate Professor of Surgery at
New York Medical College, Vahala, New York. His term expires on March 31, 2005.

BRIAN RUDER, Scarsdale.

Mr. Ruder was appointed as a Member of the Authority by the Governor on May 3, 2004. Heis Chief Executive
Officer of Skylight Partners, astrategic marketing and business devel opment consulting group that he founded in 2001.
Prior to Skylight Partners, Mr. Ruder served for four years as Executive Vice President of Global Marketing for
Citigroup. He spent 16 yearsat the H.J. Heinz Co. in progressively responsible positions, including President of Heinz
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USA, President of Weight Watchers Food Company and corporate Vice President of Worldwide Infant Feeding. Healso
served as Director of Marketing, New Products and Sales for Pepsi USA inthe mid-1980's. Mr. Ruder is Vice Chairman
of theNew Y ork State Board of Science, Technology and Academic Research (NY STAR), and also serves on the board
of the Adirondack Council, the Scarsdale United Way, the New York Metro Chapter of the Young Presidents
Organization and PNC Private Client Advisors. Mr. Ruder earned aBachelor of Artsdegreein American History in 1976
from Washington University in St. Louis, Mo., and a Master of Business Administration degree in Marketing in 1978
from the Tuck School at Dartmouth College. His term expires on March 31, 2006.

ANTHONY B. MARTINO, CPA, Buffalo.

Mr. Martino was appointed as a Member of the Authority by the Governor on April 26, 2004. With over 37 years
of experience in finance and public accounting, he is aretired partner of the Buffalo CPA firm Lumsden & McCormick,
LLP. Hebegan hiscareer at Price Waterhouse where heworked in the firm’ s Buffalo and Washington, DC, offices. Mr.
Martino is a member of the American Institute of CPAs and the New Y ork State Society of CPAs. Long involved in
community organizations, he currently serves on the boards of the Buffalo Niagara Medical Campus as Vice Chair,
Hauptman-Woodward Medical Research Institute where he chairs the Building Committee, Mount Calvary Cemetery
as Chair of the Investment Committee and a member of the Budget Committee, Cradle Beach Camp of which heisa
former Chair, The Kelly for Kids Foundation and Key Bank. Mr. Martino received a Bachelor of Science degree in
accounting from the University at Buffalo. Histerm expires on August 31, 2004.

SANDRA M. SHAPARD, Demar.

Ms. Shapard was appointed asaMember of the Authority by the State Comptroller on January 21, 2003. Ms. Shapard
served as Deputy Comptroller for the Office of the State Comptroller from January, 1995 until her retirement in 2001,
during which time she headed the Office of Fiscal Research and Policy Analysisand twiceserved asActing First Deputy
Comptroller. Previously, Ms. Shapard held the positions of Deputy Director and First Deputy Director for the New Y ork
State Division of Budget, from 1991 to 1994, and Deputy Assistant Commissioner for Transit for the State Department
of Transportation, from 1988 to 1991. She began her career in New Y ork State government with the Assembly in 1975
where, over athirteenyear period, sheheld the positionsof Staff Director of the Office of Counsel tothe Mgjority, Special
Assistant to the Speaker, and Deputy Director of Budget Studiesfor the Committee on Waysand Means. Ms. Shapard
also served asAssi stant to the County Executivein Dutchess County. A graduate of Mississippi University for Women,
Ms. Shapard received a Masters of Public Administration from Harvard University, John F. Kennedy School of
Government, where she has served as visiting lecturer, and has completed graduate work at Vanderbilt University.

ROMAN B. HEDGES, Demar.

Dr. Hedgeswas appointed asaMember of the Authority by the Speaker of the State Assembly on February 24, 2003.
Dr. Hedges currently serves asthe Deputy Secretary of the New Y ork State Assembly Committee on Waysand Means.
Dr. Hedges serves on the Legislative Advisory Task Force on Demographic Research and Reapportionment. He
previously served as the Director of Fiscal Studies of the Assembly Committee on Ways and Means where he was
responsible for the preparation of studies of the New Y ork State economy and revenues of local government, tax policy
and revenue analyses, and for negotiating revenue and |ocal government legislation for the Assembly. Dr. Hedgeswas
an Associate Professor of Political Science and Public Policy at the State University of New York at Albany where he
taught graduate and undergraduate coursesin American politics, research methodol ogy, and public policy. Dr. Hedges
holdsaDoctor of Philosophy and aMaster of ArtsdegreefromtheUniversity of Rochester and aBachelor of Artsdegree
from Knox College.

DEAN H. LEITH, JrR., Troy.

Mr. Leith was appointed asaMember of the Authority by the Temporary President of the State Senate on September
11, 1998. Mr. Leith is a former President, CEO, and Chairman of the Board of Garden Way, Inc. in Troy, New Y ork.
He has served on the boards of Samaritan Hospital and the Rensselaer County Historical Society, and has chaired
fundraising campaigns for several not-for-profit organizations. He received his Bachelor of Arts degree from the
University of Michigan.

RICHARD P. MILLS, Commissioner of Education of the State of New York, Albany; ex-officio.

Dr. Mills became Commissioner of Education on September 12, 1995. Prior to his appointment, Dr. Mills served
as Commissioner of Education for the State of Vermont since 1988. From 1984 to 1988, Dr. Millswas Special Assistant
to Governor Thomas H. Kean of New Jersey. Prior to 1984, Dr. Mills held a number of positionswithin the New Jersey
Department of Education. Dr. Mills' career in education includes teaching and administrative experience at the
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secondary and postsecondary educationlevels. Dr. MillsholdsaBachelor of Artsdegreefrom Middlebury Collegeand
aMaster of Arts, a Master of Business Administration and a Doctor of Education degree from Columbia University.

CAROLE E. STONE, Budget Director for the Sate of New York, Albany; ex-officio.

Ms. Stone was appointed Director of the New Y ork State Division of Budget by Governor George E. Pataki on June
26, 2000. AsBudget Director, Ms. Stone is the Governor’s chief advisor on State fiscal issues and is responsible for
devel oping, negotiating and administering the New Y ork State budget. In addition, sheisthe Governor’sprimary aide
regarding the proper management and oversight of all funds and resources availableto New Y ork State. Ms. Stone has
served inthe Division of Budget for 25 years. Shewas named Budget Director after serving as Acting Budget Director
since January 1, 2000. Prior to that, she had served the past five years as Deputy Director. 1n 1986, she was appointed
to serve as the head of the Division's Public Protection Unit — assuming budget management and oversight
responsibilities for the State’s criminal justice and public protection agencies. Ms. Stone has received national
recognitionfor her outstanding achievementsasabudget professional, includingthereceiptin 1996 of the John E. Burton
Service Award, which is presented each year by the National Association of Budget Officials. Ms. Stone received a
Bachelor’'s degree from Skidmore College.

ANTONIA C. NOVELLO, M.D., Commissioner of Health of the State of New York, Albany; ex-officio.

Dr. Novello became Commissioner of Health on June 15, 1999. Prior to her appointment, Dr. Novello held anumber
of teaching positionsincluding Visiting Professor of Heal th Policy and Management and Special Director of Community
Health Policies at the Johns Hopkins University School of Hygiene and Public Health, Adjunct Professor of Pediatrics
and Communicable Diseases at the University of Michigan and Adjunct Professor of International Health at the Johns
Hopkins School of Public Health. Between 1993 and 1996, Dr. Novello served as the United Nations Children’s Fund
(UNICEF) Specia Representative for Health and Nutrition, where she advised UNICEF s executive director on global
issues pertaining to vitamin deficiency disorders, immunizations and preventing substance abuse among the world’s
youth. Priortothat, Dr. Novello served asthe Surgeon General of the United States. Before becoming Surgeon General,
Dr. Novello had along career working for the United States Public Health Service at the National Institutes of Health.

The principal staff of the Authority is as follows:

MARYANNE GRIDLEY isthe Executive Director and chief administrative and operating officer of the Authority.
Ms. Gridley is responsible to the Authority for the management, operations and administration of its affairs. Prior to
joining the Authority in April 2002, she was First Deputy Secretary to Governor George E. Pataki, serving as a senior
advisor on policy issues. From 1995 to 1999, she held positions with the Governor’ s Office of Public Authoritieswithin
the Executive Chamber, first as Assistant Secretary, and then as Deputy Secretary. From 1985t0 1995, shewas A ssistant
Deputy Comptroller for Investments and Cash Management in the Office of the State Comptroller. She also served as
aSenior Legidlative Budget Analyst with the State Senate Finance Committee from 1977 to 1985. The Municipal Forum
of New York honored Ms. Gridley with its Public Sector Career Service Award in March 2000. She received her
Bachelor’ sdegree from Newton College of the Sacred Heart, and holdsaMaster’ sdegreein Public Administration from
the State University of New York at Albany.

MICHAEL T. CORRIGAN is the Deputy Executive Director of the Authority, and assists the Executive Director
in the administration and operation of the Authority. Mr. Corrigan came to the Authority in 1995 as Budget Director,
and served as Deputy Chief Financial Officer from 2000 until 2003. He began his government service career in 1983
asabudget analyst for Renssel aer County, and served asthe County’ sBudget Director from 1986 to 1995. Immediately
before comingtothe Authority, he served asthe appointed Renssel aer County Executivefor ashort period. Mr. Corrigan
holds a Bachelor’s degree in Economics from the State University of New Y ork at Plattsburgh and a Master’s degree
in Business Administration from the University of Massachusetts.

CHERYL ISHMAEL isthe Managing Director of Public Finance. She conductsand coordinatesfinancial feasibility
studies for certain institutions and coordinates the production of disclosure documents for the sale of Authority
obligations. Ms. Ishmael hasworked in financein both the public and private sectors, asaManaging Director of public
finance at two investment banking firms. She served as Deputy Budget Director of the New York City Office of
Management and Budget and as Director of Fiscal Studiesfor the State Senate Finance Committee. She also served as
an Adjunct Professor at Columbia University. She holds a Bachelor’s degreein Political Science and Journalism from
Syracuse University and aMaster’ s degreein Public Administration from the State University of New Y ork at Albany,
Graduate School of Public Affairs.
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LORA K. LEFEBVRE is the Managing Director of Policy and Program Development. She is responsible for the
supervision and direction of the Authority’s health care monitoring and higher education monitoring groups. Prior to
joining the Authority in 1995, Ms. L efebvreworked for the New Y ork State Division of Budget for nineyearsin anumber
of different capacities, working in subject areas that included the State University of New Y ork, school aid and public
authority oversight. She holds a Bachelor of Artsin Political Science from Alfred University and a Master’s degreein
Public Administration from the State University of New York at Albany.

JOHN G. PASICZNYK isthe Chief Financial Officer of the Authority. Mr. Pasicznyk is responsible for investment
management and accounting, aswell as the development of thefinancial policiesfor the Authority. Beforejoining the
Authority in 1985, Mr. Pasicznyk worked in audit positions at KPMG Peat Marwick and Deloitte & Touche. He holds
aBachelor’ sdegree from Syracuse University and a Master of Business Administration degree from the Fugua School
of Business at Duke University.

JEFFREY M. POHL is General Counsel to the Authority. Mr. Pohl is responsible for all legal services including
legislation, litigation, contract matters and thelegal aspectsof all Authority financings. Heisamember of the New Y ork
State Bar, and most recently served as a counsel in the public finance group of alarge New York law firm. Mr. Pohl
had previously served in various capacities in State government with the Office of the State Comptroller and the New
York State Senate. He holds a Bachelor’s degree from Franklin and Marshall College and a Juris Doctor degree from
Albany Law School of Union University.

DOUGLAS M. VAN VLECK isthe Managing Director of Construction. In that capacity, heisresponsible for the
Authority’ s construction groups, including design, project management, rehabilitation, purchasing, interior design and
engineering services. He has been with the Authority for over 25 years, where he has held increasingly responsible
positions within the Construction Division. Mr. Van Vleck holds a Bachelor’s degree from Siena College and Master
of Business Administration from Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute.

Claims and Litigation

Although certain claims and litigation have been asserted or commenced against the Authority, the Authority
believesthat these claims and litigation are covered by the Authority’ sinsurance or by bondsfiled with the Authority
shouldthe Authority beheld liablein any of such matters, or that the Authority has sufficient fundsavailableor thelegal
power and ability to seek sufficient funds to meet any such claims or judgments resulting from such litigation.

Other Matters
New York State Public Authorities Control Board

The New York State Public Authorities Control Board (the “PACB”) has authority to approve the financing and
constructionof any new or reactivated projectsproposed by the A uthority and certain other publicauthoritiesof the State.
The PACB approves the proposed new projects only upon its determination that there are commitments of funds
sufficient to finance the acquisition and construction of the projects. The Authority has obtained the approval of the
PACB for the issuance of the Series 2004A Bonds.

Legislation

Fromtimetotime, billsareintroduced into the State L egislaturewhich, if enacted into law, would affect the Authority
anditsoperations. TheAuthority isnot abletorepresent whether such billswill beintroduced or becomelaw inthefuture.
In addition, the State undertakes periodic studies of public authoritiesin the State (including the Authority) and their

financing programs. Any of such periodic studies could result in proposed |egislation which, if adopted, would affect
the Authority and its operations.

Environmental Quality Review

The Authority complies with the New Y ork State Environmental Quality Review Act and with the New Y ork State
Historic Preservation Act of 1980, and the respective regulations promulgated thereunder respecting the Project to the
extent such acts and regulations are applicable.

Independent Auditors

Theaccounting firm of KPM G LLP audited thefinancial statements of the Authority for thefiscal year ended March
31, 2004. Copiesof themost recent audited financial statementsareavailableuponrequest at the officesof the Authority.
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PART 9 - LEGALITY OF THE SERIES 2004A BONDS FOR INVESTMENT AND DEPOSIT

Under New Y ork State law, the Series 2004A Bonds are securitiesin which all public officers and bodies of the State
and all municipalities and municipal subdivisions, all insurance companies and associations, al savings banks and
savingsinstitutions, including savingsand | oan associations, administrators, guardians, executors, trustees, committees,
conservators and other fiduciaries in the State may properly and legally invest fundsin their control.

The Series 2004A Bonds may be deposited with the State comptroller to secure deposits of State moneysin banks,
trust companies and industrial banks.

PART 10 - NEGOTIABLE INSTRUMENTS

The Series 2004A Bonds shall be negotiable instruments as provided in the Act, subject to the provisions for
registration and transfer contained in the Resolution and in the Series 2004A Bonds.

PART 11 - TAX EXEMPTION

Opinion of Bond Counsel

In the opinion of Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP, Bond Counsel, under existing statutes and court decisions and
assuming continuing compliance with certain tax covenants described herein, (i) interest on the Series 2004A Bondsis
excluded from gross income for Federal income tax purposes pursuant to Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended (the “Code”), and (ii) interest on the Series 2004A Bonds is not treated as a preference item in
calculating the alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations under the Code; such interest,
however, isincluded in the adjusted current earnings of certain corporationsfor purposes of calculating the alternative
minimum tax imposed on such corporations. | nrendering itsopinion, Bond Counsel hasrelied on certainrepresentations,
certifications of fact, and statements of reasonable expectations made by the Authority, the University and others, in
connection with the Series 2004A Bonds, and Bond Counsel has assumed compliance by the Authority and the
University with certain ongoing covenantsto comply with applicable requirements of the Code to assure the exclusion
of interest on the Series 2004A Bonds from gross income under Section 103 of the Code.

In addition, in the opinion of Bond Counsel, under existing statutes, interest on the Series 2004A Bondsis exempt
from personal income taxes imposed by the State of New Y ork or any political subdivision thereof (including The City
of New York).

Bond Counsel expressesno opinion regarding any other Federal or statetax consequenceswith respect tothe Series
2004A Bonds. Bond Counsel rendersits opinion under existing statutes and court decisions as of the issue date, and
assumesnoobligationtoupdateitsopinion after theissuedatetoreflect any futureaction, fact or circumstance, or change
inlaw or interpretation, or otherwise. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion on the effect of any action hereafter taken
or not taken in reliance upon an opinion of other counsel on the exclusion from gross income for Federal income tax
purposes of interest on the Series 2004A Bonds, or under state and local tax law.

Certain Ongoing Federal Tax Requirements and Covenants

The Code establishes certain ongoing requirementsthat must be met subsequent to theissuance and delivery of the
Bonds in order that interest on the Series 2004A Bonds be and remain excluded from gross income under Section 103
of the Code. These requirementsinclude, but are not limited to, requirements relating to use and expenditure of gross
proceeds of the Series 2004A Bonds, yield and other restrictions on investments of gross proceeds, and the arbitrage
rebate requirement that certain excessearningson grossproceedsberebated to the Federal government. Noncompliance
with such requirements may cause interest on the Series 2004A Bondsto become included in grossincome for Federal
income tax purposes retroactive to their issue date, irrespective of the date on which such noncompliance occursor is
discovered. The Authority and the University have covenanted to comply with certain applicable requirements of the
Code to assure the exclusion of interest on the Series 2004A Bonds from gross income under Section 103 of the Code.
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Certain Collateral Federal Tax Consequences

Thefollowing isabrief discussion of certain collateral Federal income tax matters with respect to the Series 2004A
Bonds. It doesnot purport to addressall aspects of Federal taxation that may berelevant to aparticular owner of aSeries
2004A Bond. Prospectiveinvestors, particularly those who may be subject to special rules, are advised to consult their
own tax advisors regarding the Federal tax consequences of owning and disposing of the Series 2004A Bonds.

Prospective owners of the Series 2004A Bonds should be aware that the ownership of such obligations may result
in collateral Federal income tax conseguences to various categories of persons, such as corporations (including S
corporations and foreign corporations), financia institutions, property and casualty and life insurance companies,
individual recipients of Social Security and railroad retirement benefits, individuals otherwise eligible for the earned
income tax credit, and taxpayers deemed to have incurred or continued indebtedness to purchase or carry obligations
theinterest onwhichisexcluded from grossincomefor Federal incometax purposes. Interest onthe Series2004A Bonds
may betaken into account in determiningthetax liability of foreign corporati ons subject to thebranch profitstax imposed
by Section 884 of the Code.

Original Issue Discount

“QOriginal issue discount” (“OID") isthe excess of the sum of all amounts payable at the stated maturity of a Series
2004A Bond (excluding certain “qualified stated interest” that isunconditionally payable at |east annually at prescribed
rates) over the issue price of that maturity. In general, the “issue price” of a maturity means the first price at which a
substantial amount of the Series 2004A Bonds of that maturity was sold (excluding sales to bond houses, brokers, or
similar persons acting in the capacity as underwriters, placement agents, or wholesalers). Ingeneral, theissue pricefor
each maturity of Series 2004A Bondsis expected to betheinitial public offering price set forth on the cover page of the
Official Statement. Bond Counsel further is of the opinion that, for any Series 2004A Bonds having OID (a“Discount
Bond"), OID that has accrued and is properly allocable to the owners of the Discount Bonds under Section 1288 of the
Codeisexcludable from grossincomefor Federal income tax purposesto the same extent as other interest on the Series
2004A Bonds.

In general, under Section 1288 of the Code, OID on a Discount Bond accrues under a constant yield method, based
on periodic compounding of interest over prescribed accrual periods using acompounding rate determined by reference
to the yield on that Discount Bond. An owner’s adjusted basis in a Discount Bond is increased by accrued OID for
purposes of determining gain or loss on sale, exchange, or other disposition of such Bond. Accrued OID may be taken
into account as an increase in the amount of tax-exempt income received or deemed to have been received for purposes
of determiningvariousother tax consequencesof owningaDiscount Bond eventhoughtherewill not beacorresponding
cash payment.

Owners of Discount Bonds should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the treatment of original issue
discount for Federal income tax purposes, including various special rules relating thereto, and the state and local tax
consequences of acquiring, holding, and disposing of Discount Bonds.

Bond Premium

In general, if an owner acquires a Series 2004A Bond for apurchase price (excluding accrued interest) or otherwise
at atax basisthat reflects apremium over the sum of all amounts payable on the Series 2004A Bond after the acquisition
date (excluding certain “qualified stated interest” that isunconditionally payable at |east annually at prescribed rates),
that premium constitutes* bond premium” on that Bond (a“ Premium Bond”). Ingeneral, under Section 171 of the Code,
an owner of a Premium Bond must amortize the bond premium over the remaining term of the Premium Bond, based
on the owner’syield over the remaining term of the Premium Bond determined based on constant yield principles (in
certain cases involving a Premium Bond callable prior to its stated maturity, the amortization period and yield may be
required to be determined on the basis of an earlier call datethat resultsin the lowest yield on such bond). An owner of
a Premium Bond must amortize the bond premium by offsetting the qualified stated interest allocable to each interest
accrual period under the owner’ s regular method of accounting against the bond premium allocable to that period. In
the case of atax-exempt Premium Bond, if the bond premium allocable to an accrual period exceeds the qualified stated
interest allocable to that accrual period, the excessisanondeductibleloss. Under certain circumstances, the owner of
a Premium Bond may realize a taxable gain upon disposition of the Premium Bond even though it is sold or redeemed
for an amount lessthan or equal to the owner’ soriginal acquisition cost. Ownersof any Premium Bonds should consult
their own tax advisors regarding the treatment of bond premium for Federal income tax purposes, including various

57



special rules relating thereto, and state and local tax consequences, in connection with the acquisition, ownership,
amortization of bond premium on, sale, exchange, or other disposition of Premium Bonds.

L egislation

Legislation affecting municipal bondsis regularly under consideration by the United States Congress. There can
be no assurance that legislation enacted or proposed after the date of issuance of the Series 2004A Bondswill not have
an adverse effect on the tax-exempt status or market price of the Series 2004A Bonds.

PART 12 - STATE NOT LIABLE ON THE SERIES 2004A BONDS

The Act providesthat notes and bonds of the Authority shall not be adebt of the State nor shall the State beliable
thereon, nor shall such notes or bonds be payable out of any funds other than those of the Authority. The Resolution
specifically provides that the Series 2004A Bonds shall not be a debt of the State nor shall the State be liable thereon.

PART 13 - COVENANT BY THE STATE

TheAct statesthat the State pledges and agrees with the holders of the Authority’ s notes and bondsthat the State
will not limit or alter the rights vested in the Authority to provide projects, to establish and collect rental stherefrom and
to fulfill agreements with the holders of the Authority’ s notes and bonds or in any way impair the rights and remedies
of the holders of such notes or bonds until such notes or bonds and interest thereon and all costs and expensesin
connection with any action or proceeding by or on behalf of the holders of such notes or bonds are fully met and
discharged. Notwithstanding the State’ s pledges and agreements contained in the Act, the State may in the exercise of
its sovereign power enact or amend its laws which, if determined to be both reasonable and necessary to serve an
important public purpose, could have the effect of impairing these pledges and agreementswith the Authority and with
the holders of the Authority’ s notes or bonds.

PART 14 - LEGAL MATTERS

Certain legal mattersincidental to the authorization and issuance of the Series 2004A Bonds by the Authority are
subject to the approval of Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP, New York, New Y ork, Bond Counsel, whose approving
opinion will be delivered with the Series 2004A Bonds. The proposed form of Bond Counsel’s opinion is set forth in
Appendix E hereto.

Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the University by its counsel, Nixon Peabody LLP, Rochester, New
Y ork. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Underwriters by their counsel, Robinson, Bradshaw & Hinson,
P.A., Charlotte, North Carolina.

Thereisnot now pending any litigation restraining or enjoining theissuance or delivery of the Series 2004A Bonds
or questioning or affecting the validity of the Series 2004A Bonds or the proceedings and authority under which they
areto beissued.

PART 15 - UNDERWRITING

The Underwriters have jointly and severally agreed, subject to certain conditions, to purchase the Series 2004A
Bonds from the Authority at an aggregate purchase price of $45,302,847.15 and to make a public offering of the Series
2004A Bonds at prices that are not in excess of the public offering prices stated on the cover page of this Official
Statement. The Underwriters will be obligated to purchase all such Series 2004A Bonds if any are purchased.

The Series 2004A Bonds may be offered and sold to certain deal ers (including the Underwriters) at prices|ower than
such public offering prices, and such public offering prices may be changed, from time to time, by the Underwriters.
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PART 16 - CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

In order to assist the Underwriters in complying with Rule 15¢2-12 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“Rule 15¢2-12"), the University has undertaken in awritten agreement for the benefit of the Series 2004A
Bondholdersto provide to the Authority, on or before 120 days after the end of each fiscal year, commencing with the
fiscal year of the University ending June 30, 2004 for filing by the Authority with each nationally recognized municipal
securitiesinformation repository designated by the Securities and Exchange Commission in accordance with Rule 15¢2-
12 (each a“Repository”), and if and when one is established, the New Y ork State Information Depository (the “ State
Information Depository”), on an annual basis, operating dataand financial information of thetype hereinafter described
whichisincluded in this Official Statement (the“Annual Information”), together with the University’ sannual financial
statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and audited by an independent firm
of certified public accountantsin accordance with generally accepted accounting standards.

If, and only if, and to the extent that it receives the Annual Information and annual financial statements described
above from the University, the Authority has undertaken in awritten agreement for the benefit of the Bondholders, on
behalf of and as agent for the University, to file such information and financial statements, as promptly as practicable,
but nolater thanthree businessdaysafter receipt of theinformation by the Authority fromtheUniversity, with each such
Repository and with the State Information Depository. In addition, the Authority has undertaken, for the benefit of the
Series 2004A Bondholders, to provide each such Repository or to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the
“MSRB”), and to the State Information Depository, in atimely manner, the noticesrequired to be provided by Rule 15¢2-
12 and described below (the “Notices”).

The Annual Information means (@) annual information concerning the University consisting of operating data and
financial information of thetypeincluded in“PART 4 - THE UNIVERSITY,” herein under the headings“OPERATING
INFORMATION” and “ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT INFORMATION” relating to: (1) student enrollment,
similar to that set forth under the table heading, “ENROLLMENT SUMMARY: " (2) student recruitment, similar to that
set forth under the table heading, “ ADMISSION STATISTICS;” (3) tuition and other student charges, similar to that
set forth under the table heading, “STUDENT CHARGES,” (4) financial aid, similar to that set forth under the table
heading, “SOURCES OF SCHOLARSHIP AND GRANT AID;” (5) faculty, similar to that set forth under the table
heading, “FACULTY PROFILE;” (6) labor relations including material information about union contracts and, unless
such information is included in the audited financial statements of the University, retirement plans,; (7) federal
government grants and contracts, unless such information is included in the audited financial statements of the
University; (8) endowment and similar funds, unlesssuch informationisincludedintheaudited financial statements of
the University; (9) plant val ues, unlesssuchinformationisincludedintheaudited financial statementsof theUniversity;
and (10) outstanding long-termindebtedness, unlesssuchinformationisincluded inthe audited financial statements of
the University; (b) annual information concerning the Hospital consisting of operating data and financial information
of thetypeincluded in “PART 5- THE HOSPITAL/MEDICAL CENTER" herein relating to: (1) medical staff, of the
type set forth under the table heading “MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFFCOMPOSITION;” (2) utilization, of thetype
set forth under the table heading “PERCENT OF HOSPITAL DISCHARGES" and “HOSPITAL UTILIZATION
DATA;” (3) servicearea, of thetype set forth under thetable heading “ AREA HOSPITAL UTILIZATION;” (4) sources
of revenue, of the type set forth under the table heading “SOURCES OF HOSPITAL'S PATIENT SERVICES
REVENUE" and (5) revenue and expense data, of thetype set forth under the subheading “Hospital Finances,” unless
such information is included in the audited financial statements of the Hospital; and (c) a narrative explanation, if
necessary toavoid misunderstandingandto assi st thereader in understanding the presentation of financial and operating
data concerning the University and in judging the financial and operating condition of the University.

The Notices include notices of any of the following events with respect to the Series 2004A Bonds, if material: (1)
principal and interest payment delinquencies; (2) non-payment rel ated defaults; (3) unscheduled drawson debt service
reservesreflecting financial difficulties; (4) unscheduled draws on credit enhancementsreflecting financial difficulties;
(5) substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; (6) adverse tax opinionsor events affecting
the tax-exempt status of the Series 2004A Bonds; (7) modificationsto the rights of holders of the Series 2004A Bonds;
(8) bond calls; (9) defeasances; (10) release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Series 2004A
Bonds; and (11) rating changes. In addition, the Authority will undertake, for the benefit of the Holders of the Series
2004A Bonds, to provide to each Repository or the M SRB and to the State Information Depository, in atimely manner,
notice of any failure by the University to provide the Annual Information and annual financial statements by the date
required in the University’ s undertaking described above.
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Thesoleand exclusiveremedy for breach or default under the agreement to provide continuing disclosure described
aboveis an action to compel specific performance of the undertakings of the University and/or the Authority, and no
person, including any Holder of the Series 2004A Bonds, may recover monetary damages thereunder under any
circumstances. The Authority or the University may be compelled to comply with their respective obligationsunder the
continuing disclosure agreement (i) in the case of enforcement of their obligations to provide information required
thereunder by any Holder of Outstanding Series 2004A Bondsor by the Trustee on behalf of the Holders of Outstanding
Series2004A Bondsor (ii) inthe caseof challengesto the adequacy of theinformation provided, by the Trustee on behal f
of the Holders of the Series 2004A Bonds; provided, however, that the Trustee shall not be required to take any
enforcement action except at the direction of the Holders of not less than 25% in aggregate principal amount of Series
2004A Bonds at thetime Outstanding. A breach or default under the agreement shall not constitute an Event of Default
under the Resolution, the Series 2004A Resolution or the Loan Agreement. In addition, if al or any part of Rule 15¢2-
12 ceasesto bein effect for any reason, then theinformation required to be provided under the agreement, insofar asthe
provision of Rule 15¢2-12 no longer in effect required the providing of such information, shall no longer be required
to be provided.

The foregoing undertaking is intended to set forth a general description of the type of financial information and
operating data that will be provided; the description is not intended to state more than general categories of financial
information and operating data; and where an undertaking callsfor information that no longer can be generated because
the operations to which it related have been materially changed or discontinued, a statement to that effect will be
provided. The agreement, however, may be amended or modified without Series 2004A Bondholders' consent under
certain circumstances set forth therein. Copies of the agreement when executed by the partiesthereto upon the delivery
of the Series 2004A Bonds will be on file at the principal office of the Authority.

PART 17 - MISCELLANEOUS

References in this Official Statement to the Act, the Resolution, the Series 2004A Resolution and the Loan
Agreement do not purport to be complete. Refer to the Act, the Resolution, the Series 2004A Resolution and the Loan
Agreement for full and complete details of their provisions. Copies of the Resolution, the Series 2004A Resolution and
the Loan Agreement are on file with the Authority and the Trustee.

Theagreementsof the Authority with Hol ders of the Series2004A Bondsarefully set forthinthe Resol ution. Neither
any advertisement of the Series 2004A Bondsnor this Official Statement isto be construed asacontract with purchasers
of the Series 2004A Bonds.

Any statementsinthis Official Statement involving mattersof opinion, whether or not expressly stated, areintended
merely as expressions of opinion and not as representations of fact.

The information regarding the University, the Hospital/Medical Center, the 2004A Project, the Estimated Sources
and Uses of Funds, and the consolidated financial statements in Appendix B was supplied by the University. The
Authority believesthat thisinformationisreliable, but the Authority makesno representations or warrantieswhatsoever
asto the accuracy or completeness of thisinformation.

The information regarding DTC and DTC's book-entry only system has been furnished by DTC. The Authority
believes that this information is reliable, but makes no representations or warranties whatsoever to the accuracy or
completeness of this information.

“Appendix A - Definitions,” “Appendix C - Summary of Certain Provisions of the Loan Agreement,” “ Appendix
D - Summary of Certain Provisions of the Resolution” and “ Appendix E - Form of Approving Opinion of Bond Counsel”
have been prepared by Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP, New York, New York, Bond Counsel.

Consolidated Financial Statements for the years ended June 30, 2003 and 2002 of the University included in
Appendix B have been audited by the University’ sindependent certified public accountants, KPMG LLP, to the extent
and for the periods indicated in their report.

The University has reviewed the parts of this Official Statement describing the University, the Hospital/Medical
Center, the 2004A Project, the Estimated Sources and Uses of Funds and Appendix B. The University shall certify as
of the dates of sale and delivery of the Series 2004A Bonds that such parts do not contain any untrue statement of a
material fact and do not omit to state any material fact necessary to make the statements made therein, in thelight of the
circumstances under which the statements are made, not misleading.
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The University has agreed to indemnify the Authority, the Underwriters and certain others against losses, claims,
damagesand liabilitiesarising out of any untrue statements or omissions of statements of any material fact asdescribed
in the preceding paragraph.

The execution and delivery of this Official Statement by an Authorized Officer have been duly authorized by the
Authority.

DORMITORY AUTHORITY OF
THE STATE OF NEW YORK

By: /sl Maryanne Gridley

Authorized Officer
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Appendix A
DEFINITIONS

The following are definitions of certain terms used in this Official Statement.

Accreted Value means with respect to any Capital Appreciation Bond (i) as of any Valuation Date, the amount set
forth for such datein the Series Resol ution authorizing such Capital Appreciation Bond or aBond Series Certificate and
(ii) as of any date other than aValuation Date, the sum of (&) the Accreted Value on the preceding Valuation Date and
(b) the product of (1) a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of days having elapsed from the preceding
Valuation Date and the denominator of which is the number of days from such preceding Valuation Date to the next
succeeding Valuation Date, calculated based on the assumption that Accreted Value accrues during any semi-annual
period in equal daily amounts on the basis of ayear of twelve thirty-day months, and (2) the difference between the
Accreted Values for such Valuation Dates,

Act means the Dormitory Authority Act (being Chapter 524 of the Laws of 1944 of the State, as amended, and
constituting Title 4 of Article 8 of the Public Authorities Law, as amended);

Annual Administrative Fee means the fee payable during each Bond Year for the general administrative and
supervisory expenses of the Authority in an amount equal to .05% of the aggregate principal amount of Bondsissued
by the Authority; provided, however, the amount payable with respect to a Series of Bonds for the Bond Y ear during
which such Series of Bonds areissued shall be the amount determined as provided above multiplied by afraction, the
numerator of which isthe number of complete calendar months remaining in such Bond Y ear and the denominator of
which is twelve (12);

Appreciated Value means with respect to any Deferred Income Bond (i) as of any Valuation Date, the amount set
forth for such date in the Series Resol ution authorizing such Deferred Income Bond or aBond Series Certificate and (ii)
as of any date other than a Valuation Date, the sum of (a) the Appreciated Va ue on the preceding VVa uation Date and
(b) the product of (1) a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of days having elapsed from the preceding
Valuation Date and the denominator of which is the number of days from such preceding Valuation Date to the next
succeeding Valuation Date, cal cul ated based on the assumption that Appreciated V alue accrues during any semi-annual
period in equal daily amounts on the basis of ayear of twelve thirty-day months, and (2) the difference between the
Appreciated Values for such Valuation Dates, and (iii) as of any date of computation on and after the Interest
Commencement Date, the Appreciated Value on the Interest Commencement Date;

Arbitrage Rebate Fund meansthe fund so designated, created and established pursuant to the Resol ution;

Authority means the Dormitory Authority of the State of New York, a body corporate and politic constituting a
public benefit corporation of the State created by the Act, or any body, agency or instrumentality of the State which
succeedsto therights, powers, duties and functions of the Authority;

Authority Fee means afee payable to the Authority consisting of all the Authority'sinternal costs and overhead
expenses attributable to the issuance of a Series of Bonds and the construction of the Projects, as more particularly
described in the Loan Agreement;

Authorized Newspaper means The Bond Buyer or any other newspaper of general circulation printed inthe English
language and customarily published at |east onceaday for at |east five days (other than legal holidays) in each calendar
week in the Borough of Manhattan, City and State of New Y ork, designated by the Authority;

Authorized Officer means (i) in the case of the Authority, the Chair, the Vice-Chair, the Treasurer, an Assistant
Treasurer, the Secretary, an Assistant Secretary, the Executive Director, the Deputy Executive Director, the Chief
Financial Officer, the Managing Director of Public Finance, the Managing Director of Construction, the Managing
Director of Policy and Program Development, the Chief Financial Officer, the General Counsel, the Deputy General
Counsel, the Associate General Counsel, and an Assistant General Counsel, and when used with reference to any act
or document al so means any other person authorized by aresol ution or the by-laws of the Authority to perform such act
or execute such document; (ii) in the case of the University, any officer of the University, and when used with reference
to any act or document, means the person or persons authorized by aresolution or the by-laws of the University, or
designated in writing by an officer of the University to act on such officer’ sbehalf, to perform such act or execute such
document; and (iii) inthe case of the Trustee, any officer of the Trustee with direct responsibility for the administration
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of the Resolution and also means any other person authorized to perform any act or sign any document by or pursuant
to aresolution of the Board of Directors of the Trustee or the by-laws of the Trustee;

Available Assets means total assets of the University less all permanently restricted net assets of the University;
provided that such assets shall (i) includethe corresponding assets of all related entities and affiliates of the University
which are consolidated with such assets of the University in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and (ii) exclude the corresponding assets of all related entities and affiliates which are not legally available to the
University notwithstanding that such assets are consolidated with those of the University as provided in clause (i);
providedfurther that whenever Avail able Assetsisrequired to bedetermined based onthe University’ saudited financial
statements, total assetsand permanently restricted net assets shall be as shown on such financial statementswith such
adjustments as shall be appropriate to reflect the inclusion and exclusion of related entities and affiliates asrequired by
the preceding proviso;

Bond or Bonds meansany of thebondsof the Authority authorized pursuant to the Resol ution and i ssued pursuant
to the Resolution and to a Series Resol ution;

Bond Counsel meansan attorney or alaw firm, appointed by the Authority, having anational reputationinthefield
of municipal law whose opinions are generally accepted by purchasers of municipal bonds;

Bond Series Certificate meansthe certificate of an Authorized Officer of the Authority fixing terms, conditionsand
other details of Bonds in accordance with the delegation of power to do so under the Resolution or under a Series
Resolution;

Bond Year means aperiod of twelve (12) consecutive months beginning July 1 in any calendar year and ending on
June 30 of the succeeding calendar year;

Bondholder or Holder of Bondsor Holder or any similar term, when used with referenceto aBond or Bonds, means
the registered owner of any Bond;

Book Entry Bond means a Bond authorized to beissued, and issued to and registered in the name of a Depository
for the participantsin such Depository;

Business Day meansany day whichisnot aSaturday, Sunday or aday onwhichthe Trustee or bankinginstitutions
chartered by the State or the United States of Americaarelegally authorized to closein The City of New Y ork; provided
that, with respect to Option Bonds or Variable Interest Rate Bonds of a Series, such term means any day which is not
aSaturday, Sunday or aday on whichthe New Y ork Stock Exchange, banking institutions chartered by the State or the
United States of America, the Trustee or the issuer of a Credit Facility or Liquidity Facility for such Bonds are legally
authorized to close in The City of New York;

Capital Appreciation Bond means any Bond asto which interest is compounded on each Valuation Date therefor
and is payable only at the maturity or prior redemption thereof;

Code means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the applicable regul ations thereunder;

Contract Documents means any general contract or agreement for the construction of a Project, notice to bidders,
information for bidders, form of bid, general conditions, supplemental general conditions, general requirements,
supplemental general requirements, bonds, plansand specifications, addenda, change orders, and any other documents
entered into or prepared by or on behalf of the University relating to the construction of aProject, and any amendments
totheforegoing;

Construction Fund means the fund so designated, created and established for a Project pursuant to a Series
Resolution;

Cost or Costs of Issuance means the items of expense incurred in connection with the authorization, sale and
issuance of the Bonds, which items of expense shall include, but not be limited to, document printing and reproduction
costs, filing and recording fees, costs of credit ratings, initial fees and charges of the Trustee or aDepository, legal fees
and charges, professional consultants’ fees, fees and charges for execution, transportation and saf ekeeping of Bonds,
premiums, fees and charges for insurance on Bonds, commitment fees or similar charges relating to a Credit Facility,
or a Liquidity Facility, costs and expenses of refunding Bonds or other bonds or notes of the Authority, costs and
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expenses incurred pursuant to a remarketing agreement and other costs, charges and fees, including those of the
Authority, in connection with the foregoing;

Cost or Costs of a Project means costs and expenses or the refinancing of costs and expenses determined by the
Authority to be necessary in connection with the Project, including, but not limited to, (i) costs and expenses of the
acquisition of thetitleto or other interest inreal property, including easements, rights-of-way and licenses, (ii) costsand
expenses incurred for labor and materials and payments to contractors, builders and materialmen, for the acquisition,
construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, repair and improvement of the Project, (iii) the cost of surety bonds and
insurance of all kinds, including premiums and other chargesin connection with obtaining title insurance, that may be
required or necessary prior to completion of the Project, whichisnot paid by acontractor or otherwise provided for, (iv)
thecostsand expensesfor design, environmental i nspectionsand assessments, test borings, surveys, estimates, plansand
specificationsand preliminary investigationstherefor, and for supervising any of theforegoing, (v) costs and expenses
required for the acquisition and installation of equipment or machinery, (vi) all other costs which the University shall
be required to pay or cause to be paid for the acquisition, construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, repair,
improvement and equipping of the Project, (vii) any sums required to reimburse the University or the Authority for
advances made by them for any of the above itemsor for other costsincurred and for work done by them in connection
with the Project (including interest on moneys borrowed from parties other than the University), (viii) interest on the
Bonds prior to, during and for a reasonable period after completion of the acquisition, construction, reconstruction,
rehabilitation, repair, improvement or equipping of the Project, and (ix) fees, expenses and liahilities of the Authority
incurred in connection with the Project or pursuant to the Resolution or to the Loan Agreement, a Credit Facility, a
Liquidity Facility, or a remarketing agreement in connection with Option Bonds or Variable Interest Rate Bonds;

Credit Facility meansanirrevocableletter of credit, surety bond, |oan agreement, Standby Purchase Agreement or
other agreement, facility or insurance or guaranty arrangement i ssued or extended by abank, atrust company, anational
banking association, an organi zati on subject to registration with the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System
under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 or any successor provisions of law, a federal branch pursuant to the
International Banking Act of 1978 or any successor provisions of law, a domestic branch or agency of aforeign bank
which branch or agency isduly licensed or authorized to do businessunder thelawsof any stateor territory of the United
States of America, a savings bank, a saving and |oan association, an insurance company or association chartered or
organized under the laws of any state of the United States of America, the Government National Mortgage Association
or any successor thereto, the Federal National M ortgage A ssoci ation or any successor thereto, or any other federal agency
or instrumentality approved by the Authority, pursuant to which the Authority is entitled to obtain moneysto pay the
principal, purchase price or Redemption Price of Bonds due in accordance with their terms or tendered for purchase or
redemption, plusaccrued interest thereonto the date of payment, purchase or redemption thereof in accordancewith the
Resolution and with the Series Resolution authorizing such Bonds or a Bond Series Certificate, whether or not the
Authority isin default under the Resolution;

Debt means indebtedness, or the guarantee of indebtedness, for borrowed money, whether or not evidenced by
notes, bonds, debentures or other similar evidences of indebtedness, including indebtedness for purchase money
mortgages, capital leases, installment sales contracts or any other arrangements which appear as debt on the audited
balance sheet of the University;

Debt Service Fund meansthe fund so designated, created and established pursuant to the Resolution;

Defeasance Security means (a) a direct obligation of the United States of America, an obligation the principal of
and interest on which are guaranteed by the United States of America (other than an obligation the payment of the
principal of which is not fixed as to amount or time of payment), an obligation to which the full faith and credit of the
United States of Americaare pledged (other than an obligation the payment of the principal of whichisnot fixed asto
amount or timeof payment) and acertificate or other instrument which evidencesthe ownership of, or theright to receive
all or aportion of the payment of the principal of or interest on, direct obligationsof the United States of America, which,
ineach case, isnot subject to redemption prior to maturity other than at the option of the hol der thereof or which hasbeen
irrevocably called for redemption on a stated future date or (b) an Exempt Obligation (i) which is not subject to
redemption prior to maturity other than at the option of the holder thereof or asto which irrevocableinstructions have
been given to the trustee of such Exempt Obligation by the obligor thereof to give due notice of redemption and to call
such Exempt Obligation for redemption on the date or dates specified in such instructions and such Exempt Obligation
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isnot otherwise subject to redemption prior to such specified date other than at the option of the hol der thereof, (ii) which
is secured as to principal and interest and redemption premium, if any, by a fund consisting only of cash or direct
obligations of the United States of America which fund may be applied only to the payment of such principal of and
interest and redemption premium, if any, on such Exempt Obligation on the maturity date thereof or the redemption date
specified in the irrevocable instructions referred to in clause (i) above, (iii) asto which the principal of and interest on
the direct obligations of the United States of Americawhich have been deposited in such fund, along with any cash on
deposit in such fund, are sufficient to pay the principal of and interest and redemption premium, if any, on such Exempt
Obligationonthematurity dateor datesthereof or ontheredemptiondateor datesspecifiedintheirrevocableinstructions
referredtoinclause(i) above, and (iv) which arerated by each Rating Servicein thehighest rating category of each Rating
Service for such Exempt Obligation; provided, however, that such term shall not mean any interest in aunit investment
trust or mutual fund;

Deferred Income Bond means any Bond asto which interest accruing thereon prior to the Interest Commencement
Date of such Bond is compounded on each Valuation Date for such Deferred Income Bond, and as to which interest
accruing after the Interest Commencement Date is payable semi-annually on July 1 and January 1 during each Bond
Y ear;

Depository means The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, a limited purpose trust company
organized under the laws of the State, or its nominee, or any other person, firm, association or corporation designated
in the Series Resolution authorizing a Series of Bonds or aBond Series Certificate relating to a Series of Bondsto serve
as securities depository for the Bonds of such Series;

Exempt Obligation means an obligation of any state or territory of the United States of America, any political
subdivision of any stateor territory of the United Statesof America, or any agency, authority, public benefit corporation
orinstrumentality of such state, territory or political subdivision, theinterest onwhichis(i) excludablefrom grossincome
under Section 103 of the Code, (ii) not an item of tax preference within the meaning of Section 57(a)(5)of the Code, and
which, at the time an investment therein is made or such obligation is deposited in any fund or account under the
Resolution, israted, without regard to qualification of such rating by symbolssuchas“+” or “-” and numerical notation,
in the highest rating category by each Rating Agency, or, if such obligation is not rated by a Rating Agency, has been
assigned a comparable rating by another nationally recognized rating service;

Facility Provider means the issuer of a Credit Facility or a Liquidity Facility;

Fitch means Fitch, Inc., a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware, or its
successorsandassigns;

General Liabilities meanstotal liabilities of the University; provided that total liabilities of the University shall (i)
include the total liahilities of all related entities and affiliates of the University which are consolidated with the total
liabilities of the University in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and (ii) exclude the total
liabilitiesof all related entitiesand affiliateswith respect to which the University isnot legally obligated notwithstanding
that such total liabilities are consolidated with those of the University as provided in clause (i); provided further that
whenever General Liahilitiesisrequired to be determined based on the University’ s audited financial statements, total
liabilitiesof the University shall beasshown on such financial statementswith such adjustmentsasshall be appropriate
to reflect the inclusion and exclusion of related entities and affiliates as required by the preceding proviso;

Government Obligation means a direct obligation of the United States of America, an obligation the principal of
andinterest onwhichareguaranteed by theUnited Statesof America, anobligation (other than an obligationthe payment
of the principal of which is not fixed as to amount or time or payment) to which the full faith and credit of the United
States of Americaare pledged, an obligation of any federal agency approved by the Authority, and acertificate or other
instrument which evidences the ownership of, or the right to receive all or a portion of the payment of the principal of
or interest on, direct obligations of the United States of America or ashare or interest in amutual fund, partnership or
other fund wholly comprised of such obligations;

Gross Proceeds means, with respect to any of the Bonds, the gross proceeds of such Bonds, assuch termisdefined
or used inthe Code asit appliesto such Bonds;
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Interest Commencement Date means, with respect to any particular Deferred Income Bond, the date prior to the
maturity date thereof specified in the Series Resolution authorizing such Bond or in the Bond Series Certificate relating
to such Bond, after which interest accruing on such Bond shall be payable on the interest payment date immediately
succeeding such I nterest Commencement Date and semi-annually thereafter on July 1 and January 1 of eachBond Y ear;

Investment Agreement means an agreement for the investment of moneys with a Qualified Financial Institution;

Liens means any mortgage, pledge, lien, charge, security interest or lease in the nature thereof (including any
conditional sale agreement, equipment trust agreement or other title retention agreement) or other encumbrance of
whatsoever nature;

Liquidity Facilitymeansanirrevocableletter of credit, surety bond, |oan agreement, Standby Purchase Agreement,
line of credit or other agreement or arrangement issued or extended by a bank, a trust company, a national banking
association, an organization subject to registration with the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System under
theBank Holding Company A ct of 1956 or any successor provisionsof |law, afederal branch pursuant tothe I nternational
Banking Act of 1978 or any successor provisions of law, a domestic branch or agency of aforeign bank which branch
or agency isduly licensed or authorized to do business under the laws of any state or territory of the United States of
America, asavings bank, a savings and |oan association, an insurance company or association chartered or organized
under the laws of any state of the United States of America, the Government National Mortgage Association or any
successor thereto, the Federal National M ortgage Association or any successor thereto, or any other federal agency or
instrumentality approved by the Authority, pursuant to which the Authority isentitled to obtain moneysupon theterms
and conditions contained therein for the purchase or redemption of Bonds tendered for purchase or redemption in
accordance with the terms of the Resolution and of the Series Resolution authorizing such Bonds or a Bond Series
Certificate;

Loan Agreement means the Loan Agreement executed by and between the Authority and the University, in
connection with theissuance of the Bonds, asthe same shall have been heretof ore or hereafter amended, supplemented
or otherwise modified as permitted by the Resolution and by the Loan Agreement;

Maximum Interest Rate means, with respect to any particular Variable Interest Rate Bond, the numerical rate of
interest, if any, set forth inthe Series Resol ution authorizing such Bond or inthe Bond Series Certificaterelating to such
Bond, that shall be the maximum rate at which such Bond may bear interest at any time;

Minimum Interest Rate means, with respect to any particular Variable Interest Rate Bond, a numerical rate of
interest, if any, set forth in the Series Resol ution authorizing such Bond or the Bond Series Certificate relating to such
Bond, that shall be the minimum rate at which such Bond may bear interest at any timed,;

Moody’ s means Moody’ s Investors Service, Inc., acorporation organized and existing under the laws of the State
of Delaware, and its successors and assigns;

Option Bond means any Bond which by its terms may be tendered by and at the option of the Holder thereof for
redemption by the Authority prior to the stated maturity thereof or for purchase thereof, or the maturity of which may
be extended by and at the option of the Holder thereof;

Outstanding, when used inreferenceto Bonds, means, asof aparticular date, all Bondsauthenticated and delivered
under the Resol ution and under any applicable SeriesResol ution except (i) any Bond canceled by the Trusteeat or before
such date; (ii) any Bond deemed to have been paid in accordance with the Resolution; (iii) any Bond in lieu of or in
substitutionfor which another Bond shall have been authenticated and delivered pursuant tothe Resol ution; and (iv) any
Option Bond tendered or deemed tendered in accordance with the provisions of the Series Resol ution authorizing such
Bond on the applicabl e adjustment or conversion date, if interest thereon shall have been paid through such applicable
date and the purchase price thereof shall have been paid or amounts are available for such payment as provided in the
Resolution and in the Series Resolution authorizing such Bond,;

Paying Agent means, with respect to the Bonds of any Series, the Trustee and any other bank or trust company and
itssuccessor or successors, appointed pursuant tothe provisionsof the Resol ution or of aSeriesResol ution, aBond Series
Certificate or any other resol ution of the Authority adopted prior to authentication and delivery of the Series of Bonds
for which such Paying Agent or Paying Agents shall be so appointed,;
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Project means a“dormitory” as defined in the Act, which may include more than one part, financed in whole or in
part fromtheproceedsof the sale of Bonds, asmore particul arly described in a SeriesResol ution authorizing theissuance
of Bonds in connection with such Project;

Qualified Financial Institution means (i) a securities dealer, the liquidation of which is subject to the Securities
Investors Protection Corporation or other similar corporation, (ii) a bank, a trust company, a national banking
association, acorporation subject to registration with the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System under the
Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 or any successor provisions of law, afederal branch pursuant to the International
Banking Act of 1978 or any successor provisions of law, a domestic branch or agency of aforeign bank which branch
or agency isduly licensed or authorized to do business under the laws of any state or territory of the United States of
America, asavings bank, a savings and |oan association, an insurance company or association chartered or organized
under the laws of any state of the United States of America, (iii) a corporation affiliated with or which is a subsidiary
of any entity described in (ii) above or whichis affiliated with or asubsidiary of a corporation which controls or wholly
owns any such entity or (iv) the Government National Mortgage Association or any successor thereto, the Federal
National M ortgage A ssoci ation or any successor thereto, or any other federal agency or instrumentality approved by the
Authority; provided, however, that in the case of any entity described in (ii) or (iii) above, the unsecured or
uncollateralized long-term debt obligations of which, or obligations secured or supported by aletter of credit, contract,
agreement or surety bond issued by any such organization, at thetime an Investment Agreement is entered into by the
Authority are rated, without regard to qualification of such rating by symbols such as“+” or “-” or numerical notation,
“A” or better by each Rating Service, or, if such obligations are not rated by a Rating Service, have been assigned a
comparablerating by another nationally recogni zed rating service; provided, however, inno event shall such obligations
be rated lower than the lowest rating assigned by a Rating Service to any Outstanding Bonds;

Rating Servicemeansonany dateeach of Moody's, S& Por Fitchthat then hasat therequest of the A uthority assigned
arating to Outstanding Bonds;

Record Date means, unless a Series Resolution authorizing a Series of Bonds or aBond Series Certificate relating
thereto providesotherwisewith respect to Bondsof such Series, thefifteenth (15th) day (whether or not aBusiness Day)
of the calendar month next preceding an interest payment date;

Redemption Price, when used with respect to aBond, meansthe principal amount of such Bond plusthe applicable
premium, if any, payable upon redemption thereof pursuant to the Resolution or to the applicable Series Resolution or
Bond Series Certificate;

Refunding Bonds means all Bonds, whether issued in one or more Series of Bonds, authenticated and delivered on
original issuance pursuant to the Resolution and any Bonds thereafter authenticated and delivered in lieu of or in
substitution for such Bonds pursuant to the Resol ution;

Resol ution meansthe University of Rochester Revenue Bond Resol ution, adopted by the Authority on August 11,
1999, asfrom time to time amended or supplemented by Supplemental Resolutions or Series Resolutionsin accordance
with the terms and provisions of the Resolution;

Restricted Property means any of the University’ s assets;

Revenues means all payments received or receivable by the Authority pursuant to the Loan Agreement, which are
tobepaidtothe Trustee (except paymentsto the Trusteefor the administrative costsand expenses or feesof the Trustee
and paymentsto the Trustee for deposit to the Arbitrage Rebate Fund);

S& P means Standard & Poor’s Rating Group, adivision of Mc Graw-Hill, Inc., acorporation organized and existing
under the laws of the State of New Y ork, and its successors and assigns,

Securities means (i) moneys, (ii) Government Obligations, (iii) Exempt Obligations, (iv) any bond, debenture, note,
preferred stock or other similar obligation of any corporation incorporated in the United States, which security, at the
time an investment therein is made or such security is deposited in any fund or account under the Resolution, is rated,
without regardtoqualification of suchrating by symbolssuchas” +" or“-” or numerical notation, not lessthanthesecond
highest rating category by each Rating Agency or israted with acomparable rating by any other nationally recognized
rating service acceptable to an Authorized Officer of the Authority and (v) common stock of any corporation
incorporated in the United States of Americawhose senior debt, if any, at thetime an investment in its stock ismade or
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its stock is deposited in any fund or account established under the Resolution, is rated, without regard to qualification
of such rating by symbolssuch as“+” or “-” or numerical notation, not |ess than the second highest rating category by
each Rating Agency or is rated with a comparable rating by any other nationally recognized rating service acceptable
to an Authorized Officer of the Authority;

Serial Bonds means the Bonds so designated in a Series Resolution or aBond Series Certificate;

Series meansall of the Bonds authenticated and delivered on original issuance and pursuant to the Resolution and
tothe SeriesResol ution authorizing such Bondsasaseparate Seriesof Bondsor aBond SeriesCertificate, and any Bonds
thereafter authenticated and deliveredinlieu of or in substitution for such Bonds pursuant to the Resolution, regardless
of variations in maturity, interest rate, Sinking Fund Installments or other provisions;

Series 2004A Resolution means the University of Rochester Series 2004A Resolution Authorizing Series 2004A
Bonds, adopted by the Authority on July 21, 2004;

Series Resol ution meansaresol ution of the Authority authorizing theissuance of a Series of Bondsadopted by the
Authority pursuant to the Resol ution;

Short Term Debt means, at the time of each calculation, Debt of the University, other than Debt to the Authority,
(i) which Debt is payable upon demand, (ii) twenty percent (20%) or more of the original principal amount of which Debt
ispayablein any Bond Y ear prior to the Bond Y ear during which Bonds are no longer Outstanding, or (iii) the principal
amount of which is payable prior to maturity at the option of the holder thereof (other than upon acceleration upon an
event of default) prior to the Bond Year during which Bonds are no longer Outstanding, including any note, bond,
debenture or other evidence of indebtedness of the University which may betendered to the University at the option of
the holder thereof for purchase, payment or redemption prior to maturity; provided that such term shall not include any
Debt twenty percent (20%) or more of the original principal amount of which is payable during any Bond Y ear if (X)
such Debt wasincurred on the same date as other Debt of the University isincurred, (y) such Debt and such other Debt
were incurred pursuant to acommon plan of financing, and (z) less than twenty percent (20%) of the aggregate original
principal amount of such Debt and such other Debt is payablein each Bond Y ear prior to the Bond Y ear during which
Bondsarenolonger Outstanding; provided further that such term shall not include Debt |essthan twenty percent (20%)
of theoriginal principal amount of which ispayable during each of the then current and theimmediately succeeding two
(2) Bond Y earsand Debt whichisnot payable prior to maturity at the option of the holder thereof during thethen current
or either of the immediately succeeding two (2) Bond Y ears;

Sinking Fund I nstallmentmeans, asof any dateof cal culation, when used with respect toany Bondsof aSeries, other
than Option Bonds or Variable Rate Bonds, so long as such Bonds are Outstanding, the amount of money required by
the Resolution or by the Series Resolution pursuant to which such Bondswereissued or by the Bond Series Certificate
relating to such Bonds, to be paid on asingle future July 1 for the retirement of any Outstanding Bonds of said Series
which mature after said future July 1, but does not include any amount payable by the Authority by reason only of the
maturity of aBond, and said future July 1 is deemed to be the date when a Sinking Fund Installment is payable and the
dateof such Sinking Fund I nstall ment and said Outstanding Bondsare deemed to be Bondsentitled to such Sinking Fund
Installment; and when used with respect to Option Bonds or Variable Interest Rate Bonds of a Series, so long as such
Bonds are Outstanding, the amount of money required by the Series Resolution pursuant to which such Bonds were
issued or by the Bond Series Certificate relating to such Bonds, to be paid on a single future date for the retirement of
any Outstanding Option Bonds or Variable Interest Rate Bonds of said Series which mature after said future date, but
does not include any amount payable by the Authority by reason only of the maturity of aBond, and said future dateis
deemed to be the date when a Sinking Fund Installment is payable and the date of such Sinking Fund Installment and
said Outstanding Option Bonds or Variable Interest Rate Bonds are deemed to be Bonds entitled to such Sinking Fund
Installment;

Standby Purchase Agreement means an agreement by and between the A uthority and another person pursuant to
which such person is obligated to purchase an Option Bond or a Variable Interest Rate Bond tendered for purchase;

State means the State of New Y ork;

Supplemental Resolution means any resolution of the Authority amending or supplementing the Resol ution, any
Series Resolution or any Supplemental Resolution adopted and becoming effective in accordance with the terms of the
Resolution;
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Tax Certificate means the Tax Certificate and Agreement executed by an Authorized Officer of the Authority in
connection with the issuance of Bonds of a Series;

Term Bonds means the Bonds so designated in a Series Resolution or a Bond Series Certificate and payable from
Sinking Fund Installments;

Trusteemeansthebank or trust company appointed as Trusteefor the Bondspursuant to the Resol utionand having
theduties, responsibilitiesand rightsprovided for inthe Resol ution, and its successor or successorsand any other bank
or trust company which may at any time be substituted in its place pursuant to the Resolution;

University means the institution of higher education, duly incorporated and existing under the laws of the State,
whose principal campusis located in Rochester, New Y ork, the corporate name of which is*“University of Rochester”
and any successor thereto as permitted by the Loan Agreement;

Valuation Date means (i) with respect to any Capital Appreciation Bond, the date or dates set forth in the Series
Resolution authorizing such Bond or in the Bond Series Certificate relating to such Bond on which specific Accreted
Values are assigned to such Capital Appreciation Bond, and (ii) with respect to any Deferred Income Bond, the date or
dates prior to the Interest Commencement Date and the Interest Commencement Date set forth in the Series Resol ution
authorizing such Bond or in the Bond Series Certificate rel ating to such Bond on which specific Appreciated Vauesare
assigned to such Deferred Income Bond,;

Variable Interest Rate means avariable interest rate or rates to be borne by a Series of Bonds or any one or more
maturities within a Series of Bonds, the method of computing such variable interest rate is specified in the Series
Resolution authorizing such Bonds or a Bond Series Certificate and shall be based on (i) a percentage or percentages
or other function of an objectively determinable interest rate or rates (e.g., a prime lending rate) or afunction of such
objectively determinable interest rate or rates which may be in effect from time to time or at a particular time or times;
provided that such variableinterest rate shall be subject to aMaximum Interest Rate and may be subject to aMinimum
Interest Rate and that there may bean initial rate specified in each case as provided in such Series Resolution or aBond
Series Certificate or (ii) astated interest rate that may be changed from time to time as provided in the Series Resolution
authorizing such Bonds or aBond Series Certificate; and provided that such interest rate shall be subject to aMaximum
Interest Rate; and provided, further, that such Series Resolution or Bond Series Certificate shall also specify either (i)
the particular period or periods of time or manner of determining such period or periods of time for which such variable
interest rate shall remain in effect or (ii) the time or times upon which any change in such variable interest rate shall
become effective; and

Variable Interest Rate Bondmeansany Bond which bearsaVariablelnterest Rate, provided that aBond theinterest
rate on which shall have been fixed for the remainder of theterm thereof shall nolonger beaVariable I nterest Rate Bond.
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265 Clinton Square
Rochester, NY 14604

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Trustees
University of Rochester:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of the University of Rochester and related
entities as of June 30, 2003 and 2002, and the related consolidated statements of activities and cash flows for
the years then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the University’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the University of Rochester and related entities as of June 30, 2003 and 2002, and the
changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

KPre LLP

September 26, 2003

.... KPMG LLP. KPMG LLP, a U.S. limited liability partnership,
is a member of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.



UNIVERSITY OF ROCHESTER
AND RELATED ENTITIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets

June 30, 2003 and 2002
(dollars in thousands)

Assets 2003 2002

Cash and cash equivalents $ 148,637 $ 138,640
Operating investments, at market 17,028 -
Accounts receivable, net 206,291 197,334
Inventories, prepaid expenses and deferred charges 58,634 50,235
Contributions receivable, net 37,610 40,329
Notes receivable, net of allowances of $1,040 in 2003 and 2002 21,034 21,180
Other assets 2,814 4,156
Investments held for long-term purposes 1,263,757 1,268,995
Property, plant and equipment, net 896,154 928,964
Interest in net assets of foundation 15,572 18,046
Investments in perpetual trusts held by others 43,158 43,361

Total assets $ 2,710,689 $ 2,711,240

Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 149,584 $ 134,197
Advance receipt of sponsored research revenues 26,835 27,133
Deferred revenue 36,121 33,676
Third-party settlements payable, net 49,374 55,344
Accrued pension, post-retirement, and post-employment obligations 98,786 74,858
Long-term debt 444,097 468,978
Refundable U.S. Government grants for student loans 16,776 16,593

Total liabilities 821,573 810,779

Net Assets:

Unrestricted 1,485,275 1,504,843
Temporarily restricted 185,099 183,507
Permanently restricted 218,742 212,111

Total net assets 1,889,116 1,900,461

Total liabilities and net assets $ 2,710,689 $ 2,711,240

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.




Operating revenues:
Tuition and fees
Less: scholarships and fellowships

Net tuition and fees

State and local appropriations

Gifts and pledges

Grants and contracts

Hospital and faculty practice patient care activities

Auxiliary enterprises

Interest income on cash equivalents

Educational activities

Royalty income

Other sources

Long-term investment income and gains allocated
to operations

Net assets released from restrictions

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits
Total compensation
Supplies
Business and professional
Utilities
Maintenance and facilities costs
Depreciation expense
Interest expense
Other

Total operating expenses
Change in net assets from operating activities

Non-operating activities:
Long-term investment activities:
Investment income
Net appreciation

Total long-term investment activities

Long-term investment income and gains
allocated for operations

Additional minimum pension liability

Change in valuation of annuities

Change in net assets from
non-operating activities

Change in net assets

Beginning net assets

Ending net assets

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

UNIVERSITY OF ROCHESTER
AND RELATED ENTITIES

Consolidated Statement of Activities

Year ended June 30, 2003
(dollars in thousands)

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted restricted restricted Total
$ 190,037 $ - $ - $ 190,037
(76,491) - - (76,491)
113,546 - - 113,546
1,937 - - 1,937
19,953 19,094 5,532 44,579
278,005 - - 278,005
1,040,185 - - 1,040,185
40,777 - - 40,777
5,356 165 4 5,525
24,581 - - 24,581
31,364 - - 31,364
2,851 310 - 3,161
69,703 - - 69,703
19,302 (19,302) - -
1,647,560 267 5,536 1,653,363
808,269 - - 808,269
212,000 - - 212,000
1,020,269 - - 1,020,269
204,993 - - 204,993
108,840 - - 108,840
24,966 - - 24,966
42,827 - - 42,827
107,697 - - 107,697
24,455 - - 24,455
98,810 - - 98,810
1,632,857 - - 1,632,857
14,703 267 5,536 20,506
22,277 1,499 333 24,109
27,936 1,594 762 30,292
50,213 3,093 1,095 54,401
(69,703) - - (69,703)
(14,781) - - (14,781)
- (1,768) - (1,768)
(34,271) 1,325 1,095 (31,851)
(19,568) 1,592 6,631 (11,345)
1,504,843 183,507 212,111 1,900,461
$ 1,485,275 $ 185,099 $ 218,742 $ 1,889,116




Operating revenues:
Tuition and fees
Less: scholarships and fellowships

Net tuition and fees

State and local appropriations
Gifts and pledges
Grants and contracts

Hospital and faculty practice patient care activities

Auxiliary enterprises

Interest income on cash equivalents
Educational activities

Royalty income

Other sources

Long-term investment income and gains allocated

to operations
Net assets released from restrictions

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits
Total compensation
Supplies
Business and professional
Utilities
Maintenance and facilities costs
Depreciation expense
Interest expense

Other

Total operating expenses
Change in net assets from operating activities

Non-operating activities:
Long-term investment activities:
Investment income
Net depreciation

Total long-term investment activities

Long-term investment income and gains
allocated for operations

Proceeds from sale of dialysis unit

Other non-operating health care revenues

Change in valuation of annuities

Change in net assets from
non-operating activities

Change in net assets before

cumulative effect of change in accounting principle

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle
Change in net assets
Beginning net assets

Ending net assets

UNIVERSITY OF ROCHESTER
AND RELATED ENTITIES

Consolidated Statement of Activities

Year ended June 30, 2002
(dollars in thousands)

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted restricted restricted Total
$ 180,184 $ - $ - $ 180,184
(73,827) - - (73,827)
106,357 - - 106,357
1,830 - - 1,830
23,152 19,711 9,610 52,473
262,657 - - 262,657
972,499 - - 972,499
37,648 - - 37,648
5,019 315 8 5,342
24,015 - - 24,015
37,691 - - 37,691
3,225 - - 3,225
66,189 - - 66,189
17,751 (17,751) - -
1,558,033 2,275 9,618 1,569,926
770,042 - - 770,042
188,130 - - 188,130
958,172 - - 958,172
197,210 - - 197,210
108,145 - - 108,145
22,967 - - 22,967
35,368 - - 35,368
107,754 - - 107,754
26,183 - - 26,183
71,023 - - 71,023
1,526,822 - - 1,526,822
31,211 2,275 9,618 43,104
22,116 2,437 220 24,773
(63,561) (10,324) (5,474) (79,359)
(41,445) (7,887) (5,254) (54,586)
(66,189) - - (66,189)
19,483 - - 19,483
5 - - 5
- (2,034) - (2,034)
(88,146) (9,921) (5,254) (103,321)
(56,935) (7,646) 4,364 (60,217)
- 21,183 - 21,183
(56,935) 13,537 4,364 (39,034)
1,561,778 169,970 207,747 1,939,495
$ 1,504,843 $ 183,507 $ 212,111 $ 1,900,461

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



UNIVERSITY OF ROCHESTER
AND RELATED ENTITIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended June 30, 2003 and 2002
(dollars in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Change in net assets $
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle
Depreciation and amortization expense
Net (appreciation)/depreciation of investments
Gifts of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation in interest in net assets of foundation
Depreciation of investments in perpetual trusts held by others
Bond premium amortization/(discount accretion)
Loss on disposals of property plant and equipment
(Increases)/decreases in:
Operating investments
Accounts receivable
Inventories, prepaid expenses and deferred charges
Contributions receivable
Other assets
Increases/(decreases) in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Advance receipt of sponsored research revenues
Deferred revenues
Third-party settlements, net
Accrued post-employment and post-retirement benefits
Contributions for long-term investment, net
Investment income restricted for long-term purposes

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment, net
Purchases of investments
Proceeds from the sale and maturity of investments
Increase/(decrease) in notes receivable, net of activities and other reductions

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Principal repayments of indebtedness
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Increase in refundable U.S. Government grants for student loans
Contributions for long-term investment, net
Investment income restricted for long-term purposes

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year $

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information -
cash paid during the year for interest on long-term debt $

2003 2002
(11,345) $ (39,034)
- (21,183)
105,240 104,126
(35,135) 70,678
(5,910) (5,715)
2,474 3,137
203 5,544
103 (24)
2,457 3,746
(17,028) -
(8,957) (6,171)
(10,314) (6,702)
2,719 (12,208)
(166) (91)
15,386 8,897
(298) (1,338)
2,445 8,261
(5,970) (1,857)
23,928 9,072
(17,836) (10,535)
(1,153) (98)
40,843 108,505
(65,553) (115,619)
(905,318) (1,361,399)
945,691 1,439,528
146 (1,016)
(25,034) (38,506)
(34,636) (26,198)
9,652 2,255
183 288
17,836 10,535
1,153 98
(5,812) (13,022)
9,997 56,977
138,640 81,663
148,637 $ 138,640
22,620 $ 20,842

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(@)

(b)

General

The University of Rochester (the University) is a private,
nonprofit institution of higher education based in
Rochester, New York. The University provides education
and training services, primarily for students at the
undergraduate, graduate and postdoctoral levels. It also
performs research, training and other services under
grants, contracts and similar agreements with sponsoring
organizations, primarily departments and agencies of the
United States Government; and provides health care
services through Strong Memorial Hospital, Strong Home
Care Group, and the various entities included in Strong
Partners Health System, Inc. (SPHS).

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements
include all of the integrated divisions of the University —
The College, Margaret Warner Graduate School of
Education and Human Development, William E. Simon
Graduate School of Business Administration, Eastman
School of Music, Memorial Art Gallery, School of
Medicine and Dentistry, Strong Memorial Hospital,
School of Nursing, Eastman Dental Center, Health
Affairs, and the University of Rochester Medical Faculty
Group (URMFG). Included also are Strong Partners
Health System, Inc. (and its affiliates), Eastman Dental
Center Foundation, Inc., Strong Home Care Group (and
its subsidiaries), and the Research Foundation of the
University ~ of  Rochester. All  significant
interorganizational balances and transactions have been
eliminated.

The University is the sole member of SPHS, which has
affiliation agreements with Highland Hospital of
Rochester  (including its  subsidiaries  Highland
Foundation, Inc., Highland Facilities Development Corp.,
and the Medical Administrative Associates, Inc.); The
Highlands Living Center, Inc.; Highland Community
Development Corp.; and The Meadows at Westfall, Inc.
Highland Hospital and its subsidiaries have debt
outstanding which has been included in the University’s
consolidated financial statements; however, under the
terms of the affiliation agreement with SPHS, the
University has no legal obligation for the debt of
Highland Hospital and affiliates.

The Eastman Dental Center Foundation (the Foundation)
was formed to hold and manage the investment assets of
the former Eastman Dental Center, which was merged

(©)

into the University during 1998. Income and assets of the
Foundation are used to support oral health, education, and
research projects at the University.

The University is the sole corporate member of Strong
Home Care Group (and its subsidiaries that include
Visiting Nurse Service of Rochester and Monroe County,
Inc. and Community Care of Rochester.)

The University is the sole corporate member of the
Research Foundation of the University of Rochester. The
Research  Foundation manages certain intellectual
property created by the University of Rochester and
investments based on such intellectual property.

The University, through SPHS, Strong Memorial
Hospital, and URMFG, formed a Managed Care
Organization (MCQ) in October 1997 together with two
community physician organizations: the Highland
Physician Organization and the Rochester Community
Physician Organization. The MCO has ceased operations
related to member contracting activities and is in the
process of winding down its activities.

Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of the University
are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
in the United States of America. Certain amounts as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2002 have been
reclassified for comparative purposes.

Classification of Net Assets

The University reports its net assets and changes therein
according to three classifications:  unrestricted,
temporarily restricted, and permanently restricted, based
upon the existence or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions.

Permanently restricted — Net assets subject to donor-
imposed stipulations that they be maintained permanently
by the University. Generally, the University may use the
income and gains derived from the donated assets,
restricted only by the donors’ stipulations.

(Continued)
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Temporarily restricted — Net assets subject to donor-
imposed stipulations that may or will be met either by
actions of the University and/or the passage of time.
When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a
stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the
statement of activities as net assets released from
restrictions.

Unrestricted — Net assets that are not subject to donor-
imposed stipulations and that are generally available for
support of the University’s activities, with certain
limitations, as follows:

e Uses of certain unrestricted net assets are committed
through contractual agreements.  Such amounts
primarily consist of required trusteed balances under
long-term debt agreements, and matching funds
under student loan programs of the Federal
Government. In addition, grants and contracts for the
performances of certain services or functions are
reported in the unrestricted net asset category.

e Many of the funds, which are unrestricted for
accounting purposes, carry internal designations to
specific divisions of the University, and therefore are
not treated operationally as unrestricted funds.

e  Certain accumulated net investment gains earned on
permanently restricted net assets are included within
unrestricted net assets. In accordance with New York
State law, the appropriation and spending of such
gains, absent donor directives, is subject to a standard
of prudence, as more fully discussed under the
accounting policy note on investments, note 1(i).

e The Board of Trustees, through voluntary resolutions,
has set aside portions of the University’s unrestricted
net assets to function as endowment, for property,
plant and equipment purposes, and for other specific
operating purposes.

Revenues from sources other than contributions are
generally reported as increases in unrestricted net assets.
Contributions are reported as increases in the appropriate
category of net assets, except those contributions whose
imposed restrictions are met in the same fiscal year they
are received are included in unrestricted revenues.

(d)

(e)

(f)

Investment income and gains and losses on investments
are reported as increases or decreases in the unrestricted
net assets unless their use is restricted by explicit donor
stipulations or by law. When such restrictions exist,
investment income, gains or losses are reported as
temporarily or permanently restricted, except when the
restrictions are met in the same fiscal year in which the
income or gains are earned, in which case the income and
gains are reported within the unrestricted category.

Expenses are reported as decreases in unrestricted net
assets. Expiration of temporary restrictions recognized on
net assets (i.e., the donor-stipulated purpose has been
fulfilled and/or the stipulated time period has elapsed) that
do not occur within the same period as revenue
recognition are reported as reclassifications from
temporarily restricted net assets to unrestricted net assets.
Temporary restrictions on gifts to acquire long-lived
assets are considered met in the period in which the assets
are acquired or placed in service.

Income Taxes

The University is a not-for-profit organization as
described in section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code and is generally exempt from income taxes on
related income pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code.

Operations

The statements of activities present the changes in net
assets of the University from operating activities and from
nonoperating activities. Operating revenues and expenses
relate primarily to educational and training programs,
research activities, and hospital and patient care activities
provided by the University and its related entities.
Utilization of investment income and gains on long-term
investments held for endowment and similar purposes
under the University’s total return spending policy, as
discussed in note 1(i), is considered operating revenue.

Nonoperating activities consist primarily of investment
income and appreciation from long-term investments in
excess of amounts utilized for operations.

Cash Equivalents and Operating Investments

Cash equivalents include amounts on deposit with
financial institutions, short-term investments with
maturities of three months or less at the time of purchase,
and other highly liquid investments, primarily cash
management funds.

(Continued)
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Operating investments include all other current
investments with original maturities greater than three
months. These current investments include obligations of
the US Treasury, US Government and other government
agencies and corporate & foreign bonds. These items are
reported at fair market value in accordance with the
provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 124, Accounting for Certain
Investments held by Not-for-Profit Organizations.

Inventories

Inventories, primarily medical supplies, are valued at the
lower of cost, which is determined by the first-in, first-out
method, or market.

Contributions

Contributions, including unconditional promises, or
pledges, are recognized as revenues in the period
received. Conditional promises to give are not recognized
until the conditions on which they depend are
substantially met. Contributions of assets other than cash
are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of
gift. Contributions to be received after one year are
discounted, at a range of 2% to 6%, to their present value.
Amortization of the discount is recorded as additional
contribution revenue and used in accordance with donor-
imposed restrictions, if any, on the contributions.
Allowance is made for uncollectible contributions based
upon management’s judgement and analysis of the
creditworthiness of the donors, past collection experience
and other relevant factors.

Investments

The University’s investments are comprised of the assets
of the University’s endowment and other investments
held for general operating purposes. The University
reports those investments at their fair value. The fair
value of debt and equity securities is based on quoted
market prices of public securities markets. Fair value for
certain venture investments is based on transactions
involving similar issues or on quoted prices of registered
securities, although the University’s holdings are
restricted with respect to disposition in the ordinary
manner.

New York State law allows the spending of income and
gains on investments of permanently restricted net assets
(except unrealized gains on investments which are not

readily marketable), absent explicit donor stipulations that
all or a portion of such gains be maintained in perpetuity.
State law allows the University to appropriate and spend
such income and gains as is prudent, considering such
factors as the University’s long- and short-term needs,
present and anticipated financial requirements, expected
total return on investments, price level trends, and general
economic conditions.

In accordance with accounting requirements, realized and
unrealized gains and losses, as well as gains and losses on
temporarily restricted and unrestricted net assets, are
reported as temporarily restricted or unrestricted, based
upon the presence or absence of donor stipulations as to
their use. The University’s policy regarding spending of
gains thus classified, however, is to spend no more than a
stated percentage of market value of its investment
portfolio over time, as described in the following
paragraph.

Investment of the University’s net assets held for
endowment and similar purposes is based upon a total
return policy, and the utilization of its endowment
resources for current operating and capital needs is related
to this policy. Accordingly, during 2003 and 2002,
University Trustees authorized the use of total return
(income and appreciation) from its endowment resources
at a rate of 6.4% and 6.6%, respectively, of the average
market value of its consolidated investment portfolio for
the most recent five years. To the extent that the total
return requirement for the current year is not fulfilled by
interest, dividends, and royalties, the University utilizes
the appreciation of its endowment and similar net assets
for operating purposes. To the extent that the total return
requirement for the current year is exceeded by interest,
dividends and royalties, the University reinvests the
excess in its net assets held for endowment and similar
purposes.

Investment securities are exposed to various risks, such as
interest rates, market, economic conditions, world affairs
and credit risks. Due to the level of risk associated with
certain investment securities, it is possible that changes in
their value could occur in the near term and such changes
could materially affect the amounts reported in the
investments and investment activity of the University.

(Continued)
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June 30, 2003 and 2002

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or at
estimated fair value if acquired by gift, less accumulated
depreciation and amortization.  Buildings used for
research  activities are componentized as site
improvements, buildings, building services and fixed
equipment. Depreciation of the building components is
done using the straight-line method over the useful lives
of the components ranging from five to fifty years.
Depreciation of non-research buildings, equipment and
library books, and amortization of leasehold and land
improvements are computed using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Land
and museum collections are not subject to depreciation.
Estimated useful lives for non-research assets are as
follows:

Years
Building 40
Building and leasehold improvements 20
Land improvements 20
Equipment 41015
Library books 10

The University reports gifts of property, plant and
equipment as unrestricted support unless explicit donor
stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used.
Gifts of long-lived assets with explicit restrictions that
specify how the assets are to be used and gifts of cash or
other assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets
are reported as restricted support. Absent explicit donor
stipulations about how long those long-lived assets must
be maintained, the University reports expirations of donor
restrictions when the donated or acquired long-lived
assets are placed in service.

Collections

The University capitalizes its collections. If purchased,
collection items are capitalized at cost, and if donated at
their appraised or fair value on the accession date (the
date on which the item is accepted by the Board of
Trustees). There is no depreciation recorded on collection
items.

Split Interest Agreements and Perpetual Trusts

The University’s split interest agreements with donors
consist primarily of gift annuities, unitrusts, lead trusts,

charitable remainder annuity trusts and life income
agreements.  Assets held under these agreements are
included in investments. Generally, contribution revenues
are recognized at the dates the agreements are established
after recording liabilities for the present value of the
estimated future payments to be made to the beneficiaries.
The liabilities are adjusted during the term of the trusts for
changes in the value of the assets, accretion of the
discount and other changes in the estimates of future
benefits. The University is also the beneficiary of certain
perpetual trusts held and administered by others. The
present values of the estimated future cash receipts, which
are measured by the fair value of the assets contributed to
the trust, are recognized as assets and contribution
revenues at the dates the trusts are established.
Distributions from the trusts are recorded as contributions
and the carrying value of the assets is adjusted for
changes in the fair value of the trust assets.

(m) Refundable U.S. Government Grants for Student

(n)

Loans

Funds provided by the United States Government under
the Federal Perkins, Nursing and Health Professions
Student Loan programs are loaned to qualified students
and may be reloaned after cash collections. These funds
are ultimately refundable to the government and are
recognized as a liability in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets.

Grants and Contracts

Revenue from grants and contracts, primarily for research
and training programs, is generally recognized as earned,
that is, as the related costs are incurred under the grant or
contract agreements. Amounts received in advance are
reported as advanced receipt of sponsored research
revenues.

Grants and contracts awarded to the University are subject
to audit by the various sponsoring agencies. Indirect costs
recovered on grants and contracts are recorded at rates
established by the University with the Federal
Government, or predetermined by the non-Federal
sponsor. Indirect cost rates for government grants and
contracts are subject to audit, and subsequent final
settlements are recorded as current period adjustments.
Management believes the impact of any future settlements
to be immaterial to the consolidated financial statements.

(Continued)
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Benefits Plans

The University provides certain health care and life
insurance benefits to retired employees and spouses under
a defined benefit plan. Benefits include basic medical and
major medical coverage. Certain categories of retirees
receive dental coverage and group life insurance. Such
postretirement benefits are accounted for as a form of
deferred compensation over the estimated service lives of
employees.

Postemployment benefits include benefits provided to
former or inactive employees after employment but
before retirement. For the University, such benefits
include workers’ compensation benefits, short-term
disability benefits and benefits provided under various
other programs.

Patient Service Revenues

Patient service revenues for the hospitals are recorded at
the established rates, with provisions for third-party
contractual adjustments, and charity care to arrive at net
patient service revenue. Estimated contractual
adjustments, including prospective rate adjustments
arising under third-party reimbursement programs are
accrued in the period the services are rendered to the
patients. Differences between estimated retroactive third-
party reimbursement settlements for prior years and
subsequent final settlements are recorded in the year of
settlement as contractual adjustments. Estimated
settlements at June 30, 2003 have been accrued for
services provided during the years ended June 30, 1996
through 2003. Final settlements have been made for all
years prior to 1996.

Patient service revenues for the faculty practice are
recorded at the established physician fee schedules with
provisions for third-party contractual adjustments
deducted to arrive at net patient service revenue.

10

(a)

(r)

Estimated contractual adjustments are accrued in the
period the services are rendered to the patients. Estimates
are based on historical and current gross collection ratios.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles in the
United States of America requires management to make
estimates and judgements that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingencies at
the date of the financial statements and revenues and
expenses recognized during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Investment in Net Assets of Foundation

The University follows the provisions of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 136,
Transfers of Assets to a Not-for-Profit Organization or
Charitable Trust That Raises or Holds Contributions for
Others in accounting for its interest in the net assets of the
James P. Wilmot Foundation, Inc. (“Foundation”). SFAS
No. 136 establishes standards for transactions in which a
donor transfers assets to a not-for-profit organization or
charitable trust, which then agrees to transfer those assets,
the return on investment of those assets, or both to a
beneficiary specified by the donor. Under the provisions
of SFAS No. 136, the University is required to recognize
the net assets and its share of the change in the net assets
of the Foundation. The Foundation was established for
the support of cancer research at the University’s School
of Medicine and Dentistry. In 2002, the University
recorded its interest in the net assets of the Foundation as
a cumulative effect adjustment in the amount of
$21,183,000.

(Continued)
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(2) Net Assets

Unrestricted net assets consist of the following at June 30 (in thousands):

2003 2002
Designated:
For long-term purposes to support scholarships and other programs:
Funds functioning as endowment $ 663,191 $ 671,144
Accumulated appreciation resulting from investment of
permanently restricted net assets 171,909 177,191
For property, plant and equipment purposes and debt service reserves held
by trustees under debt agreements 22,701 28,217
For student loan programs, including required matching funds under
Federal Government loan programs 3,870 3,773
For other specific operating purposes 46,045 44,813
For Highland Hospital and affiliates 48,992 60,872
For Eastman Dental Center Foundation 40,130 42,536
For other related entities (16,011) (3,935)
Total designated 980,827 1,024,611
Net investment in property, plant and equipment 421,532 422,942
Undesignated 82,916 57,290
Total unrestricted net assets $ 1,485,275 $ 1,504,843
Temporarily restricted net assets consist of the following at June 30 (in thousands):
2003 2002
Accumulated appreciation on permanently restricted net assets
subject to purpose restrictions:
Scholarships and grants $ 19,176  $ 20,015
Instruction 49,672 50,314
Other 19,360 19,775
Subtotal 88,208 90,104
Interest in net assets of foundation 15,572 18,046
Related entities 1,475 909
Other gifts and income subject to:
Purpose restrictions 22,148 23,144
Time restrictions:
Contributions receivable 34,835 31,842
Split-interest agreements 22,861 19,462
Total temporarily restricted net assets $ 185,099 $ 183,507

11 ]
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Permanently restricted net assets consist of the following at June 30 (in thousands):

2003 2002

Perpetual endowment funds:
Restricted income purposes:

Scholarships and grants $ 12,148 $ 11,583

Instruction 36,258 35,927

Other 12,996 12,739
Unrestricted income purposes 103,274 92,260
Subtotal 164,676 152,509
Interests in perpetual trusts held by others:
Restricted income purposes:

Instruction 30,404 30,410

Student loans 1,395 1,355
Unrestricted income purposes 11,359 11,596
Subtotal 43,158 43,361
Related entities 2,943 3,162
Split-interest agreements 1,324 755
Perpetual loan funds 3,866 3,837
Contributions receivable 2,775 8,487
Total permanently restricted net assets $ 218,742 $ 212,111

(3) Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable at June 30 consist of the following (in thousands):
2003 2002

Patient care and related activities,

net of allowances for doubtful accounts

of $16,005 and $18,089 $ 129,668 $ 129,813
Federal, state, and local governments, foundations, and

companies, net of allowances for doubtful accounts

of $630 and $586 31,352 29,315
Student receivables, net of allowances for doubtful accounts of

$1,744 and $1,100 8,971 8,491
Other 36,300 29,715
Total accounts receivable $ 206,291 $ 197,334

12 ]
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(4) Contributions

©)

Contributions receivable, net, are summarized as follows
at June 30 (in thousands):

2003 2002
Unconditional promises
expected to be collected in:
Less than one year $ 19051 $ 20,800
One year to five years 23,091 23,771
Over five years 1,440 1,748
Subtotal 43,582 46,319
Less unamortized discount and
allowance for uncollectible
amounts (5,972) (5,990)
Total contributions receivable,
net $ 37610 3 40,329

At June 30, 2003, the University had also received
bequest intentions of approximately $24,908,000
and certain other conditional promises to give. These
intentions and conditional promises to give are not
recognized as assets. If they are received, they will
generally be restricted for specific purposes stipulated by
the donor, primarily endowments for faculty support,
scholarships or general operating support of a particular
department or division of the University.

The University expended approximately $18,266,000
and $17,727,000, for University relations and
development for the years ended June 30, 2003 and 2002,
respectively.

Scholarships, Grants and Fellowships

The University awarded a total of $76,491,000 and
$73,827,000 in scholarships, grants and fellowships
during fiscal years 2003 and 2002, respectively. In
addition, the University awarded $9,050,837 and
$8,371,000, respectively, of scholarships, grants and
fellowships as compensation to the recipients.
$14,181,261 and $12,079,000, respectively, of the total
scholarships, grants and fellowships awarded were
specifically funded by Federal, state or private gifts or
grants, or by investment income and gains earned on
investments held for endowment and similar purposes and
utilized under the University’s total return spending

policy.
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(6)

Investments Held for Long-Term Purposes

Investments were held for the following long-term
purposes at June 30 (in thousands):

2003 2002
Endowment and similar
purposes $ 1133664 $ 1,132,014
Property, plant and
equipment purposes:
Debt service reserve
held by trustees
under debt
agreements 13,416 17,692
Other 12,864 18,871
Total property, plant and
equipment purposes 26,280 36,563
Other purposes 103,813 100,418
Total investments held for
long-term purposes $ 1,263,757 $ 1,268,995

Investments held for endowment and similar purposes and
for property, plant and equipment purposes consisted of
the following at June 30 (in thousands):

2003 2002
Held for endowment and
similar purposes:
Cash and cash
equivalents $ 109,344 $ 40,516
Debt securities 108,346 180,195
Common and preferred
stocks 522,364 526,126
Limited partnerships and
similar interests 359,194 336,769
Oil royalties 8,200 9,000
Other investments 26,216 39,408
Total market value $ 1,133664 $ 1,132,014
Total cost $ 1,056,672 $ 1,044,269
2003 2002
Held for property, plant and
equipment purposes:
Cash and cash equivalents  $ 7676 $ 2,357
U.S. Treasury securities 18,604 34,206
Total market value, which
approximates cost $ 26280 $ 36,563
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Included in the investments held for endowment purposes
above are $195,089,000 and $206,187,000 of
international investments at June 30, 2003 and 2002,
respectively.

Under the terms of certain limited partnership agreements,
the University is obligated to periodically advance
additional funding for private-equity and real estate
investments. At June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively, the
University had commitments of approximately
$83,990,000 and $96,423,000 for which capital calls had
not been exercised. Such commitments generally have
fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses. The
University maintains sufficient liquidity in its investment
portfolio to cover such calls.

For investment purposes, substantially all investments
held for endowment and similar purposes participate in
one of several pools, each with its own investment policy
and objectives. The investment pool assets are owned by
the separate funds based on shares purchased by each
fund and fund addition when it entered the pool. The
pooled assets are valued on a monthly basis and a “market
value per share” is determined and used to calculate the
number of shares applicable to funds entering or leaving
the pool.

The following table summarizes changes in relationships
between cost and market values of investments held for
endowment and similar purposes (in thousands):

2003
Net
Market Cost Gains
End of year $ 1,133,644 $ 1,056,672 $ 76,972
Beginning of
year $ 1,132,014 $ 1,044,269 87,745
Unrealized
depreciation (10,773)
Realized net
gains for year 42,587
Net increase for
year $ 31814
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2002
Net
Market Cost Gains
Endofyear $ 1,132,014 $ 1044269 $ 87,745
Beginning
of year $ 1234364 $ 1,049,908 $ 184,456
Unrealized
depreciation (96,711)
Realized net
gains for year 33,382
Net decrease for
year $ (63,329)

The University permits several of its investment managers
to utilize forward contracts, currency options and futures
with the specific authorization of the investment
committee of the Board of Trustees. These financial
instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of
market risk in excess of the amounts recorded in the
consolidated financial statements.

The University purchases forward foreign currency
contracts; with terms ranging from three months to six
months, as a hedge against fluctuations in currency prices.
Forward foreign currency buy contracts held as of June
30, 2003 and 2002, respectively were valued at
approximately $0 and $1,967,000. There were no sell
contracts held as of June 30, 2003 and 2002. Such
contracts involve, to varying degrees, risk of loss arising
from the possible inability of counterparties to meet the
terms of the contract.

Interest rate futures contracts are held as hedges against
changes in market value of fixed income securities due to
market interest rate fluctuations. The University is
subject to market risk associated with the changes in the
value of these futures contracts. The University held long
and short-term U.S. Treasury and municipal bond futures
contracts at June 30, 2003 and 2002, at a notational
amount of $3,053,000 and $17,883,000, respectively.
These amounts, however, may differ from the
University’s future cash requirements as the University
may close out futures positions prior to settlement and
thus be subject only to the change in value of the futures
contracts since the contracts are valued daily using the
market-to-market method. The margin requirements on
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deposits with a third party for futures contracts were
approximately $301,000 at June 30, 2003 and $680,000 at
June 30, 2002.

Management does not anticipate that losses, if any,
resulting from its market or credit risks would materially
affect the consolidated financial position of the
University.

Investment fees for the two years ended June 30, 2003

and 2002 were approximately $11,533,000 and
$10,277,000, respectively.

(7) Property, Plant and Equipment

As of June 30, 2003 and 2002, the University’s
investment in property, plant and equipment is as follows
(in thousands):
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2003 2002

Buildings and improvements $ 1,146,840 $ 1,130,696
Land improvements 27,319 25,076
Completed projects under

leasehold agreements 46,600 46,333
Equipment owned 516,819 505,259
Library books 83,554 77,843
Subtotal 1,821,132 1,785,207
Less accumulated

depreciation 979,111 913,312
Subtotal 842,021 871,895
Land 5,177 5,201
Museum collections 25,231 25,031
Construction in progress 23,725 26,837
Total property, plant and

equipment, net $ 896,154 $ 928,964
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(8) Long-Term Debt

(@)

The following is a summary of the University’s long-term indebtedness at June 30, 2003 and 2002 (in thousands):

Obligations under capital leases, 4% to 8.25%, (a)

Urban Development Corporation loan, (b)

Term note payable, LIBOR rate plus 0.40%, (c)

Term note payable, LIBOR rate plus 1.25% (d)

Term note payable, LIBOR rate plus 1.25% (e)

Line of credit, LIBOR rate plus 0.20% (f)

Bonds payable — DASNY Series 1987, 3.60% to 6.50%, (g)
Bonds payable — DASNY Series 1993A, 2.50% to

5.30% (net of unamortized discount of $40 in 2003 and $44 in 2002), (h)

Bonds payable — DASNY Series 1994, 3.90% to

5.90% (net of unamortized discount of $1,468 in 2003 and $1,549 in 2002), (i)

Bonds payable — DASNY Series 1994A, 4.50% to

6.50% (net of unamortized discount of $20 in 2003 and $21 in 2002), (j)

Bonds payable — DASNY Series 1994, 7.625%, (k)
Bonds payable — DASNY Series 1994B, 5.50% (I)
Bonds payable — DASNY Series 1996, 3.85% to

5.30% (net of unamortized discount of $16 in 2003 and $22 in 2002), (m)

Bonds payable — DASNY Series 1997A, 3.75% to

5.00% (net of unamortized premium of $845 in 2003 and $880 in 2002), (n)

Bonds payable — DASNY Series 1997A and B, 5.70% to 8.25%, (0)

Bonds payable — DASNY Series 1998A, 3.50% to

5.00% (net of unamortized discount of $304 in 2003 and $317 in 2002), (p)

Bonds payable — DASNY Series 1999A, 5.00% (net

of unamortized discount of $147 in 2003 and $158 in 2002), (q)

Bonds payable — DASNY Series 1999B, 3.70% to

5.72% (net of unamortized discount of $259 in 2003 and $271 in 2002), (r)

Bonds payable — DASNY Series 2000A, 4.50% to

6.05% (net of unamortized discount of $1 in 2003 and $1 in 2002), (s)

Bonds payable — DASNY Series 2001A, 2.90% to

5.00% (net of unamortized discount of $136 in 2003 and $143 in 2002), (t)

Total long-term debt

The following is a description of the University’s long
term debt.

Obligations Under Capital Leases

Strong Memorial Hospital entered into a tax-exempt
capital equipment lease program in October 2000 for
$4,719,000. The lease is being repaid with quarterly
payments of $207,884, including interest at 5.50%
through May 2007. The leased equipment includes CT
Radio Surgery, Ultrasound and linear accelerator
equipment.
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2003 2002
$ 6,006 $ 16,895
3,000 3,167
6,150 6,600
592 1,239
1,632 ---
7,812 ---
1,620 1,815
8,855 9,606
76,452 78,866
3,390 4,404
9,469 9,624
12,030 12,295
7,489 9,748
54,600 61,990
28,195 29,025
113,171 117,558
17,318 17,307
23,356 23,969
40,699 42,388
22,261 22,482

$ 444,097 $ 468,978

In 1986, the University entered into a lease on a facility
used partly to house activities of its Eastman School of
Music.  The University undertook to sublease the
remaining space to commercial tenants. During 1992, the
University exercised an option to acquire the interests of
its lessor in that facility. The facility had been financed by
$10,000,000, thirty-year tax-exempt industrial
development bonds issued by the County of Monroe
Industrial Development Agency (COMIDA) on behalf of
the lessor. Upon exercise of its option, the University
assumed the lessor’s obligations to COMIDA.

(Continued)
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Concurrently, the bonds were remarketed at an interest
rate of 7.25%, per annum, maturing in 2016. The
University refinanced the bonds through a line of credit
issued by JPMorgan Chase Bank in June of 2003.

Additionally, as a part of the exercise of its option, the
University has assumed mortgages amounting to
$796,000, bearing interest at 4.75% and payable in
monthly installments through December 2011.

In addition to the arrangements discussed above, the
University and its related entities have entered into
several other capital leases for equipment.

Urban Development Corporation Loan

In March 1992, the New York State Urban Development
Corporation (UDC) entered into an agreement with the
University to partially fund the construction of the
University’s Center for Optoelectronics and Imaging
(COl) with a loan of $5,000,000. The agreement requires
the University to pay an amount equal to the debt service
on the $6,320,000 tax-exempt bond issued by which UDC
financed the loan and the associated reserve funds and
costs of issuance. The loan is secured by a mortgage on
the property.

Pursuant to an agreement authorized by statute, the State
of New York leases the COI from the University for the
30-year term of the loan, paying, as rent, an amount
sufficient to cover the University’s obligations to UDC.
These rents have been assigned to UDC as further
security for the loan. The University retains possession of
the property under a sub-lease from the State at an annual
rent equivalent to one-thirtieth of the sum of the loan
principal and the cost of issuance of the UDC bonds.

Term Note Payable — JPMorgan Chase Bank

Pursuant to an agreement between the University and
JPMorgan Chase Bank dated June 30, 2000, JPMorgan
Chase Bank issued a term note of $7,000,000 to finance
the renovation of the Goergen Athletic Center. The note
is being repaid at an interest rate of LIBOR plus 0.40% on
the unpaid principal balance through September 2005.
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(d) Term Note Payable - HSBC Bank, USA

(€)

(f)

9

A University related entity entered into a $1,939,000 term
note agreement with HSBC Bank, USA. The note is
being repaid with monthly payments of $53,861,
including interest at the bank’s prime rate of LIBOR plus
1.25% through May 2004. This note is guaranteed by the
University through June 1, 2004 and is collateralized by
the assets of the related entity.

Term Note Payable — HSBC Bank, USA

A University related entity entered into a $1,718,000 term
note agreement with HSBC Bank, USA. The note is being
repaid at an interest rate of LIBOR plus 1.25% on the
unpaid balance through January 2008. This note is
guaranteed by the University and is collateralized by the
assets of the related entity.

Line of Credit — JPMorgan Chase Bank

Pursuant to an agreement between the University and
JPMorgan Chase Bank dated June 2, 2003, the University
drew on its available revolving line of credit, in the
amount of $7,812,000 to refinance the COMIDA lease,
which is on a facility used partly to house activities of the
Eastman School of Music. The interest on the line is
being repaid at the bank’s prime rate of LIBOR plus
0.20% on the unpaid principal through October 2004. The
line of credit will be refinanced during the first quarter of
fiscal year 2004.

Bonds Payable — Dormitory Authority of the State of
New York (DASNY) Series 1987

Pursuant to an agreement between the University and the
DASNY dated April 1, 1987, the DASNY issued and sold
$150,000,000 of bonds known as University of Rochester,
Series 1987. The Series 1987 Bonds were issued to
refund outstanding DASNY Revenue Bonds; to fund the
Debt Service Reserve Fund in an amount equal to its
requirement; and to pay certain costs of issuance of the
Series 1987 Bonds.

(Continued)
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During fiscal 1998, $65,930,000 of the Series 1987 bonds
were refunded as a result of the issuance of the Series
1997A bonds. Another $20,655,000 of the Series 1987
bonds were refunded during fiscal 1999 as a result of the
issuance of the Series 1998A bonds.

The remaining bonds are secured by: (1) certain amounts
held by bond trustees from the proceeds of the issues; and
(2) pledges of tuition, room and board, and mandatory
student fees, subject to a prior pledge of such revenues.

Bonds Payable — DASNY Series 1993A

Pursuant to an agreement between the University and the
DASNY dated April 1, 1993, the DASNY issued and sold
$21,245,000 of bonds to finance various physical plant
projects and equipment related to Strong Memorial
Hospital. The bonds were issued at a discount of
$84,000, resulting in net proceeds to the University of
$21,161,000. The bonds are a general obligation of the
University and require the University to pay principal,
sinking fund installments and interest on all bonds issued
as such payments become due.

The obligation of the University is secured by a pledge of
certain revenues of the University. These pledged
revenues include all tuition, room and board and
mandatory fees charged to students. The pledged
revenues are subordinate to the prior pledges securing
certain other outstanding indebtedness of the University.

Bonds Payable — DASNY Series 1994

Pursuant to an agreement between the University and the
DASNY dated March 1, 1994, the DASNY issued and
sold $94,985,000 of bonds known as University of
Rochester, Strong Memorial Hospital Revenue Bonds,
Series 1994. The Series 1994 bonds were issued at a
discount of $2,229,000, resulting in proceeds of
$92,756,000 to finance the construction of an ambulatory
care facility, access center and parking garage for the
Hospital and the renovation of the Hospital’s obstetrical
unit. The bonds are a general obligation of the University
and require the University to pay principal, sinking fund
installments and interest on all bonds issued as such
payments become due.
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(k)

As security for its obligation under the agreement, the
University has granted to the Authority a security interest
in pledged revenues consisting of any moneys, income
rents, or revenues received or receivable by the Hospital.

Bonds Payable — DASNY Series 1994A

Pursuant to an agreement between the University and the
DASNY dated October 1, 1994, the DASNY issued and
sold $30,575,000 of bonds known as University of
Rochester Revenue Bonds, Series 1994A. The Series
1994A bonds were issued at a net discount of $30,000,
resulting in proceeds of $30,545,000 to finance the
renovation of a dormitory, two academic buildings, and
an administration building on the University’s River
Campus; the repair and improvement of the exterior and
utility infrastructure of the buildings of the Eastman
School of Music, and the refinancing of the University’s
maturing $20,000,000 repurchase agreement with the
Student Loan Marketing Association (SLMA). The bonds
are a general obligation of the University and require the
University to pay principal, sinking fund installments and
interest on all bonds issued as such payments become due.
During fiscal year 2002, the Series 1994A bonds maturing
on and after July 1, 2007 were refinanced as a result of
the issuance of Series 2001A. The bondholders will be
paid on July 1, 2004.

The obligation of the University is secured by a pledge of
certain revenues of the University. These pledged
revenues include all tuition, room and board and
mandatory fees charged to students. The pledged
revenues are subordinate to the prior pledges securing
certain other outstanding indebtedness of the University.

Bonds Payable — DASNY Series 1994

Pursuant to an agreement with a University related entity
(Highland Hospital and affiliates) and the DASNY issued
and sold $11,790,000 of FHA-Insured Mortgage Revenue
Bonds, Series 1994 dated July 1, 1994. The related entity
is repaying the bonds that are due December 1, 2025 at a
fixed rate of 7.625%.

(Continued)
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Bonds Payable — DASNY Series 1994B

Pursuant to an agreement with a University related entity
(Highland Hospital and affiliates) and the DASNY issued
and sold $13,000,000 of Series 1994B Revenue Bonds.
The related entity is repaying the indebtedness at a fixed
rate of 5.5%, maturing July 1, 2023. The bond issue is
secured by an irrevocable direct pay letter that is held by
the trustee, JPMorgan Chase Bank. The Series 1994B
Revenue Bonds are secured by a parity mortgage and a
security interest in certain buildings and equipment.

(m) Bonds Payable — DASNY Series 1996

(n)

Pursuant to an agreement between the University and
DASNY dated July 1, 1996, the DASNY issued and sold
$21,375,000 of bonds known as University of Rochester,
Strong Memorial Hospital Revenue Bonds, Series 1996.
The Series 1996 bonds were issued at a discount of
$53,530, resulting in proceeds of $21,321,470 to finance
(1) the implementation of an automated clinical
information system, (2) the expansion and renovation of
the Hospital’s basement area to enlarge and consolidate
the pre and post anesthesia units, and (3) the purchase and
installation of a nuclear cardiology gamma camera at the
Hospital’s ambulatory care facility.

The bonds are a general obligation of the University and
require the University to pay principal, sinking fund
installments and interest on all bonds issued as such
payments become due. As security for its obligation
under the agreement, the University has granted to the
Authority a security interest in pledged revenues
consisting of any moneys, income rents, or revenues
received or receivable by the Hospital.

Bonds Payable — DASNY Series 1997A
Pursuant to an agreement between the University and

DASNY dated November 7, 1997, the DASNY issued
and sold $78,280,000 of bonds known as University of
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(0)

Rochester Revenue Bonds, Series 1997A. The Series
1997A bonds were issued at a premium of $1,041,282
resulting in proceeds of $79,321,282 to finance (1)
interior and exterior building renewal for major buildings
at the Eastman School of Music as part of a multi-year
project; (2) installation of a local area network for all
River Campus and Eastman School of Music residence
halls to provide high speed data access to undergraduate
students; (3) reconstruction of an existing pedestrian
bridge connecting Hill Court Residence Complex with the
River Campus and (4) major renewal and replacement
projects for various buildings, structures, roadways and
other facilities on the River Campus, on Mt. Hope
Avenue and at the Mees Observatory in South Bristol,
New York as part of a multi-year project. Series 1997A
also refunded a portion of the University of Rochester
Revenue Bonds, Series 1987 which was paid to the
bondholders on March 2, 1998.

The bonds are secured by the pledge and assignment of
certain revenues of the University. These pledged
revenues include all tuition, room and board and
mandatory fees charged to students. The pledged
revenues are subordinate to the prior pledges securing
outstanding indebtedness of the University.

Bonds Payable — DASNY Series 1997 A and B

Pursuant to an agreement with a University related entity
(Highland Hospital and affiliates) and the DASNY dated
December 11, 1997, the DASNY issued and sold
$26,635,000 of the Series 1997A tax-exempt FHA-
Insured Mortgage Hospital Revenue Bonds and
$5,250,000 of Series 1997B taxable FHA-Insured
Mortgage Hospital Revenue Bonds.

The Series 1997A and B bonds were issued at par value.
The proceeds of these bond issues were used to finance
(1) the expansion and modernization of selected clinical
and support areas of the Highland Hospital; (2) the
construction of the main parking garage and (3) to
refinance the Marine Midland Bank, N.A. construction
mortgage note payable.
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Bonds Payable — DASNY Series 1998A

Pursuant to an agreement between the University and
DASNY dated March 18, 1998, the DASNY issued and
sold $131,615,000 of bonds known as University of
Rochester Revenue Bonds, Series 1998A. The Series
1998A bonds were issued at a discount of $370,389
resulting in proceeds of $131,244,611 to finance (1)
design and construction of a new biomedical research
facility of approximately 240,000 square feet; (2)
construction of a new entrance to the School of Medicine
and Dentistry of approximately 55,000 feet; (3)
renovations for laboratory space to approximately 65,000
feet; (4) the acquisition of scientific equipment and
furnishings for the new facility and renovated laboratory
space; (5) the University-wide telecommunications
system and (6) replacement of the chiller at the central
utilities plant. Series 1998A also refunded a portion of
the University of Rochester Revenue Bonds, Series 1987,
which was paid to bondholders on October 2, 1998.

The bonds are secured by the pledge and assignment of
certain revenues of the University. These pledged
revenues include all tuition, room and board and
mandatory fees charged to students. The pledged
revenues are subordinate to the prior pledges securing
certain other outstanding indebtedness of the University.

Bonds Payable — DASNY Series 1999A

Pursuant to an agreement between the University and
DASNY dated August 15, 1999, the DASNY issued and
sold $17,465,000 of bonds known as University of
Rochester Revenue Bonds, Series 1999A. The Series
1999A bonds were issued at a discount of $190,194
resulting in proceeds of $17,274,806 to finance (1) the
implementation of a new Human Resource information
system to serve payroll and personnel functions university
wide; (2) renovations of existing space for various uses in
the School of Medicine and Dentistry and (3) various
projects throughout the University designed to improve
the accessibility of facilities and to accomplish deferred
maintenance items. The Loan Agreement and the
obligation of the University to make payments under the
Loan Agreement are general obligations of the University.
No security interest in any revenues or assets of the
University has been granted by the University to the
Authority under the Loan Agreement.
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(r) Bonds Payable — DASNY Series 1999B

(s)

Pursuant to an agreement between the University and
DASNY dated August 15, 1999, the DASNY issued and
sold $25,860,000 of bonds known as the University of
Rochester, Strong Memorial Hospital Revenue Bonds,
Series 1999B. The Series 1999B bonds were issued at a
discount of $306,136 resulting in proceeds of $25,553,864
to finance (1) the design and construction of a new
emergency room at the Hospital; (2) relocation and
expansion of the cardiac catheterization laboratory and (3)
expansion of existing space for the Hospital clinical
laboratories.

The Loan Agreement and the obligation of the University
to make payments under the Loan Agreement are general
obligations of the University. No security interest in any
revenues or assets of the University has been granted by
the University to the Authority under the Loan
Agreement.

Bonds Payable — DASNY Series 2000A

Pursuant to an agreement between the University and
DASNY dated June 1, 2000, the DASNY issued and sold
$45,764,113 of bonds known as the University of
Rochester Revenue Bonds, Series 2000A. The Series
2000A bonds were issued at a discount of $2,240
resulting in proceeds of $45,761,873 to finance (1) the
construction of an addition to the Medical Research
Building to expand research space for core programs in
the School of Medicine and Dentistry; (2) the renovation
of faculty office space and the expansion of instructional
facilities of the William E. Simon Graduate School of
Business Administration; (3) the upgrading of chilled
water supply infrastructure; (4) improvements to faculty
office and laboratory space at the University’s River
Campus and (5) infrastructure repairs at the Eastman
School of Music and other facility improvements on the
River Campus including the continuation of general
deferred maintenance items. Series 2000A also refinanced
a portion of the University of Rochester Revenue Bond,
Series 1972C which was paid to the bondholders on
August 3, 2000.

The Loan Agreement and the obligation of the University
to make payments under the Loan Agreement are general
obligations of the University. No security interest in any
revenues or assets of the University has been granted by
the University to the Authority under the Loan
Agreement.
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Bonds Payable — DASNY Series 2001A

Pursuant to an agreement between the University and
DASNY dated July 10, 2001, the DASNY issued and sold
$22,920,000 of bonds known as the University of
Rochester Revenue Bonds, Series 2001A. The Series
2001A bonds were issued at a discount of $151,508
resulting in net proceeds of $22,768,492 to refinance (1)
all the outstanding $184,000 University’s Dormitory
(Apartment) bonds of 1962, HUD Series D and all the
outstanding $840,000 University’s Dormitory
(Apartment) bonds of 1966, HUD Series E and (2) a
portion of the University of Rochester Revenue Bond,
Series 1994A, maturing on and after July 1, 2007. HUD
Series D and E were paid on October 1, 2001. DASNY
Series 1994A refunding is due on July 1, 2004 in the
amount of $19,640,000.

The Loan Agreement and the obligation of the University
to make payments under the Loan Agreement are general
obligations of the University. No security interest in any
revenues or assets of the University has been granted by
the University to the Authority under the Loan
Agreement.

Required Principal Payments

Required composite principal payments for long-term
debt, net of unamortized discount, for each of the years in
the five-year period ending June 30, 2008 and thereafter
are as follows (in thousands):

Principal
portions Principal Total
of lease payments principal
Maturity payments of debt payments
2004 $ 2,122 $ 33,683 $ 35,805
2005 1,604 24,446 26,050
2006 1,179 25,967 27,146
2007 852 20,463 21,315
2008 51 21,052 21,103
Thereafter 198 312,480 312,678
Total $ 6,006 $ 438,091 $ 444,097

The University expended approximately $24,455,000 and
$26,197,000 for interest for the years ended June 30, 2003
and 2002, respectively, net of interest capitalization of
approximately $167,000 and $95,000 for the years ended
June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
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(9) Benefits Plans

Self-insurance Plans — University

The University is self-insured for workers’ compensation
and medical benefits. Liabilities for asserted and
unasserted claims under the workers’ compensation
program at June 30, 2003 were discounted by 6% and
amounted to $15,123,000.

The University has a $16.8 million standby letter of credit
with JPMorgan Chase Bank to cover potential liabilities
under the  University’s  self-insured  workers’
compensation program.

Effective July 1, 2002, the University converted to a self-
insured plan for health care benefits. Based on estimates
provided by actuaries, the University’s obligation for
incurred but not reported claims was $7,433,000 as of
June 30, 2003. This amount has not been discounted.

Retirement Plan — University

Most full-time University employees participate in the
retirement plans administered by TIAA-CREF, or in a
defined contributions plan sponsored by the University.
Under these plans, the University made contributions of
approximately $40,268,000 in 2003 ($37,605,000 in
2002), which were vested for the benefit of the
participants.

Post-retirement Benefit Plan — University

The University’s post-retirement benefit plan includes
basic medical, major medical, dental coverage and life
insurance.  Benefit levels differ for current retirees,
current employees eligible to retire, and current
employees not eligible to retire. The accumulated post-
retirement benefit obligation of $70,623,000, created as
of January 1, 1996 by the enactment of the plan, is being
amortized over 16 years; the average estimated service
lives of plan participants.

The impact on retiree liabilities as a result of the
conversion to a self-funded plan for health care benefits is
reflected as amendment to the change in benefit
obligation.
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Change in benefit obligation:

Benefit obligation at beginning of year
Service cost

Interest cost

Estimated plan participants’ contributions
Actuarial (gain)/loss

Benefits paid

Amendments

Benefit obligation at end of year

Components of accrued benefit:
Funded status

Unrecognized net actuarial loss
Unrecognized prior service cost

Accrued benefit

Components of net periodic benefit cost:
Service cost

Interest cost

Amortization of prior service cost

Net loss

Net periodic benefit cost

Weighted-average assumptions as of June 30:
Discount rate
Expected return on plan assets

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant
effect on the amounts reported for the health care plans. A
one percentage-point change in the health care cost trend
rate would have the following effects:

One One
percentage percentage
point point
increase decrease
Effect on total of service
and interest cost
components $ 364 $ (354)
Effect on post-retirement
benefit obligation $ 4140 % (4,248)
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2003 2002

$ 101,857 $ 94,693
1,331 1,289
7,254 6,891
1,206 1,162
(2,833) 4,599
(7,490) (6,777)
10,868 -

$ 112193 $ 101,857
$ (112,193) $  (101,857)
12,495 15,329
47,816 42,053

$  (51,882) $ (44475
$ 1331 $ 1,289
7,254 6,891
5,105 4,426

- 84

$ 1369 $ 12,690
6.25% 7.25%
N/A N/A

Post-employment Benefits — University

Accrued post-employment benefits of the University
amounted to $27,209,000 and $23,551,000 at June 30,
2003 and 2002, respectively.

Retirement Plan — Related Entity (Highland Hospital
and Affiliates)

The retirement plan of a related entity covers all
employees who have completed one full year of
continuous employment. The benefits for this plan are
based primarily on years of service and employees’ pay
near retirement. The related entity’s funding policy is to
contribute annually, an amount consistent with the
requirement of the Employee Retirement Income Security
Act. Plan assets consist principally of cash equivalents,
common stocks and fixed income investments.
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Pension expense for this plan for the years ended
December 31, 2002 and 2001 (the most recent data
available) includes the following components (in
thousands):

(10) Investment in Insurance Company

2002 2001
Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of
year $ 41697 $ 36,264
Service cost 1,838 1,571
Interest cost 2,979 2,769
Actuarial loss 8,265 2,525
Benefits paid (1,333) (1,432)

Benefit obligation atend of year ~$ 53,446 $ 41,697

The University, together with other universities and
teaching hospitals, has formed a captive insurance
company (captive) to insure the medical malpractice risks
of the shareholders. The University’s investment in the
captive represents 20% of the voting rights; however, the
dissolution provisions of the captive agreement indicate
that the University’s financial participation (based on
percentage of premiums paid) is approximately 9% of the
financial results of the captive.

(11) Professional Liability Insurance

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of assets, beginning of

period $ 32,124 $ 38,155
Actuarial return on plan assets (2,533) (4,599)
Benefits paid (1,333) (1,432)

Fair value of assets at end of
period $ 28258 $ 32,124

Components of accrued
pension liability:

The University’s coverage for professional liability
insurance is provided under insurance policies obtained
jointly with other universities and teaching hospitals. The
primary layer of coverage, and 10% of the first layer of
excess insurance, were written by MCIC Vermont, Inc. (a
Risk Retention Group) formed and directed by the
participating insured institutions. Multiple layers of excess
insurance were purchased from several different insurance
companies. The maximum coverage for the Medical
Center is $172,000,000 per claim. The per claim coverage
amount at each of the five participating institutions has
been tailored to their own experience and exposures.

Based on estimates provided by the actuaries retained by
MCIC Vermont, Inc., the University obligations for
incurred, but not reported claims were approximately
$12,341,000 and $10,687,000 as of June 30, 2003 and
2002, respectively.

(12) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Funded status $ (25183) $ (9,573)
Unrecognized net actuarial loss 18,419 4,870
Unrecognized transition asset (960) (1,274)
Unrecognized prior service cost 158 241
Accumulated comprehensive

pension expense (10,266)
Intangible asset (158)
Accrued pension liability $ (17,995) $  (5,736)
Components of net periodic

benefit cost:
Service cost $ 1,838 $ 1,571
Interest cost 2,979 2,769
Expected return on plan assets (2,836) (3,386)
Amortization of prior service cost 84 83
Amortization of transition asset (315) (314)
Amortization gain 85 (248)
Net periodic benefit cost $ 1835 $ 475
Weighted-average assumptions

as of December 31:
Discount rate 6.50% 7.25%
Expected return on plan assets 9.00% 9.00%
Rate of compensation increase 4.50% 4.50%
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The method and assumptions described below were used
to estimate the fair value of each class of financial
instrument for which it is practicable to estimate that
value. Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in
time, based on relevant market information and
information about the financial instrument.  These
estimates are subjective in nature and involve
uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and,
therefore, cannot be determined with precision. Changes
in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.
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UNIVERSITY OF ROCHESTER
AND RELATED ENTITIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2003 and 2002

Cash and Cash Equivalent, Accounts Receivable,
Third-Party Settlements Payable, and Accounts
Payable and Accrued Expenses

The carrying amount approximates fair value because of
the short maturities of these instruments.

Contributions Receivable

Contributions receivable are recorded at their net present
value. See note 1(h) for accounting policies related to
contributions receivable.

Investment

Investments are reported at their fair market values. See
note 1(i) for accounting policies for determination of fair
value of investments.

Notes Receivable

A reasonable estimate of the fair value of notes receivable
from students under Federal Government financial
assistance programs could not be made because the notes
are not salable and can only be assigned to the Federal
Government or its designees. The fair value of notes
receivable from students under University loan programs
approximates carrying value.

Estimated Professional Liability Costs

The carrying amount of this actuarially determined
liability approximates fair value.

Long-Term Debt

The fair value of the University’s long-term debt is
estimated based upon the amount of future cash flows
discounted using the University’s current borrowing rate
for similar debt instruments of comparable maturities. The
fair value of total bonds and notes payable was
approximately $508,600,000 million and $485,900,000
million at June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

(13) Lines and Letters of Credit

The University has a $5 million line of credit with
JPMorgan Chase Bank that can be used for letters of
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credit.  Of this $5 million, $1,033,000 is currently
committed ($500,000 for the University’s Commercial
General Liability Policy deductible and $533,000 for the
repayment of obligations to the Urban Development
Corporation).

The University has an additional $40 million line of credit
with JPMorgan Chase Bank for emergency purposes of
which approximately $7.8 million is committed for the
refinancing of Eastman Place COMIDA bonds and related
mortgages in 2003. At June 30, 2002, there was no amount
outstanding under this line of credit.

(14) Commitments and Contingencies

In the ordinary course of operations, the University is
named as a defendant in various lawsuits, or events occur
which could lead to litigation, claims, or assessments.
Although the outcome of such matters cannot be predicted
with certainty, management believes that insurance
coverage is sufficient to cover current or potential claims,
or that the final outcomes of such matters will not have a
material adverse effect on the consolidated financial
position.

At June 30, 2003, the University has entered into
construction contracts and commitments aggregating
approximately $290,585,000 ($288,247,000 at June 30,
2002) of which  approximately  $263,683,000
($268,855,000 at June 30, 2002) had been incurred.

As of June 30, 2003, the University has been awarded
grants and contracts totaling approximately $199,938,000
($134,881,000 at June 30, 2002) for which the funds have
not been received or expended. Accordingly, these awards
are not reflected in the consolidated financial statements,
but represent commitments of sponsors, both government
and other, to provide funds for specific research and
training programs.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2003 and 2002

(15) Leases

(17) Subsequent Event

Future minimum payments by year and in the aggregate,
under non-cancelable operating leases, with initial or
remaining terms of one year or more are as follows (in
thousands):

Operating Leases

University Related

Entity

2004 $ 10,154 $ 1,108

2005 8,488 778

2006 8,060 543

2007 6,474 543

2008 5,508 543

Thereafter 23,174 1,895
Total minimum lease

payments $ 61,858 $ 5,410

(16) Functional Expenses

The University also records expenses according to major
classes of program or functions. Functional expenses for
the years ended June 30 consisted of the following (in

thousands):
2003 2002

Instruction $ 239323 $ 227,519
Research 189,311 168,398
Public Service 8,872 8,846
Libraries and other academic

support 35,932 33,813
Student services 36,104 34,478
Institutional support 49,120 42,977
Hospital and faculty practice

patient care 1,028,278 967,760
Auxiliary enterprises 45,917 43,031
Total functional expenses $ 1,632,857 $ 1,526,822
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Under an agreement with the Dormitory Authority of the State
of New York, serial and terms bonds will be issued to refund
portions of the Authority’s University of Rochester Revenue
Bonds Series 1987, Series 1993A, Series 1999A, Series 1999B
and to fund various capital projects. The projects on the
University’s River Campus include deferred maintenance and
renovation to various facilities and the expansion of the
Laboratory for Laser Energetics building. Medical Center
projects include renovations to various facilities in Strong
Memorial Hospital and the School of Medicine and Dentistry,
construction of an adult intensive care unit, and an expansion
of the parking garage.

On July 31, 2003, the University of Rochester executed
$164,425,000 of interest rate swaps with third parties and
locked-in a swap rate of 3.97%. The swaps will allow the
University to refinance the Series 1987, 1993 and 1994 issues
for present value savings of more than $4,223,000 or 4.92% of
par. In addition, the swaps will allow the University to fund
approximately $75 million of new money projects at a
favorable cost of capital. The effective date of the swap
agreement is November 6, 2003.
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Appendix C

SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE LOAN AGREEMENT

The following is a brief summary of certain provisions of the Loan Agreement pertaining to the Bonds and the
Project. Such summary does not purport to be complete and reference is made to the Loan Agreement for full and
compl ete statements of such and all provisions. Defined terms used herein shall have the meanings ascribed to themin
Appendix A.

Duration of Loan Agreement

TheLoan Agreement shall remaininfull forceand effect until no Bondsare Outstanding and until all other payments,
expenses and fees payable under the L oan Agreement by the University shall have been made or provision madefor the
payment thereof; provided, however, that certain liabilitiesand obligations of the University under the L oan Agreement
shall nevertheless survive any such termination. Upon such termination, an Authorized Officer of the Authority shall
deliver suchdocumentsasmay bereasonably requested by theUniversity to evidence suchterminationandthedischarge
of its duties under the Loan Agreement, including the satisfaction of any mortgage and the rel ease or surrender of any
security interests granted by the University to the Authority pursuant to the Loan Agreement.

(Section42)

Construction of Projects

The University agrees that, whether or not there are sufficient moneys available to it under the provisions of the
Resolution and under the Loan Agreement, the University shall complete the acquisition, design, construction,
reconstruction, rehabilitation and improving or otherwise providing and furnishing and equipping of each Project,
substantially in accordance with the Contract Documents relating thereto. Subject to the conditions of the Loan
Agreement, the Authority will, to the extent of moneys available in the applicable Construction Fund, cause the
University to bereimbursed for, or pay, any costsand expensesincurred by the University which constitute Costs of the
Project, provided such costs and expenses are approved by an Authorized Officer of the Authority.

(Section 5)

Amendment of a Project; Cost Increases, Additional Bonds

A Project may be amended by the University with the prior written consent of an Authorized Officer of the Authority
todecrease, increaseor otherwisemodify thescopethereof. Any suchincreasemay providefor theaddition of any further
acquisition, design, construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, improving, or otherwise providing furnishing and
equipping of aProject which the Authority is authorized to undertake.

(Section 6)

Financial Obligations of the University; General and Unconditional Obligation; Voluntary Payments

Except to the extent that moneys are available therefor under the Resolution or the Loan Agreement, including
moneys in the Debt Service Fund, but excluding interest accrued but unpaid on investments held in the Debt Service
Fund, the University pursuant to the Loan Agreement unconditionally agreesto pay, solong asBondsare Outstanding,
to or upon the order of the Authority, from its general funds or any other moneys legally available to it:

(a) Onor beforethedate of delivery of the Series 2000A Bonds and the Series 1999B Bonds, $50,000 to be applied
against payment of the Authority Fee in connection with the issuance of such Bondswhich feeisestimated to be such
amount;

(b) Onorbeforethedateof delivery of Bondsof aSeries, suchamount, if any, asisspecifiedinthe SeriesResolution
authorizing the issuance of such Bonds or in the Bond Series Certificate relating to such Bonds, to pay the Costs of
I ssuance of such Bonds, and other costsin connection with theissuance of such Bonds;

(c) On the twentieth (20th) day of each calendar month commencing on the twentieth (20th) day of the month
immediately preceding the date on which such interest becomes due, the sum of (i) interest coming due on Variable
Interest Rate Bondson or prior to the twentieth day of the next succeeding calendar month, assuming that such Variable
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Interest Rate Bonds bear interest from the date of such deposit until theinterest payment date at arate per annum equal
to the rate per annum for such Bonds on theimmediately preceding Business Day, plus one percent per annum, and (ii)
the principal and Sinking Fund Installments of Option Bonds and Variable Interest Rate Bonds payable on or prior to
the twentieth day of the next succeeding calendar month;

(d) On November 15 immediately preceding the January 1, and on May 15 immediately preceding the July 1, on
which interest becomes due on all Bonds, other than Option Bonds and Variable Interest Rate Bonds, interest coming
due on such January 1 or July 1 interest payment date for such Bonds;

(e) On May 15 immediately preceding the July 1 on which the principal or a Sinking Fund Installment of Bonds
becomes due, other than Option Bonds and Variable Rate Bonds, the principal and Sinking Fund Installments on the
Bonds coming due on such July 1;

(f) Atleast forty-five (45) dayswith respect to Bonds other than Option Bonds and Variable I nterest Rate Bonds
and fifteen (15) days with respect to Option Bonds and Variable Interest Rate Bonds prior to any date on which the
Redemption Price or purchase price in lieu of redemption of Bonds previously called for redemption or contracted to
be purchased isto be paid, the amount required to pay the Redemption Price or purchase pricein lieu of redemption of
suchBonds;

(g) OnDecember 10 of eachBond Y ear, one-half (1/2) of the Annual Administrative Feepayableduring such Bond
Year in connection with each Series of Bonds, and on June 10 of each Bond Year the balance of the Annual
Administrative Fee payable during such Bond Y ear; provided, however, that the Annual Administrative Fee payable
shall become effective, with respect to the Series 2000A Bonds and the Series 1999B Bonds on December 10, 1999 and
with respect to any other Series of Bonds on the date agreed to by the University and the Authority at the time Bonds
of such Seriesareissued; and, provided, further, that the Annual Administrative Feewith respect to any Seriesof Bonds
payable during the Bond Y ear during which such Annual Administrative Fee became effective shall be equal to the
Annual Administrative Fee with respect to such Series of Bonds multiplied by afraction the numerator of whichisthe
number of calendar months or parts thereof remaining in such Bond Y ear and the denominator of which istwelve (12);

(h) Promptly after notice from the Authority, but in any event not later than fifteen (15) days after such noticeis
given, the amount set forth in such notice as payable to the Authority (i) for the Authority Fee then unpaid, (ii) to
reimburse the Authority for payments made pursuant to the L oan Agreement and any expensesor liabilitiesincurred by
the Authority pursuant to the Loan Agreement, (iii) for the costs and expenses incurred to compel full and punctual
performance of al the provisions of the Loan Agreement and the Resol ution in accordance with the terms thereof, (iv)
for thefeesand expenses of the Trustee and any Paying Agent in connection with performance of their dutiesunder the
Resolution, and (v) for any external costs or expenses attributabl e to the issuance of a Series of Bonds or the financing
or construction of a Project, including but not limited to any fees or other amounts payable under a Remarketing
Agreement, a Credit Facility or a Liquidity Facility;

(i) Onthedate aSeries of Bondsisissued, an amount equal to the Authority Feein connection with issuance of
such Series of Bonds;

(1) Promptly upon demand by an Authorized Officer of the Authority (a copy of which shall be furnished to the
Trustee), all amountsrequiredto bepaid by the University asaresult of an accel eration pursuant tothe L oan Agreement;

(k) By5:00P.M., New York City time, on the day notice thereof is given to the University by the Authority or the
Trustee, the amount, in immediately available funds, required to pay the purchase price of Option Bonds tendered for
purchase and not remarketed or remarketed at less than the principal amount thereof and which is not to be paid from
moneys to be made available pursuant to a Credit Facility or aLiquidity Facility; provided, however, that if such notice
isgiven to the University by 10:00 A.M., New Y ork City time, then such amount shall be paid, inimmediately available
funds, by 12:30 P.M., New Y ork City time, on such day; provided, further, that, if such noticeisgivento the University
after 3:00 P.M., New York City time, then such amount shall be paid, in immediately available funds, by 10:00 A.M.,
New York City time, on the next succeeding day;

()  Promptly upon demand by an Authorized Officer of the Authority, the difference between the amount on
deposit in the Arbitrage Rebate Fund available to be rebated in connection with the Bonds of a Series or otherwise
availabletherefor under the Resol ution and the amount of rebate, yield reduction payments, interest and penalty, if any,
required to be paid to the Department of the Treasury of United States of Americain accordance with the Code in
connection with the Bonds of such Series; and
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(m) Promptly upon demand by an Authorized Officer of the Authority, all amounts required to be paid by the
Authority to a Qualified Hedge Provider in accordance with a Qualified Hedge or to reimburse the Authority for any
amounts paid to a Qualified Hedge Provider in accordance with a Qualified Hedge.

Subject to the provisions of the Resol ution and the L oan Agreement, the University shall receiveacredit against the
amount required to be paid by the University during aBond Y ear pursuant to paragraph (c) or (e) above on account of
any Sinking Fund Installmentsif, prior to the date notice of redemption isgiven pursuant to the Resol ution with respect
to Bonds to be redeemed through Sinking Fund Installments on the next succeeding July 1, either (i) the University
deliverstothe Trusteefor cancellation oneor more Bondsof the Seriesand maturity to be soredeemed, or (ii) the Trustee,
at the direction of the Authority, has purchased one or more Bonds of the maturity to be so redeemed from amounts on
deposit in the Debt Service Fund in accordance with the Resolution. The amount of the credit shall be equal to the
principal amount of the Bonds so delivered.

The Authority directsthe University, and the University agrees, to make the payments required by paragraphs (c),
(d), (e), (f) and (j) abovedirectly to the Trustee for deposit in the Debt Service Fund and application in accordance with
the Resol ution, the paymentsrequired by paragraph (b) abovedirectly tothe Trusteefor deposit in aConstruction Fund
or other fund established under the Resolution as directed by an Authorized Officer of the Authority, the payments
required by paragraph (I) above directly to the Trusteefor deposit in the Arbitrage Rebate Fund, the paymentsrequired
by paragraph (k) abovedirectly tothe Trusteefor payment of the purchase price of Option Bondstendered by theHolders
thereof for purchase, the payment required by paragraph (m) above with respect to a Qualified Hedge as directed by an
Authorized Officer of the Authority, the payments required by paragraphs (a), (g), (h) and (i) abovedirectly to or upon
the order of the Authority.

Notwithstanding any provision in the Loan Agreement or in the Resol ution or the Series Resol ution to the contrary
(except as otherwise specifically provided for in the provisions described under this caption), (i) all moneys paid by the
University to the Trustee pursuant to paragraphs (c), (d), (e), (f), (j) and (k) above (other than moneys received by the
Trustee pursuant to the Resolution which shall be retained and applied by the Trustee for its own account) shall be
received by the Trustee asagent for the Authority in satisfaction of the University’ sindebtednessto the Authority with
respect totheinterest on and principal or Redemption Priceof theBondsto theextent of such paymentand (ii) thetransfer
by the Trustee of any moneys (other than moneysdescribedin (i) above) held by it inthe Construction Fund to the Debt
Service Fund in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Loan Agreement or of the Resol ution shall be deemed,
upon such transfer, receipt by the Authority from the University of a payment in satisfaction of the University’s
indebtednessto the Authority with respect to the Redemption Price of the Bondsto the extent of the amount of moneys
transferred. Except as otherwise provided in the Resolution, the Trustee shall hold such moneysintrust in accordance
with the applicable provisions of the Resolution for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Holders of Bonds, regardless
of the actual due date or applicable payment date of any payment to the Holders of Bonds.

The obligations of the University to make payments or cause the same to be made under the L oan Agreement shall
becompleteand unconditional and theamount, manner and time of making such paymentsshal |l not bedecreased, abated,
postponed or delayed for any cause or by reason of the happening or non-happening of any event, irrespective of any
defense or any right of set-off, recoupment or counterclaim which the University may otherwise have against the
Authority, the Trustee or any Bondholder for any cause whatsoever including, without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, failure of the University to complete aProject or the compl etion thereof with defects, failure of the University
to occupy or use a Project, any declaration or finding that the Bonds or any Series of Bonds are, or the Resolution is,
invalid or unenforceable or any other failure or default by the Authority or the Trustee; provided, however, that nothing
in the Loan Agreement shall be construed to release the Authority from the performance of any agreementson its part
contained in the Loan Agreement or any of its other duties or obligations, and in the event the Authority shall fail to
perform any such agreement, duty or obligation, the University may institute such action as it may deem necessary to
compel performance or recover damages for non-performance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Authority shall have
no obligation to perform its obligations under the Loan Agreement to cause advances to be made to reimburse the
University for, or to pay, the Costs of the Projects relating to a Project, beyond the extent of moneys available in the
Construction Fund established for such Project.

TheLoan Agreement and the obligations of the University to make paymentsunder the L oan Agreement are general
obligations of the University.
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An Authorized Officer of the Authority, for the convenience of the University, shall furnish to the University
statements of the due date, purpose and amount of paymentsto be made pursuant to the Loan Agreement. Thefailure
to furnish such statements shall not excuse non-payment of the amounts payabl e under the Loan Agreement at thetime
and inthe manner provided intheLoan Agreement. The University shall notify the Authority asto the amount and date
of each payment made to the Trustee by the University.

The Authority shall have theright in its sole discretion to make on behalf of the University any payment required
pursuant totheL oan Agreement whichhasnot been madeby theUniversity whendue. No such payment by the A uthority
shall limit, impair or otherwise affect therightsof the Authority under the Loan Agreement arising out of theUniversity’s
failure to make such payment and no payment by the Authority shall be construed to be awaiver of any such right or
of the obligation of the University to make such payment.

TheUniversity, if itisnot thenin default under the L oan Agreement, shall havetheright to makevoluntary payments
in any amount to the Trustee. In the event of avoluntary payment, the amount so paid shall be deposited in accordance
with the directions of an Authorized Officer of the Authority in the Debt Service Fund or held by the Trustee for the
payment of Bonds in accordance with the Resolution. In making a voluntary payment to be held by the Trustee in
accordancewiththe Resolution, the University may effect such payment by thedelivery of Defeasance Securities. Upon
any voluntary payment by the University or upon any deposit in the Debt Service Fund made pursuant to the Loan
Agreement, the Authority agreesto direct the Trustee to purchase or redeem Bondsin accordance with the Resolution
or to givethe Trusteeirrevocabl e instructionsin accordance with the Resol ution with respect to such Series of Bonds;
provided, however, that in the event such voluntary payment isin the sole judgment of the Authority sufficient to pay
all amountsthen due under the Loan Agreement and under the Resol ution, including the purchase or redemption of all
Bonds Outstanding, or to pay or provide for the payment of all Bonds Outstanding in accordance with the Resolution,
the Authority agrees, in accordance with theinstructions of the University, to direct the Trustee to purchase or redeem
al Bonds Outstanding, or to cause all Bonds outstanding to be paid or to be deemed paid in accordance with the
Resolution.

(Section9)

Consent to Pledge and Assignment

The University consentsto and authorizes the assignment, transfer or pledge by the Authority to the Trustee of the
Authority’ srights to receive certain of the payments required to be made pursuant to the Loan Agreement, any or all
security interests granted by the University under the Loan Agreement. All funds and accounts established by the
Resolution and pledged thereby to secure any payment or the performance of any obligation of the University under the
Loan Agreement or arising out of the transactions contemplated by the Loan Agreement shall be specifically assigned
by the Authority tothe Trustee. The University further agreesthat the Authority may pledge and assign to the Trustee
any and all of the Authority’ srights and remedies under the L oan Agreement. Upon any pledge and assignment by the
Authority to the Trustee authorized by the L oan Agreement, the Trustee shall befully vested with all of therightsof the
Authority so assigned and pledged and may thereafter exercise or enforce, by any remedy provided therefor by the Loan
Agreement or by law, any of such rightsdirectly in its own name. Any such pledge and assignment shall be limited to
securing the University’s obligation to make all payments required by the Loan Agreement and to performing all other
obligations required to be performed by the University under the Loan Agreement. Any realization upon any pledge
madeor security interest granted by the L oan Agreement shall not, by operation of law or otherwise, resultincancellation
or termination of the Loan Agreement or the obligations of the University under the Loan Agreement.

(Section10)

Limitation on Liens

Except as otherwise provided in the Loan Agreement, so long as Bonds shall be Outstanding, the University
covenantsand agreesthat it will notissue, assumeor guarantee any Debt secured by Liensupon any Restricted Property
or create, incur or assume any Liensupon any Restricted Property to secure Debt, without effectively providing that the
University’s indebtedness under the Loan Agreement (together with, if the University so determines, any other
indebtednessor obligationthereafter created that isnot subordinatein right of payment totheUniversity’ sindebtedness
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under the Loan Agreement) shall be secured equally and ratably with or prior to al other obligations secured thereby
aslong as such Debt shall be so secured, except that the foregoing provisions shall not apply to:

(a) Lienstosecureall or any part of the purchase price or the cost of construction of Restricted Property acquired
or constructed by the University, provided (i) the Debt secured by any such Lien isnon-recourseto the University, (ii)
theamount of such Debt does not exceed ninety-five percent (95%) of the purchase priceor the cost of construction, (iii)
such Debt and related Lien areincurred within ninety (90) days after the acquisition or completion of construction, and
(iv) such Lien relates only to the Restricted Property so acquired or constructed;

(b) Lienson Restricted Property existing at the time of acquisition of such Restricted Property by the University,
provided (i) the Debt secured by any such Lienisnon-recourseto the University, and (ii) the amount of such Debt does
not exceed ninety-five percent (95%) of the fair market value (in the opinion of an Authorized Officer of the University)
of such Restricted Property;

(c) LienstosecureDebtincurredtotheAuthority or to secure Bonds, bonds, notesor other obligationsissued by
the Authority;

(d) Withtheconsent of the Authority, Liensupon Restricted Property, other thanthe Pledged Revenues, to secure
obligationsincurred by the University totheissuer of aCredit Facility or aLiquidity Facility or pursuant to an agreement
relating thereto; and

(e) Any extension, renewal or replacement (or successive extensions, renewals or replacements), in whole or in
part, of any Lienreferred toin theforegoing clauses (a) through (d) inclusive or of any Debt secured thereby; provided,
that (i) the principal amount of Debt secured thereby shall not exceed the principal amount of Debt so secured at thetime
of such extension, renewal or replacement, (ii) such extension, renewal or replacement Lien shall belimited to all or part
of substantially the same Restricted Property to which the Lien that was extended, renewed or replaced applied (plus
improvements on such Restricted Property) and (iii) in the case of any Lien referred to in the foregoing clause (a) or (b),
the Debt secured thereby shall be non-recourse to the University.

(Section1l)

Exempted Transactions

Notwithstanding the provisionsof theL oan Agreement, theUniversity may issue, assumeor guarantee Debt secured
by Liensor create, incur or assume Liensto secure Debt, that woul d otherwise be subject to therestrictionsin the Loan
Agreement described abovein the event that:

(i) thefair market value (in the opinion of an Authorized Officer of the University) of the Restricted Property
securing such Debt, together with the aggregate val ue (as shown on thebooksand records of the University uponwhich
themost recent audited financial statementsof the University arebased) of all other Restricted Property of the University
securing Debt (other than Restricted Property securing Debt permitted to be secured under the Loan Agreement) does
not exceed anamount equal totwenty percent (20%) (or such higher percentageasshall beconsentedtoby an Authorized
Officer of the Authority) of the University’ stotal assets (asshown onthemost recent audited financial statementsof the
University); and

(ii) theaggregate principal amount of such Debt, together with the aggregate outstanding principal amount of all
other Debt secured by Lienson Restricted Property of the University (other than Debt permitted to be secured under the
Loan Agreement), does not exceed an amount equal to twenty-percent (20%) (or such higher percentage as shall be
consented to by an Authorized Officer of the Authority) of the University’ stotal assets (as shown on the most recent
audited financial statements of the University);

provided that in no event shall the University issue, assume or guarantee any Debt secured by Liens upon the
University’ s stocks, bonds, notes or other investments, or create, incur or assume Liens upon the University’ s stocks,
bonds, notes or other investmentsto secure Debt (other than Debt incurred to the Authority in connection with bonds,
notes or other obligations of the Authority issued under aresolution of the Authority) if at thetime such Debt isissued,
assumed or guaranteed or such Lien iscreated, incurred or assumed the market value (in the opinion of an Authorized
Officer of theUniversity) of stocks, bonds, notesor other investmentssubject toLiens, including Lienssecuringthe Debt
then proposedto beissued, assumed or guaranteed or theLienthen proposedtobecreated, incurred or assumed, exceeds
ten percent (10%) (or such higher percentage as shall be consented to by an Authorized Officer of the Authority) of (x)
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thevalue (asshown onthe most recent audited financial statementsof the University) of all stocks, bonds, notesor other
investments of the University less (y) one hundred ten percent (110%) of the principal amount of Bonds then
Outstanding, or if at the time such Debt isissued, assumed or guaranteed or such Lien iscreated, incurred or assumed
themarket value (inthe opinion of an Authorized Officer of theUniversity) of stocks, bonds, notesand other investments
which are derived from gifts or bequests, not required to pay any item which is a Cost of a Project, held as part of the
University’ s permanent capital, and free and clear of any lien, pledge, charge, security interest or other encumbrance or
statutory, contractual or other restriction, isnot at | east equal to one hundred ten percent (110%) of the principal amount
of Bondsthen Outstanding.

(Section12)

Financial Covenants

The University covenants that it shall maintain Available Assets of the University which will be not less than two
(2) timestheGeneral Liabilitiesof theUniversity, andit shall deliver tothe Authority and the Trustee acertified statement
of an Authorized Officer of the University after the close of each quarter of each fiscal year of the University asprovided
in the Loan Agreement which demonstrates compliance with such covenant; provided, however, the failure of the
University to comply with such covenant shall not constitute an Event of Default if the University has complied with
the provisions of the Loan Agreement respecting the Management Consultant.

The University covenants that it shall maintain as an asset of the University, stocks, bonds, notes or other similar
securities which (@) are free and clear of any pledge, lien, charge, security interest or other encumbrance, (b) are not
subject toany statutory, contractual or other restriction, and (¢) haveamarket valueat | east equal to one hundred twenty
percent (120%) of the aggregate principal amount of itsoutstanding Short Term Debt, andit shall deliver tothe Authority
and the Trustee a certified statement of an Authorized Officer of the University after the close of each quarter of each
fiscal year of the University as provided in the Loan Agreement which demonstrates compliance with such covenant;
provided, however, the failure of the University to comply with such covenant shall not constitute an Event of Default
if the University has comply with the provisions of the Loan Agreement respecting the Management Consultant.

(Section13)

Management Consultant

If the University fails to comply with any of the covenants contained in the Loan Agreement in any fiscal year
succeeding afiscal year in which no such failure occurred, the Authority, at its election which shall be exercised within
sixty (60) daysof noticeof suchfailure, may request the University to engage, at theUniversity’ sexpense, aM anagement
Consultant to review the rates, operations and management of the University and any other matter deemed appropriate
by the Authority and to make such recommendations with respect to such rates, operations, management and other
matters as will enable the University to comply with such covenants within areasonable period. The University shall
engage a Management Consultant within sixty (60) days of such request by the Authority. Copies of the report and
recommendations of the Management Consultant shall befiled with the Authority, the Trustee, the board of trustees of
the University and an Authorized Officer of the University no later than one hundred twenty (120) days following the
date of engagement of such Management Consultant. The board of trustees of the University and such Authorized
Officer of the University shall each deliver to the Authority no later than thirty (30) daysfollowing the date of filing with
the Authority of the report and recommendations of the Management Consultant a written report setting forth their
respective comment and reaction to the report and recommendations of the Management Consultant.

If the University fails to comply with any of the covenants contained in the Loan Agreement in any fiscal year
succeeding afiscal year in which such failure has occurred, the University shall engage within sixty (60) days of such
failure, at the University’s expense, a Management Consultant to review the rates, operations and management of the
University and any other matter deemed appropriate by the Authority and to make such recommendati ons with respect
to such rates, operations, management and other matters aswill enable the University to comply with such covenants
within areasonable period. The University shall immediately notify an Authorized Officer of the Authority of such
engagement. Copiesof thereport and recommendationsof the M anagement Consultant shall befiled withthe Authority,
the Trustee, theboard of trustees of the University and an Authorized Officer of the University nolater than onehundred
twenty (120) days following the date of engagement of such Management Consultant.
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The University shall, to the extent feasible, promptly upon its receipt of such recommendations, and subject to
applicable requirements or restrictionsimposed by law or regulation, reviseits rates, fees and charges, its methods of
operation or collectionsor itsdebt and investment management and shall take such other action asshall bein conformity
with such recommendations. The University shall deliver to the Authority and the Trustee:

(i) within forty- five (45) days of receipt of such Management Consultant’s report (@) a report setting forth in
reasonable detail the steps the University proposes to take to implement the recommendations of such Management
Consultant, and (b) acertified copy of aresolution adopted by the board of trustees of the University accepting both the
Management Consultant’s report and the report prepared by the University as required in clause (a) hereof.

(ii) quarterly reports demonstrating the progress made by the University inimplementing the recommendations of
the Management Consultant.

If the University complies in all material respects with the reasonable recommendations of the Management
Consultant delivered under the Loan Agreement, the University will be deemed to have complied with the covenants
contained in the Loan Agreement for the University’s fiscal year in which the Management Consultant’s report is
delivered and the University’s succeeding fiscal year.

(Section14)

Tax-Exempt Status

The University representsthat: (i) it isan organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code, or corresponding
provisions of prior law and is not a“ private foundation,” as such term is defined under Section 509(a) of the Code; (ii)
it has received a letter or other notification from the Internal Revenue Service to that effect; (iii) such letter or other
notification has not been modified, limited or revoked; (iv) it isin compliance with all terms, conditions and limitations,
if any, contained in such letter or other notification; (v) the facts and circumstances which form the basis of such letter
or other notification as represented to the Internal Revenue Service continue to exist; and (vi) it is exempt from federal
income taxes under Section 501(a) of the Code. The University agreesthat: (a) it shall not perform any act or enter into
any agreement which shall adversely affect such federal incometax statusand shall conduct itsoperationsin the manner
whichwill conform to the standards necessary to qualify the University asan organization within the meaning of Section
501(c) (3) of the Code or any successor provision of federal income tax law; and (b) it shall not perform or permit any
act or enter into any agreement which could adversely affect the exclusion of interest on the Bonds from federal gross
income taxes pursuant to Section 103 of the Code.

TheUniversity warrants, representsand covenantsthat, subject totheL oan Agreement, (i) at | east ninety-fivepercent
(95%) of the net proceeds of the Bonds of an issue (cal culated in accordance with Section 150(a) (3) of the Code) shall
not be used in the trade or business of any person other than an organi zati on described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code
or astate or local governmental unit, and (ii) all property acquired, constructed or renovated with moneys derived from
the net proceeds of Bonds will be owned (within the meaning of the Code) by an organization described in Section
501(c)(3) of the Code or a state or local governmental unit.

On each date on which Bonds of a Series areissued, the University shall certify that the principal amount of Bonds
and other obligationsissued by or for the benefit of the University, theinterest on whichisintended to be excluded from
grossincomefor purposes of federal incometaxes, and which aretreated as outstanding for such purposes of the Code,
doesnot exceed thelimitation thereon imposed by Section 145(b) of the Code. Inaddition, the University shall promptly
notify theAuthority upontheissuanceof any notes, bondsor other obligati ons(other thanthoseissued by the Authority)
by or for the benefit of the University, the interest on which is excluded from grossincome for the purposes of federal
income taxes.

(Section16)

Use of Projects; Restrictions on Religious Use

Subject to the Tax Certificate, the University agrees that at |east ninety-five percent (95%) of each Project shall be
used with respect to the Hospital or occupied or used only by or for students or members of the faculty or staff of the
University, or, on atemporary basis, persons connected with the Hospital, or educational, research or other activities
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incidental to the operations of the University or the Hospital, subject to and consistent with the requirements of Loan
Agreement. Subject to therights, dutiesand remedies of the Authority under the L oan Agreement, the University shall
have sole and exclusive control of, possession of and responsibility for (i) the Projects; (ii) the operation of the Projects
and supervision of theactivitiesconducted therein orin connectionwithany part thereof; and (iii) themaintenance, repair
and replacement of the Projects.

The University agreesthat with respect to any Project or portion thereof, so long as such Project or portion thereof
existsand unlessand until such Project or portion thereof issold for thefair market val uethereof, such Project or portion
thereof shall not be used for sectarian religiousinstruction or as a place of religiousworship or in connection with any
part of a program of a school or department of divinity for any religious denomination; provided, however, that the
foregoing restriction shall not prohibit thefreeexerciseof any religion; and provided, further, that if at any time hereafter,
in the opinion of Bond Counsel, the then applicable law would permit a Project or portion thereof to be used without
regard to the above stated restriction, said restriction shall not apply to such Project and each portion thereof. The
Authority and its agents may conduct such inspections as an Authorized Officer of the Authority deems necessary to
determine whether any Project or any portion or real property thereof financed by Bondsis being used for any purpose
proscribed by the Loan Agreement. TheUniversity further agreesthat prior to any disposition of any portion of aProject
for less than fair market value, it shall execute and record in the appropriate real property records an instrument
subjecting, to the satisfaction of the Authority, the use of such portion of such Project to the restriction that (i) solong
assuch portion of such Project (and, if includedintheProject, thereal property on or inwhich such portion of such Project
issituated) shall exist and (ii) until such portion of such Projectissold or otherwisetransferredto apersonwho purchases
the same for the fair market value thereof at the time of such sale or transfer, such portion of such Project shall not be
used for sectarian religious instruction or as a place of religious worship or used in connection with any part of the
program of aschool or department of divinity of any religiousdenomination. Theinstrument containing such restriction
shall further provide that such restriction may be enforced at the instance of the Authority or the Attorney General of
the State, by a proceeding in any court of competent jurisdiction, by injunction, mandamus or by other appropriate
remedy. Theinstrument containing suchrestriction shall also providethat if at any timethereafter, inthe opinion of Bond
Counsel, thethen applicablelaw would permit such portion of aProject, or thereal property on or inwhich such portion
issituated, to be used without regard to the above stated restriction, then said restriction shall be without any force or
effect. For the purposes of this heading an involuntary transfer or disposition of a Project or a portion thereof, upon
foreclosure or otherwise, shall be considered a sale for the fair market value thereof.

(Sections20and 21)

Covenant as to Insurance

The University shall procure and maintain, or cause to be procured and maintained, to the extent reasonably
obtainable, from responsibleinsurers, insurance of the type and in the amounts customarily maintained by institutions
for higher education providing programssubstantially similar tothose of theUniversity. TheUniversity isnot prohibited
by the Loan Agreement from self-insuring against any risk. In the event the University failsto provide such insurance,
the Authority may elect at any time thereafter to procure and maintain the insurance at the expense of the University.

(Section23)

Financial Information

The University shall also furnish to the Authority and the Trustee within sixty (60) days after the end of each of the
first three (3) quarters of the University’s fiscal year a statement certified by an Authorized Officer of the University,
and within one hundred twenty (120) days after the end of such fiscal year an audited statement, setting forth the
Available Assetsand General Liabilitiesof theUniversity at theend of suchfiscal year. TheUniversity shall alsofurnish
to the Authority and the Trustee as promptly as practicable after the end of each fiscal quarter, but not later than thirty
(30) days thereafter, a certified statement by an Authorized Officer of the University, which shall state as of the end of
suchfiscal quarter (i) themarket val ue of thebonds, notes, debenturesor other similar securitiesowned by theUniversity
which comply with the requirements of the Loan Agreement, (ii) the outstanding principal amount of Short Term Debt
calculated in accordance with the Loan Agreement, and (iii) whether the University isin compliance with the provisions
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of the Loan Agreement. At the request of an Authorized Officer of the Authority, the University shall submit
documentation supporting the conclusions and statements contained in any such certified statements.

(Section26)

Defaults and Remedies
As used in the Loan Agreement the term “Event of Default” shall mean:

(@) the University shall default in thetimely payment of any amount payable pursuant to the L oan Agreement or the
payment of any other amountsrequiredto bedelivered or paidin accordancewiththe L oan Agreement or the Resol ution,
and such default continues for a period in excess of ten (10) days;

(b) the University defaults in the due and punctual performance of any other covenant contained in the Loan
Agreement and such default continues for thirty (30) days after written notice requiring the same to be remedied shall
havebeengivenby theAuthority or the Trustee, providedthat, if inthedetermination of the Authority such default cannot
be corrected within such thirty (30) day period but can be corrected by appropriate action, it shall not constitutean Event
of Default if correctiveactionisinstituted by the University within such period and isdiligently pursued until the default
is corrected;

(c) asaresult of any default in payment or performance required of the University or any Event of Default under the
Loan Agreement, whether or not declared, continuing or cured, the Authority shall be in default in the payment or
performance of any of its obligations under the Resolution or an “ Event of Default” (as defined in the Resolution) shall
have been declared under the Resol ution so long as such default or Event of Default shall remain uncured or the Trustee
or Holders of the Bonds shall be seeking the enforcement of any remedy under the Resolution as aresult thereof;

(d) the University shall (i) be generally not paying its debts as they become due, (ii) file, or consent by answer or
otherwiseto thefiling against it of, a petition under the United States Bankruptcy Code or under any other bankruptcy
or insolvency law of any jurisdiction, (iii) make ageneral assignment for the benefit of itsgeneral creditors, (iv) consent
to the appointment of acustodian, receiver, trustee or other officer with similar powersof itself or of any substantial part
of its property, (v) be adjudicated insolvent or be liquidated, or (vi) take corporate action for the purpose of any of the
foregoing;

(e) acourt or governmental authority of competent jurisdiction shall enter an order appointing, without consent by
the University, acustodian, receiver, trustee or other officer with similar powerswith respect to it or with respect to any
substantial part of its property, or an order for relief shall be entered in any case or proceeding for liquidation or
reorganization or otherwise to take advantage of any bankruptcy or insolvency law of any jurisdiction, or ordering the
dissolution, winding-up or liquidation of the University, or any petition for any such relief shall be filed against the
University and such petition shall not be dismissed within ninety (90) days,

(f) the charter of the University shall be suspended or revoked,;

(g) apetition shall befiled by the University with the Board of Regents of the State or other governmental authority
having jurisdiction over the University to dissolve the University;

(h) an order of dissolution of the University shall be made by the Board of Regents of the State, the legislature of
the State of New Y ork or other governmental authority having jurisdiction over the University which order shall remain
undismissed or unstayed for an aggregate of thirty (30) days;

(i) apetition shall be filed with a court having jurisdiction for an order directing the sale, disposition or distribution
of all or substantially all of the property bel onging to the University which petition shall remain undismissed or unstayed
for an aggregate of ninety (90) days;

() an order of a court having jurisdiction shall be made directing the sale, disposition or distribution of all or
substantially all of the property belonging to the University, which order shall remain undismissed or unstayed for the
earlier of (x) three (3) businessdays prior to the date provided for in such order for such sale, disposition or distribution
or (y) an aggregate of thirty (30) days from the date such order shall have been entered; or

(k) afinal judgment for the payment of money which in the reasonable judgment of the Authority will materially
adversely affect therightsof theHol dersof the Bondsshall berendered against the University and at any timeafter thirty
(30) days from the entry thereof, (i) such judgment shall not have been discharged, or (ii) the University shall not have
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taken and be diligently prosecuting an appeal therefrom or from the order, decree or process upon which or pursuant to
whichsuchjudgment shall have been granted or entered, and shall not have caused, withinthirty (30) days, theexecution
of or levy under such judgment, order, decree or process or the enforcement thereof to have been stayed pending
determination of such appeal.

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default the Authority may take any one or more of the following actions:
(@) declare all sums payable by the University under the Loan Agreement immediately due and payable;

(b) directtheTrusteetowithhold any and all payments, advancesand reimbursementsfrom the proceedsof Bonds
or any Construction Fund or otherwise to which the University may otherwise be entitled under the Loan Agreement
and inthe Authority’s sole discretion apply any such proceeds or moneys for such purposes as are authorized by the
Resolution;

(¢) withhold any or al further performance under the Loan Agreement;

(d) maintain an action against the University under the Loan Agreement to recover any sums payable by the
University or to require its compliance with the terms of the Loan Agreement;

(e) to the extent permitted by law, (i) enter upon a Project and complete the construction of any Project in
accordance with the plans and specifications with such changes therein as the Authority may deem appropriate and
employ watchmen to protect the Projects, all at therisk, cost and expense of the University, consent to such entry being
given by the University by the Loan Agreement, (ii) at any time discontinue any work commenced in respect of the
construction of any Project or change any course of action undertaken by the University and not be bound by any
limitations or requirements of time whether set forth in the Loan Agreement or otherwise, (iii) assume any construction
contract made by the University in any way relating to the construction of any Project and take over and use all or any
part of the labor, materias, supplies and equipment contracted for by the University, whether or not previously
incorporated intothe construction of such Project, and (iv) in connectionwith the construction of any Project undertaken
by the Authority pursuant to the provisionsof this paragraph (e), (x) engage builders, contractors, architects, engineers
and others for the purpose of furnishing labor, materials and equipment in connection with the construction of such
Project, (y) pay, settle or compromiseall bills or claimswhich may become liens against a Project or against any moneys
of the Authority applicable to the construction of a Project, or which have been or may be incurred in any manner in
connection with completing the construction of a Project or for the discharge of liens, encumbrances or defectsin the
titleto aProject or against any moneys of the Authority applicableto the construction of aProject, and (z) takeor refrain
from taking such action under the Loan Agreement as the Authority may from time to time determine. The University
shall beliable to the Authority for all sums paid or incurred for construction of any Project whether the same shall be
paid orincurred pursuant to theprovisionsof thisparagraph (€) or otherwise, and all paymentsmadeor liabilitiesincurred
by the Authority under theL oan Agreement of any kind whatsoever shall bepaid by theUniversity tothe Authority upon
demand. For the purpose of exercising the rights granted by this subparagraph during the term of the L oan Agreement,
the University irrevocably constitutes and appoints the Authority its true and lawful attorney-in-fact to execute,
acknowledge and deliver any instruments and to do and perform any actsin the name and on behalf of the University;
and

(f) takeany action necessary to enable the Authority to realize on itsliens under the Loan Agreement or by law,
and any other action or proceeding permitted by the terms of the Loan Agreement or by law.

All rightsand remedies given or granted to the Authority in the L oan Agreement are cumulative, non-exclusiveand
in addition to any and all rightsand remediesthat the Authority may have or may be given by reason of any law, statute,
ordinance or otherwise, and no failure to exercise or delay in exercising any remedy shall effect a waiver of the
Authority’ s right to exercise such remedy thereafter.

At any time before the entry of afinal judgment or decreein any suit, action or proceeding instituted on account of
any Event of Default or before the compl etion of the enforcement of any other remedies under the L oan Agreement, the
Authority may annul any declaration made or action taken pursuant to the L oan Agreement and itsconseguencesif such
Eventsof Default shall be cured. No such annulment shall extend to or affect any subsequent default or impair any right
consequent thereto.

(Section29)
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SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE RESOLUTION

Thefollowing is abrief summary of certain provisions of the Resolution pertaining to the Bonds and the Project.
Such summary does not purport to be complete and referenceis made to the Resol ution for full and compl ete statements
of such and all provisions. Defined terms used herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in Appendix A.

Contract with Bondholders

With respect to the Bonds, in consideration of the purchase and acceptance of any and all of the Bonds authorized
to be issued under the Resolution by those who shall hold or own the same from time to time, the Resolution shall be
deemed to beand shall constitute acontract among the Authority, the Trustee and the Holdersfrom timeto time of such
Bonds, andthepledgeand assignment madeintheResol ution and thecovenantsand agreementsset forthto beperformed
by or on behalf of the Authority shall be for the equal and ratable benefit, protection and security of the Holders of any
and all of such Bonds, all of which, regardlessof thetimeor timesof their issue or maturity, shall be of equal rank without
preference, priority or distinction of any such Bonds, over any other thereof except asexpressly providedinor permitted
by the Resolution.

(Section 1.03)

Pledge Made by Resolution

The proceedsfrom the sal e of the Bonds, the Revenues and all funds and accounts, excluding the Arbitrage Rebate
Fund, established by the Resolution and any Series Resolution, are pledged to the Trustee as security for the payment
of the principal, Sinking Fund Installments, if any, and Redemption Price of and interest on the Bonds and as security
for the performance of any other obligation of the Authority under the Resolution and any Series Resolution, all in
accordance with the provisions of the Resolution and any Series Resolution. The pledge of the Revenues shall also be
for the benefit of each Facility Provider as security for the payment of any amounts payable to such Facility Provider
under the Resol ution; provided, however, that such pledgeshall, inall respects, be subject and subordinateto therights
and interest therein of the Bondholders. The pledgemadeby the Resolutionisvalid, binding and perfected fromthetime
when the pledge attaches and the proceeds from the sale of the Bonds, the Revenues and the funds and accounts
established by the Resolution (excluding the Arbitrage Rebate Fund) shall immediately be subject to the lien of such
pledge without any physical delivery thereof or further act, and the lien of such pledge shall be valid, binding and
perfected asagainst all partieshaving claimsof any kind intort, contract or otherwise against the Authority irrespective
of whether such parties have noticethereof. Noinstrument by which such pledgeiscreated nor any financing statement
need be recorded or filed. The Bonds shall be special obligations of the Authority payable solely from and secured by
a pledge of the proceeds from the sale of the Bonds, the Revenues and the funds and accounts established by the
Resolution (excluding the Arbitrage Rebate Fund), which pledge shall constitute afirst lien thereon.

(Section5.01)

Establishment of Funds and Accounts

The following funds and separate accounts within funds are established by the Resolution and shall be held and
maintained by the Trustee:

Construction Fund;
Debt Service Fund; and
Arbitrage Rebate Fund.

Accounts and subaccounts within each of the foregoing funds and accounts, in addition to the accounts and
subaccounts, if any, required to be established by the Resolution or by any Series Resolution, may be established from
time to time in accordance with any Series Resolution, any Bond Series Certificate or upon direction to the Trustee by
an Authorized Officer of the Authority for accounting purposesor any other purpose. All moneysat any time deposited
inany fund, account or subaccount created and pledged by the Resol ution, other than the Arbitrage Rebate Fund, or by
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any Series Resolution or required thereby to be created shall be held in trust for the benefit of the Holders of Bonds, but
shall nevertheless be disbursed, allocated and applied solely for the uses and purposes provided in the Resolution.

(Section5.02)

Application of Bond Proceeds and Allocation Thereof

Upon the receipt of the proceeds from the sale of a Series of Bonds, the Authority shall apply such proceeds as
specified in the Resolution and in the Series Resolution authorizing such Series or the Bond Series Certificate relating
to such Series.

Accrued interest, if any, received upon the delivery of a Seriesof Bonds shall be deposited in the Interest Account
unlessall or any portion of such amount isto be otherwise applied as specified in the Series Resol ution authorizing such
Series or the Bond Series Certificate relating to such Series.

(Section 5.03)

Construction Funds

Assoon as practicable after the delivery of each Series of Bonds, there shall be deposited inthe Construction Fund
or Funds established for the Project or Projectsin connection with which such Series of Bonds was issued the amount
required to be deposited therein pursuant to the Series Resol ution authorizing the issuance of such Series or the Bond
Series Certificate relating to such Series. Except as otherwise provided in the Resolution and in any applicable Series
Resolution or Bond Series Certificate, moneys deposited in the Construction Fund shall be used only to pay the Costs
of Issuance and the Costs of the Project for which such fund was established.

Uponreceipt by the Trustee of acertificaterel ating to the compl etion of aProject, themoneys, if any, thenremaining
in the Construction Fund relating to such Project, after making provision in accordance with the direction of an
Authorized Officer of the Authority for the payment of any Costs of Issuance and Costs of the Projectsin connection
with such Project then unpaid, shall be paid or applied by the Trustee as follows and in the following order of priority:

First: Upon the direction of an Authorized Officer of the Authority, to the Arbitrage Rebate Fund, the amount set
forth in such direction; and

Second: To the Debt Service Fund, to be applied in accordance with the Resolution, any balance remaining.
(Section5.04)

Deposit and Allocation of Revenues

The Revenuesand any other moneys, which by any of the provisionsof the Loan Agreement arerequired to bepaid
tothe Trustee, shall upon receipt by the Trustee be deposited or paid to the Trustee asfollowsin the following order of
priority:

First: Tothe Debt Service Fund (i) in the case of Revenues received during the period from the beginning of each
Bond Y ear until December 31 thereof, the amount, if any, necessary to make the amount in the Debt Service Fund equal
to (@) the interest on Outstanding Bonds payable on or prior to the next succeeding January 1, including the interest
estimated by the Authority to be payable on Variable Interest Rate Bonds on and prior to the next succeeding January
1, (b) the Sinking Fund Installments of Outstanding Option Bonds becoming due and payable on or prior to the next
succeeding January 1, and (c) the purchase price or Redemption Price of Outstanding Bonds theretofore contracted to
be purchased or called for redemption pursuant to the Resolution on or prior to the next succeeding January 1, plus
accrued interest thereon to the date of purchase or redemption; and (ii) in the case of Revenues received thereafter and
until the end of such Bond Y ear, the amount, if any, necessary to make the amount in the Debt Service Fund equal to
(a) theinterest on and the principal and Sinking Fund I nstallments of Outstanding Bonds becoming due and payableon
or prior tothe next succeeding July 1, including theinterest estimated by the Authority to be payableon Variable I nterest
Rate Bondson and prior to such July 1 and (b) the purchase price or Redemption Price of Outstanding Bondstheretofore
contracted to be purchased or called for redemption pursuant to the Resolution on or prior to the next succeeding July
1, plus accrued interest thereon to the date of purchase or redemption; and
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Second: To the Authority, unless otherwise paid, such amounts as are payable to the Authority for: (i) any
expendituresof the Authority for feesand expensesof auditing, and feesand expensesof the Trusteeand Paying A gents,
al as required by the Resolution, (ii) al other expenditures reasonably and necessarily incurred by the Authority in
connection with the financing of the Projects, including expensesincurred by the Authority to compel full and punctual
performance of all the provisions of the Loan Agreement in accordance with the terms thereof, and (iii) any fees of the
Authority; but only uponreceipt by the Trustee of acertificate signed by an Authorized Officer of the Authority, stating
in reasonabl e detail the amounts payable to the Authority pursuant to this paragraph Second.

The Trustee shall notify the Authority and the University promptly after making the payments required by
paragraphsFirst and Second of thissubdivision, of any balance of Revenuesthen remaining. After making thepayments
required by paragraphs First and Second of this subdivision, the balance, if any, of the Revenuesthen remaining shall,
uponthedirection of an Authorized Officer of the Authority, be paid by the Trusteeto the Construction Fund or the Debt
Service Fund, or paid to the University, in the respective amounts set forth in such direction. Any amounts paid to the
University shall be free and clear of any pledge, lien, encumbrance or security interest created by the Resolution or by
the Loan Agreement.

(Section 5.05)

Debt Service Fund

The Trustee shall on or before the Business Day preceding each interest payment date pay to itself and any other
Paying Agents out of the Debt Service Fund:

(a) theinterest due and payable on all Outstanding Bonds on such interest payment date;
(b) the principal amount due and payable on all Outstanding Bonds on such interest payment date; and

(c) the Sinking Fund Installments or other amounts related to a mandatory redemption, if any, due and payable on
all Outstanding Bonds on such interest payment date.

The amounts paid out pursuant to this subdivision shall beirrevocably pledged to and applied to such payments.

Notwithstandingtheprovisionsof thissubdivision, the Authority may, at any timesubsequent to July 1 of any Bond
Y ear but in no event less than forty-five (45) days prior to the succeeding date on which a Sinking Fund Installment is
scheduled to be due, direct the Trustee to purchase, with moneys on deposit in the Debt Service Fund, at apricenotin
excessof par plusinterest accrued and unpaidtothedateof such purchase, TermBondsto beredeemed from such Sinking
Fund Installment. Any Term Bond so purchased shall be canceled upon receipt thereof by the Trustee and evidence of
such cancellation shall be giventothe Authority. The principal amount of each Term Bond so cancel ed shall be credited
against the Sinking Fund Installment due on such date, provided that such Term Bond is canceled by the Trustee prior
to the date on which notice of redemption is given.

Notwithstanding the provisionsof thissubdivision, the University pursuant to the L oan Agreement may deliver, at
any time subsequent to July 1 of any Bond Y ear, but in no event less than forty-five (45) days prior to the succeeding
dateonwhichaSinking Fund I nstallment i s schedul ed to be due, to the Trustee for cancellation oneor more Term Bonds
of the Series and maturity to be so redeemed on such date from such Sinking Fund Installment. Any Term Bond so
delivered to the Trustee shall be canceled upon receipt thereof by the Trustee and evidence of such cancellation shall
be given to the Authority. The principal amount of each Term Bond so canceled shall be credited against the Sinking
Fund I nstallment due on such date; provided, however, that such Term Bond i s cancel ed by the Trustee prior to thedate
on which notice of redemption is given.

MoneysintheDebt Service Fundinexcessof theamount requiredto pay theprincipal of Outstanding Bondspayable
on or prior to the next succeeding July 1, the interest on Outstanding Bonds payable on the next succeeding interest
payment date and the purchase price or Redemption Price of Outstanding Bondstheretofore contracted to be purchased
or called for redemption, plus accrued interest thereon to the date of purchase or redemption, shall be retained therein
or applied by the Trustee in accordance with the direction of an Authorized Officer of the Authority to: (i) the purchase
of Outstanding Bondsof any Seriesat purchase pricesnot exceeding the Redemption Price applicableonthenext interest
payment date on which such Bonds are redeemabl e, plus accrued and unpaid interest to such date, at suchtimesandin
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such manner as an Authorized Officer of the Authority shall direct; (ii) to the redemption of Bonds as provided in the
Resolution, at the Redemption Prices specified in the Series Resolution authorizing the issuance of such Bonds or the
Bond Series Certificaterelating to such Bonds; or (iii) to the def easance of the Bondsin accordance with the Resol ution.

(Section 5.06)

Arbitrage Rebate Fund

The Trustee shall deposit to the Arbitrage Rebate Fund any moneys delivered to it by the University for deposit
therein and, notwithstanding any other provisions of the Resolution, shall transfer to the Arbitrage Rebate Fund, in
accordancewith the directions of an Authorized Officer of the Authority, moneys on deposit in any other funds held by
the Trustee under the Resol ution at such times and in such amounts as set forth in such directions.

Moneys on deposit in the Arbitrage Rebate Fund shall be applied by the Trustee in accordance with the direction
of an Authorized Officer of the Authority to make payments to the Department of the Treasury of the United States of
Americaat such times and in such amounts as the Authority shall determine to be required by the Code to be rebated
tothe Department of the Treasury of the United Statesof America. Moneyswhichan Authorized Officer of the Authority
determines to be in excess of the amount required to be so rebated shall be deposited to the Debt Service Fund in
accordance with the directions of such Authorized Officer.

If andtotheextent required by the Code, the Authority shall periodically, at suchtimesasmay berequiredto comply
with the Code, determine the amount of Excess Earnings with respect to each Series of Bonds and direct the Trusteeto
(i) transfer fromany other of thefundsand accountshel d by the Trusteeunder the Resol ution and deposittothe Arbitrage
Rebate Fund, all or aportion of the Excess Earningswith respect to each Seriesof Bondsand (ii) pay out of the Arbitrage
Rebate Fund to the Department of the Treasury of the United States of Americatheamount, if any, required by the Code
to berebated thereto.

(Section5.07)

Application of Moneys in Certain Funds for Retirement of Bonds

Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Resolution, if at any time the amounts held in the Debt Service Fund
aresufficient to pay the principal or Redemption Price of all Outstanding Bonds and theinterest accrued and unpaid and
to accrue on such Bondsto the next date on which all such Bonds are redeemabl e, or to make provision pursuant to the
Resolution for the payment of the Outstanding Bonds at the maturity or redemption dates thereof, the Trustee shall so
notify the Authority and the University. Upon receipt of such notice, the Authority may (i) direct the Trusteeto redeem
all such Outstanding Bonds, whereupon the Trustee shall proceed to redeem or provide for the redemption of such
Outstanding Bonds in the manner provided for redemption of such Bonds by the Resolution and by each Series
Resolution as provided in the Resolution, or (ii) give the Trustee irrevocable instructions in accordance with the
Resolution and make provision for the payment of the Outstanding Bonds at the maturity or redemption dates thereof
in accordance therewith.

(Section 5.08)

Investment of Funds

Moneys held under the Resolution by the Trustee, if permitted by law, shall, as nearly as may be practicable, be
invested by the Trustee, upon direction of the Authority given or confirmed in writing, signed by an Authorized Officer
of the Authority (which direction shall specify the amount thereof to be so invested), in Government Obligations or
Exempt Obligations; provided that each suchinvestment shall permit themoneysso deposited or investedto beavailable
for use at the times at which the Authority reasonably believes such moneys will be required for the purposes of the
Resolution.

Inlieu of theinvestments of moneysin obligations authorized in the preceding paragraph, the Trustee shall, to the
extent permitted by law, upon direction of the Authority given or confirmed in writing, signed by an Authorized Officer
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of the Authority, invest moneysin the Construction Fund in (i) interest-bearing time deposits, certificates of deposit or
other similar investment arrangements including, but not limited to, written repurchase agreements relating to
Government Obligations, withbanks, trust compani es, savingsbanks, savingsand | oan associations, or securitiesdeal ers
approved by the Authority theliquidation of whichissubject tothe Securities|nvestors Protection Corporation or other
similar corporation; (ii) Exempt Obligations or (iii) Investment Agreements; provided that (w) each such investment
shall permit the moneys so deposited or invested to be avail able for use at thetimesat, and in the amountsin, which the
Authority reasonably believes such moneyswill be required for the purposes of the Resolution, (X) all moneysin each
such interest-bearing time deposit, certificate of deposit or other similar investment arrangement shall be continuously
and fully secured by ownership of or asecurity interest in Government Obligations of amarket value determined by the
Trustee or its agent on adaily valuation equal to the amount deposited or invested including interest accrued thereon,
(y) the obligations securing such interest-bearing time deposit or certificate of deposit or which are the subject of such
other similar investment arrangement shall be deposited with and held by the Trustee or an agent of the Trustee approved
by an Authorized Officer of the Authority, and (z) the Government Obligations securing such time deposit or certificate
of deposit or which are the subject of such other similar investment arrangement shall be free and clear of claims of any
other person.

Obligations purchased or other investments made as an investment of moneysin any fund or account held by the
Trustee under the provisions of the Resolution shall be deemed at all timesto be apart of such fund or account and the
incomeor interest earned, profitsrealized or losses suffered by afund or account due to the investment thereof shall be
retained in, credited or charged, as the case may be, to such fund or account.

In computing the amount in any fund or account held by the Trustee under the provisions of the Resolution,
obligations purchased as an investment of moneys therein or held therein shall be valued at par or the market value
thereof, plus accrued interest, whichever is lower.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Resolution, the Authority, inits discretion, may direct the Trustee
to, and the Trustee upon receipt of such direction shall, sell, present for redemption or exchange any investment held
by the Trustee pursuant to the Resol ution and the proceeds thereof may be reinvested as provided in the Resolution.
Except as otherwise provided in the Resolution, the Trustee shall sell at the best price obtainable, or present for
redemption or exchange, any investment held by it pursuant to the Resolution whenever it shall be necessary in order
to providemoneystomeet any payment or transfer fromthefund or accountinwhichsuchinvestmentisheld. The Trustee
shall advise the Authority and the University in writing, on or before the fifteenth (15th) day of each calendar month,
of the amounts required to be on deposit in each fund and account under the Resolution and of the details of all
investments held for the credit of each fund and account inits custody under the provisions of the Resol ution as of the
end of the preceding monthand astowhether suchinvestmentscomply withtheprovisionsof theResol ution. Thedetails
of such investments shall include the par value, if any, the cost and the current market value of such investments as of
the end of the preceding month. The Trustee shall also describe all withdrawals, substitutions and other transactions
occurring in each such fund and account in the previous month.

(Section6.02)

Refunding Bonds and Additional Obligations

All or any portion of one or more Series of Refunding Bonds may be authenticated and delivered upon original
issuanceto refund all Outstanding Bonds, one or more Seriesof Outstanding Bonds, aportion of aSeriesof Outstanding
Bonds or a portion of a maturity of a Series of Outstanding Bonds. The Authority may issue Refunding Bondsin an
aggregate principal amount sufficient, together with other moneys availabletherefor, to accomplish such refunding and
to make such depositsrequired by the provisions of the Resol ution and of the Series Resol ution authorizing such Series
of Refunding Bonds or the Bond Series Certificate relating to such Series of Refunding Bonds.

The proceeds, including accrued interest, of Refunding Bonds shall be applied simultaneously with the delivery of
such Refunding Bondsinthe manner provided in or asdetermined in accordance with the Series Resol ution authorizing
such Refunding Bonds or the Bond Series Certificate relating to such Series of Refunding Bonds.
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The Authority reserves the right to issue bonds, notes or any other obligations or otherwise incur indebtedness
pursuant to other and separate resolutions or agreements of the Authority, so long as such bonds, notes or other
obligations are not, or such other indebtednessis not, except as provided in the Resolution, entitled to acharge or lien
or right prior or equal to the charge or lien created by the Resol ution, or prior or equal to therights of the Authority and
Holders of Bonds as provided by the Resolution.

(Sections2.04 and 2.05)

Creation of Liens

Except as permitted by the Resolution, the Authority shall not create or cause to be created any lien or charge prior
or equal to that of the Bonds on the proceeds from the sale of the Bonds, the Revenues or the funds and accounts
established by the Resolution or by any Series Resol ution which are pledged by the Resol ution; provided, however, that
nothing contained in the Resolution shall prevent the Authority from (i) issuing bonds, notes or other obligations or
otherwiseincurredindebtednessunder another and separateresol ution or agreement solong asthechargeor liencreated
thereby is not prior or equal to the charge or lien created by the Resolution, and (ii) incurring obligations with respect
to a Credit Facility or aLiquidity Facility which are secured by alien upon and pledge of the Revenues which lien and
pledgeis of equal priority with the lien created and the pledge made by the Resolution.

(Section 7.06)

Tax Exemption; Rebates

I norder to maintain the exclusion from grossincomefor purposesof federal incometaxation of interest onthe Bonds
of such Series as the Authority may designate, the Authority shall comply with the provisions of the Code applicable
to the Bonds of such Series, including without limitation the provisions of the Code relating to the computation of the
yield oninvestments of the Gross Proceeds of the Bonds of such Series, reporting of earnings on the Gross Proceeds of
the Bonds of such Series, and rebates of Excess Earnings to the Department of the Treasury of the United States of
America. In furtherance of the foregoing, the Authority shall comply with the provisions of the Tax Certificate with
respect to such Series of Bonds.

Inconnectionwiththeforegoing, the Authority shall not takeany actionor fail totakeany action, whichwould cause
the Bonds of such Seriesto be “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of Section 148(a) of the Code; nor shall any part
of the proceeds of the Bonds of such Series or any other funds of the Authority be used directly or indirectly to acquire
any securities or obligations the acquisition of which would cause any such Bond to be an “arbitrage bond” within the
meaning of Section 148(a) of the Code.

I n connection with the foregoing, the Authority shall make any and all paymentsrequired to be made to the United
States Department of the Treasury in connection with the Bonds of such Series pursuant to Section 148(f) of the Code
from amounts on deposit in the Arbitrage Rebate Fund and available therefor.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Resolution to the contrary, the Authority’ sfailure to comply with the
provisions of the Code applicableto the Bonds of a Series shall not entitle the Holders of Bonds of any other Series, or
the Trustee acting on their behalf, to exercise any right or remedy provided to Bondhol ders under the Resol ution based
upon the Authority’ s failure to comply with the provisions of this subdivision or of the Code.

(Section7.13)

Event of Default
Each of the following constitutes an “event of default” under the Resolution and each Series Resolution if:

(a) Payment of the principal, Sinking Fund Installment, if any, or Redemption Price of any Bond shall not be made
when the same shall become due and payable, either at maturity or by proceedings for redemption or otherwise; or

(b) Payment of an installment of interest on any Bond shall not be made when the same shall become due and
payable; or
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(c) The Authority shall default in the due and punctual performance of the rebate covenants contained in the
Resolution, and, asaresult thereof, theinterest onthe Bonds of aSeries shall nolonger be excludablefrom grossincome
under Section 103 of the Code; or

(d) The Authority shall default in the due and punctual performance of any other of the covenants, conditions,
agreements and provisions contained in the Resolution or in the Bonds or in any Series Resolution on the part of the
Authority to be performed and such default shall continuefor thirty (30) daysafter written notice specifying such default
and requiring same to be remedied shall have been given to the Authority by the Trustee, which may give such notice
initsdiscretionand shall give such noticeat thewritten request of the Holdersof not lessthan twenty-five percent (25%)
in principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds, unless, if such defaultisnot capabl e of being cured withinthirty (30) days,
the Authority hascommencedto cure such default within said thirty (30) daysand diligently prosecutesthe curethereof;
or

(e) An “Event of Default”, as defined in the Loan Agreement, arising out of or resulting from the failure of the
University to comply with the requirements of the Loan Agreement shall have occurred and is continuing and all sums
payableby the University under theL oan Agreement shall have been declared to beimmediately due and payable, which
declaration shall not have been annulled.

(Section11.02)

Acceleration of Maturity

Upon the happening and continuance of any event of default (other than under paragraph (c) under the heading
“Event of Default” above), then and in every such casethe Trustee may, and upon the written request of the Hol ders of
not lessthan twenty-five percent (25%) in principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds shall, by anoticeinwritingto the
Authority, declarethe principal of and interest on all of the Outstanding Bondsto be due and payable. At the expiration
of thirty (30) days from the giving of notice of such declaration, such principal and interest shall become and be
immediately due and payable, anything in the Resolution or in the Bonds or any Series Resolution to the contrary
notwithstanding. At any time after the principal of the Bonds shall have been so declared to be due and payable, and
before the entry of final judgment or decree in any suit, action or proceeding instituted on account of such default, or
before the completion of the enforcement of any other remedy under the Resolution, the Trustee may with the written
consent of the Holders of not lessthan twenty-five percent (25%) in principal amount of the Bonds not then due by their
terms and then Outstanding and by written notice to the Authority, annul such declaration and its consequencesif: (i)
moneys shall have accumulated in the Debt Service Fund sufficient to pay all arrears of interest, if any, upon all of the
Outstanding Bonds (except the interest accrued on such Bonds since the last interest payment date); (ii) moneys shall
have accumul ated and be avail abl e sufficient to pay the charges, compensation, expenses, disbursements, advancesand
liabilitiesof the Trusteeand any Paying Agent; (iii) all other amountsthen payableby the Authority under the Resolution
and under each Series Resol ution shall have been paid or asum sufficient to pay the same shall have been deposited with
the Trustee; and (iv) every other default known to the Trustee in the observance or performance of any covenant,
condition or agreement contained in the Resolution (other than adefault in the payment of the principal of such Bonds
then due only because of a declaration under this Section) or in the Bonds or any Series Resolution shall have been
remedied to the satisfaction of the Trustee. No such annulment shall extend to or affect any subsequent default or impair
any right consequent thereon.

(Section11.03)

Enforcement of Remedies

Upon the happening and continuance of any event of default, then andinevery such case, the Trusteemay proceed,
and upon the written request of the Holders of not less than twenty-five percent (25%) in principal amount of the
Outstanding Bonds or, in the case of the happening and continuance of an Event of Default described in subparagraph
(c) under the heading "Event of Default" above, upon the written request of the Holders of not less than twenty-five
percent (25%) in principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds of the Series affected thereby, shall proceed (subject to the
provisionsof the Resol ution), to protect and enforceitsrights and therights of the Hol ders of the Bonds under thelaws
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of the State or under the Resol ution or under any SeriesResol ution by such suits, actionsor special proceedingsinequity
or at law, either for the specific performance of any covenant contained under the Resolution and under any Series
Resolution or in aid or execution of any power therein granted, or for an accounting against the Authority as if the
Authority were the trustee of an express trust, or for the enforcement of any proper legal or equitable remedy as the
Trustee shall deem most effectual to protect and enforce such rights.

Intheenforcement of any remedy under the Resol utionand under each SeriesResol utionthe Trusteeshall beentitled
to suefor, enforce payment of, and receive any and all amounts then, or during any default becoming, and at any time
remaining, due from the Authority for principal or interest or otherwise under any of the provisions of the Resolution
or of any SeriesResolution or of theBonds, withinterest on overdue paymentsof theprincipal of orinterest ontheBonds
at therate or rates of interest specified in such Bonds, together with any and all costs and expenses of collection and of
all proceedings under the Resolution and under any Series Resolution and under such Bonds, without prejudice to any
other right or remedy of the Trustee or of the Holders of such Bonds, and to recover and enforce judgment or decree
against the Authority but solely as provided in the Resolution and in any Series Resol ution and in such Bonds, for any
portion of such amounts remaining unpaid, with interest, costs and expenses, and to collect in any manner provided by
law, the moneys adjudged or decreed to be payable.

(Section11.04)

Priority of Payments After Default

If at any time the moneys held by the Trustee under the Resol ution and under each Series Resol ution shall not be
sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds as the same become due and payable (either by their terms
or by acceleration of maturity under the provisions of the Resolution), such moneys together with any moneys then
available or thereafter becoming available for such purpose, whether through exercise of the remedies provided for in
the Resolution or otherwise, shall be applied (after first depositing in the Arbitrage Rebate Fund all amounts to be
deposited therein and then paying all amounts owing to the Trustee under the Resolution) as follows:

(a) Unless the principal of all the Bonds shall have become due and payable, all such moneys shall be applied:

First: Tothe payment tothe personsentitledthereto of all installmentsof interest thendue, intheorder of thematurity
of theinstallments of such interest, and, if the amount available shall not be sufficient to pay in full any installment, then
to the payment ratabl e, according to the amounts due on such installment, to the persons entitled thereto, without any
discrimination or preference;

Second: To the payment to the persons entitled thereto of the unpaid principal, Sinking Fund Installments or
Redemption Price of any of the Bonds which shall have become due whether at maturity or by call for redemption, in
theorder of their duedates, and, if theamount available shall not be sufficient to pay in full Bonds dueon any date, then
tothe payment ratably, according to the amount of principal, Sinking Fund I nstallments or Redemption Pricedueon such
date, to the persons entitled thereto, without any discrimination or preference.

(b) If the principal of all of the Bonds shall have become or been declared due and payable, all such money shall
beappliedtothe payment of theprincipal andinterest then dueand unpaid uponthebonds, without preferenceor priority
of principal over interest or of interest over principal, or of any installment of interest over any other installment of
interest, or of any Bond over any other Bond, ratably, accordingtotheamountsduerespectively for principal andinterest,
tothepersonsentitled thereto, without any discrimination or preference except asto thedifferenceintherespectiverates
of interest specified in the Bonds.

The provisions of this subdivision arein all respects subject to the provisions of the Resolution.

Whenever moneysaretobeapplied by the Trusteepursuant totheprovisionsof thissubdivision, suchmoneysshall
beapplied by the Trustee at suchtimes, and fromtimetotime, asthe Trusteeinitssolediscretion shall determine, having
due regard to the amount of such moneys available for application and the likelihood of additional moneys becoming
available for such application in the future. The setting aside of such moneysin trust for the proper purpose shall
constitute proper application by the Trustee, and the Trustee shall incur no liability whatsoever to the Authority, to any
Bondholder or to any other personfor any delay in applying any suchmoneyssolong asthe Trusteeactswith reasonable
diligence, having due regard to the circumstances, and ultimately appliesthe same in accordance with such provisions
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of the Resolution as may be applicable at the time of application by the Trustee. Whenever the Trustee shall exercise
suchdiscretioninapplyingsuchmoneys, it shall fix thedate (which shall beonaninterest payment dateunl essthe Trustee
shall deem another date more suitable) upon which such application isto be made, and upon such date interest on the
amounts of principal to be paid on such date shall ceaseto accrue. The Trustee shall give such notice asit may deem
appropriate of thefixing of any such date. The Trustee shall not be required to make payment to the Hol der of any Bond
unless such Bond shall be presented to the Trustee for appropriate endorsement.

(Section11.05)

Termination of Proceedings

In caseany proceedingstaken by the Trustee on account of any default shall havebeen discontinued or abandoned
for any reason or shall have been determined adversely to the Trustee, then and in every such case the Authority, the
Trustee and the Bondhol ders shall be restored to their former positions and rights under the Resolution, respectively,
and all rights, remedies, powers and duties of the Trustee shall continue asthough no such proceeding had been taken.

(Section 11.06)

Bondholders Direction of Proceedings

Anything in the Resolution to the contrary notwithstanding, the Holders of a majority in principal amount of the
Outstanding Bonds shall have the right by an instrument in writing executed and delivered to the Trustee, to direct the
method and place of conducting all remedial proceedingsto betaken by the Trustee under the Resol ution and under each
Series Resolution, provided such direction shall not be otherwise than in accordance with law or the provisions of the
Resol utionand of each SeriesResol utionandthe Trusteeshall havetherightto declinetofollow any suchdirectionwhich
in the opinion of the Trustee would be unjustly prejudicial to Bondholders not parties to such direction.

(Section11.07)

Limitation of Rights of Individual Bondholders

No Holder of any of the Bonds shall have any right to institute any suit, action or proceeding in equity or at law for
the execution of any trust under the Resolution, or for any other remedy under the Resolution unless such Holder
previously shall have given to the Trustee written notice of the event of default on account of which such suit, action
or proceeding is to be instituted, and unless also the Holders of not less than twenty-five percent (25%) in principal
amount of the Outstanding Bonds, or, in the case of an event of default under paragraph (c) under the heading ("Event
of Default" above, the Hol ders of not lessthan twenty-five percent (25%) in principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds
of the Series affected thereby, shall have made written request to the Trustee after the right to exercise such powers or
right of action, asthecasemay be, shall haveaccrued, and shall haveaffordedthe Trusteeareasonabl e opportunity either
to proceed to exercise the powers granted by the Resol ution or to institute such action, suit or proceeding initsor their
name, and unless, al so, there shall have been offered to the Trustee reasonabl e security and indemnity against the costs,
expenses, and liabilitiesto beincurred therein or thereby, and the Trustee shall haverefused or neglected to comply with
such request within areasonabl e time. Such natification, request and offer of indemnity are by the Resolution declared
inevery such case, at the option of the Trustee, to be conditions precedent to the execution of the powers and trusts of
the Resolution or for any other remedy under the Resol ution. It isunderstood and intended that no one or more Holders
of theBondssecured by the Resol ution shall haveany rightinany manner whatever by hisor their actionto affect, disturb
or prejudice the security of the Resolution or to enforce any right under the Resol ution except in the manner provided
in the Resolution, and that all proceedings at law or in equity shall be instituted and maintained for the benefit of all
Holdersof the Outstanding Bonds. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Resol ution, the Hol der of any Bond shall
have the right which is absolute and unconditional to receive payment of the principal of (and premium, if any) and
interest on such Bond on the respective stated maturities expressed in such Bond (or, in the case of redemption, on the
redemption date) and to institute suit for the enforcement of any such payment, and such right shall not be impaired
without the consent of such Holder.

(Section11.08)
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Modification and Amendment Without Consent

The Authority may adopt at any time or from time to time Series Resol utions or Supplemental Resolutions for any
one or more of the following purposes, and any such Series Resolution or Supplemental Resolution shall become
effectivein accordancewithitstermsupon thefiling with the Trustee of acopy thereof certified by an Authorized Officer
of the Authority:

(a) To providefor theissuance of a Series of Bonds pursuant to the provisions of the Resolution and to prescribe
the terms and conditions pursuant to which such Bonds may be issued, paid or redeemed,;

(b) To add additional covenants and agreements of the Authority for the purpose of further securing the payment
of theBonds, provided such additional covenantsand agreementsarenot contrary to or inconsistent with the covenants
and agreements of the Authority contained in the Resolution;

(c) To prescribe further limitations and restrictions upon the i ssuance of Bonds and the incurring of indebtedness
by the Authority which are not contrary to or inconsistent with the limitations and restrictions thereon theretofore in
effect;

(d) To surrender any right, power or privilege reserved to or conferred upon the Authority by the terms of the
Resolution, provided that the surrender of such right, power or privilege is not contrary to or inconsistent with the
covenants and agreements of the Authority contained in the Resol ution;

(e) Toconfirm, asfurther assurance, any pledge under the Resol ution, and the subjectiontoany lien, claim or pledge
created or to becreated by the provisions of the Resol ution, of the Revenuesor of any other moneys, securitiesor funds;

(f) To modify any of the provisions of the Resolution or of any previously adopted Series Resolution in any other
respects, provided that such modificationsshall not beeffective until after all Bondsof any Seriesof Bonds Outstanding
as of the date of adoption of such Supplemental Resolution or Series Resolution shall cease to be Outstanding, and all
Bondsissued under such resol utionsshall containaspecificreferencetothemodificati onscontai nedin such subsequent
Resol utions; or

(g) With the consent of the Trustee, to cure any ambiguity or defect or inconsistent provision in the Resolution or
toinsert such provisionsclarifying mattersor questionsarising under the Resolution asare necessary or desirableinthe
event any such modificationsarenot contrary to or inconsistent with the Resol ution astheretof orein effect, or to modify
any of the provisionsin the Resolution or in any previously adopted Series Resolution in any other respect, provided
that such modification shall not adversely affect the interests of the Holders in any material respect.

(Section9.01)

Supplemental Resolutions Effective With Consent of Bondholders

The provisions of the Resolution may also be modified or amended at any time or from time to time by a
Supplemental Resolution, subject to the consent of Bondhol dersin accordancewith and subject to the provisionsof the
Resol ution, such Supplemental Resol utionto becomeeffectiveuponthefilingwiththe Trustee of acopy thereof certified
by an Authorized Officer of the Authority.

(Section9.02)

Powers of Amendment

Any modification or amendment of the Resolution and of the rights and obligations of the Authority and of the
Holders of the Bonds under the Resolution, in any particular, may be made by a Supplemental Resolution, with the
written consent given as provided in the Resolution, (i) of the Holders of at least amajority in principal amount of the
Bonds Outstanding at the time such consent is given, or (ii) in case less than all of the several Series of Bonds then
Outstanding are affected by the modification or amendment, of Holders of at |east amajority in principal amount of the
Bonds of each Series so affected and Outstanding at the time such consent is given, or (iii) in case the modification or
amendment changesthe amount or date of any Sinking Fund Installment, of the Holdersof at |east amajority in principal
amount of the Bonds of the particular Series, maturity and interest rate entitled to such Sinking Fund Installment
Outstanding at the time such consent is given; provided, however, that if such modification or amendment will, by its
terms, not take effect so long as any Bonds of any specified like Series and maturity remain Outstanding, the consent
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of theHoldersof such Bondsshall not berequired and such Bondsshal | not bedeemed to be Outstanding for the purpose
of any cal culation of Outstanding Bondsunder the Resol ution. No such modification or anendment may permit achange
in the terms of redemption or maturity of the principal of any Outstanding Bond or of any installment of interest thereon
or areductionintheprincipal amount or the Redemption Pricethereof or intherateof interest thereon without the consent
of the Holder of such Bond, or shall reduce the percentages or otherwise affect the classes of Bondsthe consent of the
Holders of which isrequired to effect any such modification or amendment. For the purposes of this Section, a Series
shall be deemed to be affected by a modification or amendment of the Resolution if the same adversely affects or
diminishestherights of the Holders of Bonds of such Series. The Trustee may in itsdiscretion determine whether or not
in accordance with the foregoing provisions Bonds of any particular Series or maturity would be affected by any
modification or amendment of the Resolution and any such determination shall be binding and conclusive on the
Authority and all Holders of Bonds. The Trustee may receive an opinion of counsel, including an opinion of Bond
Counsel, as conclusive evidence as to whether Bonds of any particular Series or maturity would be so affected by any
such modification or anendment of the Resolution.

(Section 10.01)

Consent of Bondholders

The Authority may at any time adopt a Supplemental Resolution making a modification or amendment permitted
by the provisionsof the Resol ution to take effect when and as provided in the Resol ution. A copy of such Supplemental
Resolution (or brief summary thereof or reference thereto in form approved by the Trustee) together with arequest the
Holders of Bondsfor their consent thereto in form satisfactory to the Trusteeis required promptly after adoption to be
mailed by the Authority to the Holders of Bonds and be published at least once aweek for two (2) successive weeks
(but failure to mail such copy and request will not affect the validity of the Supplemental Resolution when consented
to as provided in the Resolution ). Such Supplemental Resolution shall not be effective unless and until (i) there shall
been filed withthe Trustee (a) the written consents of Holders of the percentages of Outstanding Bonds specified inthe
Resolution and (b) an opinion of Bond Counsel stating that such Supplemental Resolution has been duly and lawfully
adopted and filed by the Authority in accordance with the provisions of the Resolution, is authorized or permitted by
theResol ution, andisvalid and binding upon the Authority and enforceablein accordancewithitsterms, and (ii) anotice
shall have been published as provided in the Resolution. Each such consent shall be effective only if accompanied by
proof of the holding or owning at the date of such consent, of the Bonds with respect to which such consent is given,
which proof shall be such asis permitted by the Resolution. A certificate or certificates by the Trustee filed with the
Trustee that it has examined such proof and that such proof is sufficient in accordance with the Resolution shall be
conclusivethat the consents have been given by the Holders of the Bonds described in such certificate or certificates of
the Trustee. Any consent shall be binding upon the Holder of the Bonds giving such consent and, anything in the
Resol ution to the contrary notwithstanding, upon any subsequent Holder of such Bonds and of any Bondsissued in
exchangetherefor (whether or not such subsequent Holder thereof has notice thereof), unless such consent isrevoked
inwriting by the Holder of such Bonds giving such consent or a subsequent Holder thereof by filing with the Trustee,
prior to the time when the written statement of the Trustee provided for in the Resolution isfiled, such revocation and,
if such Bondsaretransferableby delivery, proof that such Bondsareheld by the signer of such revocationinthemanner
permitted by the Resolution. The fact that a consent has not been revoked may likewise be proved by a certificate of
the Trustee filed with the Trustee to the effect that no revocation thereof ison file with the Trustee. At any time after
Holdersof therequired percentagesof Bondsshall havefiled their consentsto the Supplemental Resolution, the Trustee
shall make and file with the Authority and the University a written statement that the Holders of such required
percentagesof Bondshavefiled such consents. Suchwritten statement shall beconclusivethat such consentshavebeen
so filed. At any time thereafter notice, stating in substance that the Supplemental Resolution (which may be referred
to asa Supplemental Resolution adopted by the Authority on astated date, acopy of whichison filewith the Trustee)
has been consented to by the Holders of the required percentages of Bonds and will be effective as provided in the
Resolution, shall be given to the Bondholders by the Authority by mailing such notice to the Bondholders (but failure
to mail such notice shall not prevent such Supplemental Resolution from becoming effective and binding as in the
Resolution provided) and by publishing the same at |east once not more than ninety (90) days after the Holders of the
required percentages of Bonds shall havefiled their consentsto the Supplemental Resolution and the written statement
of the Trustee hereinaboveprovidedfor isfiled. The Authority shall filewith the Trustee proof of the publication of such
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notice, and, if the same shall have been mailed to the Bondholders, of the mailing thereof. A transcript, consisting of the
papersrequired or permitted by the Resolution to be filed with the Trustee, shall be proof of the matterstherein stated.
Such Supplemental Resolution making such amendment or modification shall be deemed conclusively binding upon the
Authority, the Trustee, each Paying Agent and the Holdersof all Bondsat the expiration of thirty (30) daysafter thefiling
with the Trustee of the proof of thefirst publication of such last mentioned notice, except in the event of afinal decree
of acourt of competent jurisdiction setting aside such Supplemental Resolutioninalegal action or equitable proceeding
for such purpose commenced within such thirty (30) day period; provided, however, that the Authority, the Trustee and
any Paying Agent during such thirty (30) day period and any such further period during which any such action or
proceeding may be pending shall be entitled in their reasonabl e discretion to take such action, or to refrain from taking
such action, with respect to such Supplemental Resolution as they may deed expedient.

(Section 10.02)

M adifications by Unanimous Consent

Thetermsand provisionsof the Resol ution and therightsand obligations of the Authority and of theHoldersof the
Bonds under the Resolution may be modified or amended in any respect upon the adoption and filing with the Trustee
by the Authority of acopy of aSupplemental Resolution certified by an Authorized Officer and theconsent of theHol ders
of all of the Bonds then Outstanding, such consent to be given as provided in the Resolution, except that no notice to
Bondholders either by mailing or publication shall be required.

(Section 10.03)

Amendment of Loan Agreement

Except as otherwise provided in this subdivision, the Loan Agreement may be amended, changed, modified or
altered without the consent of the Holders of Outstanding Bonds or the Trustee.

The Loan Agreement may be amended, changed, modified or altered with the consent of the Trustee but without
the consent of the Holders of Outstanding Bonds to provide necessary changes in connection with the acquisition,
construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation and improvement, or otherwise providing, furnishing and equipping, of any
facilities constituting apart of the Projects or which may be added to the Projects or theissuance of Bonds, to cure any
ambiguity, or to correct or supplement any provisions contained in the Loan Agreement, which may be defective or
inconsistent with any other provisions contained in the Resolution or in the Loan Agreement.

The Loan Agreement may not be amended, changed, modified, altered or terminated so as to materially adversely
affect theinterest of the Holders of the Outstanding Bondswithout the prior written consent of (a) the Holdersof at | east
amajority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding, or (b) in caselessthan al of the several Series
of Bondsthen Outstanding are affected by the modifications or amendments, the Holders of not lessthan amagjority in
aggregate principal amount of the Bonds of each Series so affected then Outstanding; provided, however, that if such
modification or amendment will, by its terms, not take effect so long as any Bonds of any specified Series remain
Outstanding, the consent of the Holders of such Bonds shall not be required and such Bonds shall not be deemed to be
Outstandingfor the purposeof any cal cul ation of Outstanding Bondsunder thissubdivision; provided further, however,
that no such amendment, change, modification, alteration or termination will reduce the percentage of the aggregate
principal amount of Outstanding Bonds the consent of the Holders of which isarequirement for any such amendment,
change, modification, alteration or termination, or decrease the amount of any payment required to be made by the
University under the Loan Agreement that is to be deposited with the Trustee or extend the time of payment thereof.

Prior to execution by the Authority of any amendment, a copy thereof certified by an Authorized Officer of the
Authority shall be filed with the Trustee.

For the purposes of this subdivision, a Series shall be deemed to be adversely affected by an amendment, change,
modification or alteration of the Loan Agreement if the same adversely affects or diminishes the rights of the Holders
of the Bonds of such Series in any material respect. The Trustee may in its discretion determine whether or not, in
accordance with the foregoing provisions, Bonds of any particular Series would be adversely affected in any material
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respect by any amendment, change, modification or ateration, and any such determination shall be binding and
conclusive on the University, the Authority and all Holders of Bonds.

For the purposes of this subdivision, the purchasers of the Bonds of a Series, whether purchasing as underwriters,
for resale or otherwise, upon such purchase from the Authority, may consent to an amendment, change, modification,
termination or waiver permitted by thissubdivision with the same effect asaconsent given by the Holder of such Bonds.

For the purposes of thissubdivision, the Trustee shall be entitled to rely upon an opinion of counsel, which counsel
shall besatisfactory tothe Trustee, with respect to whether any amendment, change, modification or alteration adversely
affectsthe interests of any Holders of Bonds then Outstanding in any material respect.

(Section7.11)

Defeasance

If the Authority shall pay or cause to be paid to the Holders of the Bonds of a Series the principal, Sinking Fund
Installments, if any, or Redemption Price of and interest thereon, at the times and in the manner stipulated therein, inthe
Resol ution, andin the applicabl e Series Resol ution and Bond Series Certificate, then the pledge of the Revenuesor other
moneysand securities by the Resol ution pledged to such Seriesof Bondsand all other rightsgranted by the Resolution
to such Series of Bonds shall be discharged and satisfied. In such event, the Trustee shall, upon the request of the
Authority, execute and deliver such documents to evidence such discharge and satisfaction as may be reasonably
required by the Authority, and all moneys or other securities held by it pursuant to the Resolution and to the applicable
SeriesResol utionwhich arenot required for the payment or redemption of Bondsof such Seriesshall be paid or delivered
by the Trustee asfollows: first,to the Arbitrage Rebate Fund, the amount required to be deposited thereinin accordance
with the direction of an Authorized Officer of the Authority; second, to the Authority the amount certified by an
Authorized Officer of the Authority to be then due or past due pursuant to the Loan Agreement in payment of any fees
and expensesof the Authority or pursuant to any indemnity; and, then, thebal ancethereof totheUniversity. Themoneys
and securitiesso paid or delivered shall berel eased from any trust, pledge, lien, encumbrance or security interest created
by the Resolution or by the Loan Agreement.

Bonds for the payment or redemption of which moneys shall have been set aside and shall be held in trust by the
Trustee (through deposit by the Authority of funds for such payment or redemption or otherwise) at the maturity or
redemption date thereof shall be deemed to have been paid within the meaning and with the effect expressed in the
preceding paragraph. All Outstanding Bondsof any Seriesor any maturity withinaSeriesor aportion of amaturity within
aSeriesshall prior to the maturity or redemption date thereof be deemed to have been paid within the meaning and with
the effect expressed in the preceding paragraph if (a) in case any of such Bonds are to be redeemed on any date prior
to their maturity, the Authority shall have given to the Trustee, in form satisfactory to it, irrevocable instructions to
publish as provided in the Resolution notice of redemption on such date of such Bonds, (b) there shall have been
deposited with the Trustee either moneysin an amount which shall be sufficient, or Defeasance Securitiesthe principal
of and interest on which when due will provide moneys which, together with the moneys, if any, deposited with the
Trustee at the same time, shall be sufficient to pay when due the principal, Sinking Fund Installments, if any, or
Redemption Price, if applicable, and interest due and to become due on such Bonds on and prior to the redemption date
or maturity date thereof, asthe case may be, (c) the Trustee shall have received the written consent to such defeasance
of each Facility Provider which has given written notice to the Trustee and the Authority that amounts advanced under
aCredit Facility or Liquidity Facility issued by it or the interest thereon have not been repaid to such Facility Provider,
and (d) in the event such Bonds are not by their terms subject to redemption within the next succeeding sixty (60) days,
the Authority shall have given the Trustee in form satisfactory to it irrevocable instructions to publish, as soon as
practicable, atleast twice, at aninterval of not lessthan seven (7) daysbetween publications, inan Authorized Newspaper
anoticetotheHoldersof such Bondsthat thedeposit required by (b) abovehasbeen madewiththe Trusteeand that such
Bonds are deemed to have been paid in accordance with this subdivision and stating such maturity or redemption date
uponwhich moneysareto beavailablefor the payment of the principal, Sinking Fund Installments, if any, or Redemption
Price, if applicable, of and interest on such Bonds. The Authority shall givewritten noticeto the Trustee of its selection
of the maturity payment of which shall be madein accordance with this subdivision. The Trustee shall select the Bonds
of like Series and maturity payment of which shall be made in accordance with this subdivision in the manner provided
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in the Resolution. Neither the Defeasance Securities nor moneys deposited with the Trustee pursuant to the Resolution
nor principal or interest payments on any such Defeasance Securities shall be withdrawn or used for any purpose other
than, and shall be held in trust for, the payment of the principal, Sinking Fund Installments, if any, or Redemption Price,
if applicable, of andinterest on such Bonds; provided that any moneysreceived from such principal or interest payments
on such Defeasance Securities deposited with the Trustee, if not then needed for such purpose, shall, to the extent
practicable and subject to any applicabletax covenant, be reinvested in Defeasance Securities maturing at timesand in
amounts sufficient to pay when due the principal, Sinking Fund Installments, if any, or Redemption Price, if applicable,
of and interest to become due on such Bonds on and prior to such redemption date or maturity date thereof, asthe case
may be; and provided further, however, that moneys and Defeasance Securities may be withdrawn and used by the
Authority for any purpose upon (i) the simultaneous substitution therefor of either moneysin an amount which shall be
sufficient, or Defeasance Securitiesthe principal of and interest on which when duewill provide moneys which without
regard to reinvestment, together with the moneys, if any, held by or deposited with the Trustee at the same time, shall
be sufficient to pay when due the principal, Sinking Fund Installments, if any, or Redemption price, if applicable, and
interest due and to become due on such Bonds on and prior to the redemption date or maturity date thereof, asthe case
may be, and (ii) receipt by the Trustee of a letter or other written report of a firm of independent certified public
accountantsverifying the accuracy of the arithmetical computationswhich establish the adequacy of such moneysand
Defeasance Securitiesfor such purpose. Any income or interest earned by, or increment to, theinvestment of any such
moneysso deposited, shall, totheextent certified by the Trusteeto bein excessof theamountsrequired by the Resol ution
to pay the principal, Sinking Fund Installments, if any, Redemption Price, if applicable, of and interest on such Bonds,
asrealized, be paid by the Trustee asfollows: first, to the Arbitrage Rebate Fund, the amount required to be deposited
therein in accordance with the direction of an Authorized Officer of the Authority; second, to each Facility Provider the
Provider Payments which have not been repaid, pro rata, based upon the respective Provider Paymentsthen unpaid to
each Facility Provider; third, tothe Authority theamount certified by an Authorized Officer of the Authority to bethen
due or past due pursuant to the L oan Agreement for fees and expenses of the Authority or pursuant to any indemnity;
and, then, thebal ancethereof totheUniversity, and any suchmoneysso paid by the Trusteeshal | berel eased of any trust,
pledge, lien, encumbrance or security interest created by the Resolution or by the Loan Agreement.

AnythingintheResolutiontothecontrary notwithstanding, any moneysheld by the Trusteeintrust for thepayment
and discharge of any of the Bonds of a Series or the interest thereon which remain unclaimed for one (1) year after the
date when all of the Bonds of such Series have become due and payable either at their stated maturity dates or by call
for earlier redemption, if such moneyswereheld by the Trustee at such date, or for one (1) year after the date of deposit
of suchmoneysif deposited withthe Trusteeafter such datewhenall of theBondsof such Seriesbecomedueand payable,
shall, at the written request of the Authority, berepaid by the Trustee to the Authority asits absolute property and free
from trust, and the Trustee shall thereupon be released and discharged; provided, however, that, before being required
to make any such payment to the Authority, the Trustee may, at the expense of the Authority causeto be publishedin
an Authorized Newspaper anoticethat such moneysremain unclaimed and that, after adate named in such notice, which
dateshall benot lessthan thirty (30) nor morethan sixty (60) daysafter the date of publication of such notice, the balance
of such moneys then unclaimed shall be returned to the Authority.

(Section12.01)

Certain Provisions Reating to Capital Appreciation Bonds and Deferred Income Bonds

For the purposes of (i) receiving payment of the Redemption Priceif a Capital Appreciation Bond isredeemed prior
to maturity, (ii) receiving payment of a Capital Appreciation Bond if the principal of all Bondsis declared immediately
due and payable following an “event of default”, as provided in the Resolution or (iii) computing the principal amount
of Bonds held by the registered owner of a Capital Appreciation Bond in giving to the Authority, the University or the
Trusteeany notice, consent, request, or demand pursuant to the Resol ution for any purposewhatsoever, thethen current
Accreted Value of such Bond shall be deemed to beits principal amount. The amount payable at any time with respect
to the principal of and interest on any Capital Appreciation Bond shall not exceed the Accreted Value thereof at such
time. For purposes of receiving payment of the Redemption Price or principal of a Capital Appreciation Bond called for
redemption prior to maturity or the principal of which has been declared to be immediately due and payabl e pursuant
to the Resolution, the difference between the Accreted Value of such Bond when the Redemption Price or principal
thereof is due upon such redemption or declaration and the principal of such Bond on the date the Bonds of the Series
of which it isapart were first issued shall be deemed not to be accrued and unpaid interest thereon.
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For the purposes of (i) receiving payment of the Redemption Price if a Deferred Income Bond is redeemed, or (ii)
receiving payment of a Deferred Income Bond if the principal of al Bonds is declared immediately due and payable
following an “event of default,” as provided in the Resolution or (iii) computing the principal amount of Bonds held by
the registered owner of aDeferred Income Bond in giving to the Authority or the Trustee any notice, consent, request,
or demand pursuant totheResol utionfor any purposewhatsoever, thethen current A ppreciated V al ue of such Bond shall
be deemed to beits principal amount. The amount payable at any time prior to the Interest Commencement Date with
respect to the principal of and interest on any Deferred Income Bond shall not exceed the Appreciated Value thereof at
such time. For purposes of receiving payment prior to the Interest Commencement Date of the Redemption Price or
principal of aDeferred Income Bond called for redemption prior to maturity or the principal of which has been declared
to be immediately due and payable pursuant to the Resolution, the difference between the Appreciated Value of such
Bond when the Redemption Price or principal thereof is due upon such redemption or declaration and the principal of
such Bond on the date the Bonds were first issued shall be deemed not to be accrued and unpaid interest thereon.

(Section 14.06)
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PROPOSED FORM OF APPROVING OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL

Upon delivery of the Series 2004A Bonds, Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP, Bond Counsel to the Authority,
proposes to issue its legal opinion in substantially the following form:

HAWKINS DELAFIELD & WOOD LLP
67 WALL STREET
NEW YORK 10005

[Closing Date]

Dormitory Authority of the
State of New York

515 Broadway

Albany, New York 12207

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We have examined arecord of proceedings relating to the issuance of $45,000,000 aggregate principal amount of
University of Rochester Revenue Bonds, Series 2004A (the “ Series 2004A Bonds’) of the Dormitory Authority of the
State of New Y ork (the “ Authority”), abody corporate and politic constituting a public benefit corporation of the State
of New York created and existing under the Dormitory Authority Act, being Chapter 524 of the Laws of New Y ork of
1944, as amended (the “Act”).

The Series 2004A Bonds are issued under and pursuant to the Act, the University of Rochester Revenue Bond
Resolution adopted by the Authority on August 11, 1999 (the “Resolution”), and the University of Rochester Series
Resolution Authorizing Up To $45,000,000 Series 2004A Bonds adopted by the Authority on July 21, 2004 (the “ Series
2004A Resolution”). The Resolution and the Series 2004A Resolution are herein collectively referred to as the
“Resolutions.”

The Series 2004A Bonds are dated, mature, are payable, bear interest and are subject to redemption as provided in
the Resol utionsand the Bond Series Certificate (asdefined inthe Resol ution) of the Authority fixingthetermsand details
of the Series 2004A Bonds.

TheAuthority hasreservedtheright toissueadditional bondsonthetermsand conditionsandfor thepurposesstated
intheResol ution. Under and subject totheprovisionsof theResol ution, the Series2004A Bondsand all bondsheretofore
and hereafter issued under the Resolution rank and will rank equally as to security and payment.

We are of the opinion that:

1. TheAuthority hasbeenduly created andisvalidly existing under the Act and hastheright, power and authority
to adopt the Resol utionsand the Resol utions have been duly and lawfully adopted by the Authority, areinfull forceand
effect and are valid and binding upon the Authority and enforceable in accordance with their terms.

2. TheResolutioncreatesthevalid pledgewhichit purportstocreateof theproceedsof the sal eof thebondsissued
under the Resol ution, the Revenues and all funds and accounts established by the Resol ution (other than the Arbitrage
Rebate Fund, as defined in the Resol ution), including the investments thereof and the proceeds of such investments, if
any, subject only to the provisions of the Resolution permitting the application thereof to the purposesand on theterms
and conditions set forth in the Resolution.

3. The Series 2004A Bonds have been duly and validly authorized and issued by the Authority and arevalid and
binding special obligations of the Authority, payable solely from the sources provided therefor in the Resol utions.

4. The Series2004A Bondsarenot adebt of the State of New Y ork, and the State of New Y ork isnot liablethereon,
nor shall the Series 2004A Bonds be payable out of funds of the Authority other than those pledged for the payment of
the Series 2004A Bonds.
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5. TheLoan Agreement dated as of August 11, 1999 between the Authority and the University of Rochester (the
“University”), as supplemented and amended to the date hereof (the “Loan Agreement”), has been duly authorized,
executed and delivered by the Authority and, assuming due authorization, execution and delivery thereof by the
University, constitutes alegal, valid and binding obligation of the Authority enforceable in accordance with itsterms.

6. Under existing statutesand court decisions, interest on the Series 2004A Bondsisexcluded from grossincome
for federal incometax purposes pursuant to Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, asamended (the* Codge”).
Under the Code, interest on the Series 2004A Bondsisnot treated asapreferenceitemin cal cul ating alternative minimum
taxable income for purposes of the alternative minimum tax applicable to individuals and corporations; such interest,
however, isincludableintheadjusted current earningsof certain corporationsfor purposesof computing thealternative
minimum tax imposed on such corporations by the Code. Also, under existing statutes, interest on the Series 2004A
Bonds is exempt from personal income taxes imposed by the State of New York or any political subdivision thereof
(including The City of New York). Inrendering the opinionsin this paragraph 6, we have relied upon and assumed (i)
the material accuracy of the representations, statements of intention and reasonabl e expectations, and certifications of
fact, containedinthefederal tax compliance documentsdelivered onthedate hereof by the Authority andthe University
with respect to the use of proceeds of the Series 2004A Bonds and the investment of certain funds, and other matters
affecting the exclusion of interest on the Series 2004A Bonds from grossincome for federal income tax purposes under
Section 103 of the Code, and (ii) compliance by the Authority and the University with proceduresand covenantsset forth
inthefederal tax compliance documentsand with thetax covenantsset forth in the Resol utionsasto such matters. Under
the Code, failure to comply with such procedures and covenants may cause the interest on the Series 2004A Bondsto
be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes, retroactive to the date of issuance of the Series 2004A
Bonds, irrespective of the date on which such noncompliance occurs or is ascertained.

7. “Origina issue discount” (“OID”) isthe excess of the sum of all amounts payable at the stated maturity of a
Series 2004A Bond (excluding certain “qualified stated interest” that is unconditionally payable at least annually at
prescribed rates) over the issue price of that maturity (in general, the “issue price” of amaturity meansthefirst price at
which asubstantial amount of those Bonds of that maturity was sold (excluding salesto bond houses, brokers, or similar
persons acting in the capacity asunderwriters, placement agents, or wholesalers)). For any Series 2004A Bonds having
OID (a“Discount Bond"), OID that is properly allocable to the owners of the Discount Bonds is excluded from gross
incomefor federal incometax purposesto the same extent asother interest on the Series 2004A Bonds. |n general, under
Section 1288 of the Code, OID on a Discount Bond accrues under a constant yield method, based on periodic
compounding of interest over prescribed accrual periods at least annually, using a compounding rate determined by
referencetotheyield onthat Discount Bond. Anowner’ sadjusted basisinaDiscount Bondisincreased by accrued OID
for purposes of determining gain or loss on sale, exchange, or other disposition of such Bond.

Except asstatedin paragraphs6 and 7 above, weexpressno opinion astoany federal, stateor local tax consequences
arising with respect to the Series 2004A Bonds or the ownership or disposition thereof. Furthermore, we express no
opinion as to the effect of any action hereafter taken or not taken in reliance upon an opinion of counsel other than
ourselves on the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of interest on the Series 2004A Bonds,
or under state and local tax law.

Inrendering thisopinion, weareadvising youthat theenforceability of rightsand remedieswith respect tothe Series
2004A Bonds, the Resolutions and the Loan Agreement may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency and other laws
affecting creditors’ rights or remedies heretofore or hereafter enacted and is subject to general principles of equity
(regardless of whether such enforceability is considered in a proceeding in equity or at law).

We have examined an executed Series 2004A Bond and, in our opinion, the form of said Series 2004A Bond and
its execution are regular and proper.

Very truly yours,
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